














August 16, 2018 

Special Board Mtg 1 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE 

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

August 16, 2018 

 

President Goldman called the meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

ELTORO WATER DISTRICT to order at 7:30 o'clock a.m. on August 16, 2018 at 

the El Toro Water District Administrative Offices, 24251 Los Alisos Boulevard, 

Lake Forest, California. 

 Director Freshley led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 

 Directors M. SCOTT GOLDMAN, JOSE F. VERGARA, MARK MONIN, 

FRED ADJARIAN, and KATHRYN FRESHLEY were present.  

Also present were ROBERT R. HILL, General Manager/Secretary, 

DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Assistant General Manager/District Engineer, JUDY 

CIMORELL, Human Resources Manager, NEELY SHAHBAKHTI, Finance 

Manager/Controller, POLLY WELSCH, Recording Secretary, GILBERT J. 

GRANITO, General Counsel and Richard Babbe, PFM Investment Advisor. 

Oral Communications - Public Comments 
 

President Goldman stated that at this time members of the public may 

address the Board or they may reserve this opportunity with regards to an item 

on the agenda, until the Board discusses said item later in today’s meeting.  

There were no public comments.  

Items Received Too Late to be Agendized 



August 16, 2018 

Special Board Mtg 2 

 President Goldman asked if there were any items received too late to be 

agendized.  Mr. Hill replied no. 

Investment Workshop 

Cash Reserve Investment Workshop 

 Mr. Hill stated that a brief cover memo is included to remind the Board that 

the intention of the Investment Workshop is to facilitate discussion between the 

Board, staff, and PFM regarding the District’s current Cash Reserve Investment 

strategy, the current and forecasted economic environment and whether a 

modification to the current investment strategy is warranted. 

 Mr. Hill stated that the last workshop of this nature was September 2016. 

 Mr. Hill stated that included in the package is a Cash and Investment 

schedule which is included in each month’s Finance report.  He further stated 

that this report summarizes and shows return on investments. 

 Mr. Hill stated that staff has reviewed the District’s Investment Policy with 

PFM and is not suggesting any changes to the current policy. 

Mr. Babbe provided an overview of PFM’s investment approach. 

Mr. Babbe reviewed the investment parameters and the nature of how 

investments perform over time.   He further stated that there are certain 

parameters they must adhere to accommodate future liquidity needs of the 

District. 

Mr. Babbe stated that the Government Code determines the types of fixed 

income investments in which a public agency may invest.   He further stated that 



August 16, 2018 

Special Board Mtg 3 

within the parameters allowed by the Government Code, the District’s investment 

policy determines the requirements for the investments in the portfolio. 

Mr. Babbe stated that there are a number of factors involved with investing 

in fixed income securities.   He further stated that interest rates fluctuate daily 

based on market factors, which has a significant impact on the portfolio’s 

performance. 

Mr. Babbe stated that over interest rate cycles, longer duration portfolios 

and the greater use of corporate securities in a portfolio have generated higher 

average returns; however the relationship in any period can be very different. 

Mr. Babbe stated that central banks were very active in trying to keep 

interest rates low.  He further stated that although longer duration portfolios have 

provided higher average returns, they have demonstrated greater volatility on a 

period by period basis and during higher interest rate conditions have 

underperformed shorter duration portfolio investments. 

Mr. Babbe stated that the average treasury yields calculate the periodic 

return of a portfolio from income and change in market value.  He further stated 

that the yield on a 3-year U.S. Treasury is up, but most of the increase occurred 

before mid May with the yield trading within a range in recent months given 

market uncertainty. 

Mr. Babbe stated that the Fed expects 2 additional rate hikes in 2018, but 

rate actions depend on actual conditions that develop.  He further stated that key 

strategy decisions should be made to best fit the District’s investment strategies 

recognizing that no one strategy/approach is best in all conditions. 



August 16, 2018 

Special Board Mtg 4 

Mr. Babbe stated that PFM is a fiduciary investment advisor, and not a 

broker. 

Director Monin asked what the LAIF and CAMP return percentages are.  

Mr. Babbe replied that as of the end of the day yesterday the 7 day yield for 

CAMP was 2.12% for the money market like fund.  Mr. Hill stated that LAIF is 

1.94% as of July 31st. 

Director Monin asked if the amount shown on the slide is gross of fees or 

net?   Mr. Babbe replied that as of July there was approximately $9 million in 

CAMP. 

Mr. Babbe stated that the portfolio’s yield continues to trend higher as it 

adjusts to current interest rate levels. 

Director Freshley asked how much money is in the CAMP fund.   Mr. 

Babbe replied that the District has very little liquidity in the CAMP pool. 

President Goldman asked about the Portfolio Maturity Distribution.  Mr. 

Babbe stated that individual investments are concentrated in the 1-3 year 

maturity range, consistent with the benchmark, and the District maintains assets 

in LAIF to provide liquidity and a cushion against market value fluctuations. 

Mr. Babbe stated that PFM will use whatever strategy our District wants.    

Mr. Hill stated that this meeting was for the Board and management staff 

to have discussion on the current strategy on investments. 

Director Monin stated that the District needs to do better on investments, 

and he suggested using a shorter term strategy. 



August 16, 2018 

Special Board Mtg 5 

President Goldman agreed to Director Monin’s suggestion to shorten up 

our timeframe on the District’s investment strategy. 

Mr. Babbe stated that they could buy a 3-month investment rather than a 

2-year investment.   Director Monin suggested that we could be doing 2.5% in 

LAIF and CAMP at the end of the year. 

Director Monin suggested that staff report on the LAIF fund and CAMP 

investments each month during the Finance report.  He further stated that we 

should review if there are any investments we can liquidate without taking a loss. 

Director Freshley asked if we put funds monthly into the account, and if so 

does it go into CAMP?   Mr. Hill replied that we do not put money monthly into 

the Cash Reserves, they are reconciled at the end of the fiscal year.  President 

Goldman stated that we have been drawing on the Cash Reserves until the State 

Loan check is received which will replenish the Cash Reserves.  Mr. Cafferty 

stated that we would replenish the Board mandated Reserve amount, and 

remainder into LAIF.  He further stated that we have not had to liquidate any 

funds to meet expenses. 

President Goldman asked if staff would need to revise the Investment 

Policy.   Mr. Hill replied no, the policy is broad enough that it will not need to be 

revised. 

Mr. Babbe stated that CAMP will not invest in any new funds until 

reviewing low yield funds and analyze the higher investment opportunities while 

we determine the best way to get a better strategy. 



August 16, 2018 

Special Board Mtg 6 

President Goldman stated that he would like to limit putting anything on 

hold and incurring losses while the strategic evaluation proceeds. 

Director Freshley stated that long-term investments give a better return 

than the short-term investments, and she feels it costs more to play than have a 

strategy and hang in there for the longer term.    

Mr. Babbe stated that they will review risks in the portfolio and amount of 

returns in short-term and long-term investments.  He further stated that their fees 

are based on the District’s assets and CAMP’s management of the portfolio. 

Mr. Hill stated that the Board should consider providing guidance to the 

Investment Advisor to evaluate and identify a prudent investment strategy 

change that accomplishes the best return for the portfolio and report back to the 

Board at a future date. 

Ms. Shahbakhti stated that more than 60% of the District’s investments 

have been making money for the CAMP portfolio. 

Mr. Hill stated that at the next Finance meeting, we will closely review the 

investments. 

President Goldman asked for a Motion. 

Motion:   Director Monin made a Motion, seconded by Vice President 

Vergara and unanimously carried across the Board, to direct the Investment 

Advisor to evaluate a change in investment strategy that takes into consideration 

the current and forecasted interest rate environment, current investment maturity 

dates, any opportunities to prudently move to shorter term investments and 

report back to the Board. 



August 16, 2018 

Special Board Mtg 7 

Roll Call Vote: 

Vice President Vergara aye 
President Goldman  aye 
Director Monin aye 
Director Adjarian  aye 
Director Freshley  aye 

  

 Mr. Hill stated that Mr. Babbe will review the investment strategy 

alternatives and come back to the Board at a future date for additional discussion 

on the District’s portfolio. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the following 

motion was duly made and passed.   

Motion:  Director Adjarian moved, seconded by Director Monin and 

unanimously carried across the Board that today’s meeting be hereby adjourned 

at 8:50 o’clock a.m. 

 President Goldman called for a Roll Call vote. 

Roll Call Vote 

Director Monin   aye 
Director Adjarian   aye 
President Goldman   aye 
Vice President Vergara  aye 
Director Freshley   aye 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
   

POLLY WELSCH 
Recording Secretary 

  
APPROVED: 
 



August 16, 2018 

Special Board Mtg 8 

 ______ 
M. SCOTT GOLDMAN, President of  
the El Toro Water District and the 
Board of Directors thereof 
 
 ____ 
ROBERT R. HILL, Secretary  
of the El Toro Water District and 
the Board of Directors thereof  



August 21, 2018 

Engineering Committee Minutes 1 

 
  MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 
ENGINEERING COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
August 21, 2018 

 
 
 Vice President Vergara called the Meeting of the Engineering Committee to order 

at 7:30 a.m. on August 21, 2018. 

 Director Adjarian led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 

Present at today’s meeting were Committee Members M. SCOTT GOLDMAN, 

JOSE F. VERGARA, MARK MONIN, KATHRYN FRESHLEY, and FRED ADJARIAN. 

Also present were ROBERT R. HILL, General Manager/Secretary, DENNIS P. 

CAFFERTY, Assistant General Manager/District Engineer, JUDY CIMORELL, Human 

Resources Manager, RICK OLSON, Operations Superintendent, NEELY 

SHAHBAKHTI, Finance Manager/Controller, RICK OLSON, Operations Superintendent, 

MIKE MIAZGA, IT Manager, GILBERT J. GRANITO, General Counsel, BOB ADAMS, 

HighMark Representative, KEITH STRIBLING, HighMark Representative, POLLY 

WELSCH, Recording Secretary, and CAROL MOORE, Laguna Woods Mayor. 

Oral Communication/Public Comment 

 There were no comments. 

Items Received too Late to be Agendized 

Vice President Vergara asked if there were any items received too late to be 

agendized.  Mr. Hill replied no. 

Consent Calendar 

Approval of the Minutes 
 



August 21, 2018 

Engineering Committee Minutes 2 

 Vice President Vergara had some corrections to the minutes, which the 

Recording Secretary will correct. 

. Vice President Vergara asked for a Motion 

. 
 Motion:   Director Adjarian made a Motion, seconded by Director Monin and  
 
unanimously carried across the Board to approve the Consent Calendar. 
 
 Roll Call Vote 
 
 Director Adjarian  aye 
 Director Monin  aye 
 President Goldman  aye 
 Vice President Vergara aye 
 Director Freshley  aye 
 
Quarterly Review of the District’s 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan 
 
 
 Mr. Hill stated that Bob Adams of HighMark will be retiring and Keith Stribling will 

be taking over for him. 

 Mr. Adams stated that he has enjoyed working with ETWD’s Board and 

management staff.   

 Mr. Adams stated that the Investment Pool Allocation page shows the four age-

based investment pools and asset allocation as they were at the end of the second 

quarter.   He further stated that these investment pools have now morphed into 7 

portfolios which are fully funded and invested. 

 Mr. Adams stated that management staff, Prudential, and US Bank were very 

helpful in this transition.   He further stated that the next quarterly report will reflect the 

changes. 



August 21, 2018 

Engineering Committee Minutes 3 

 Mr. Adams stated that on the capital preservation slide, the middle column will 

disappear while having only one benchmark.   He further stated that there were pretty 

good returns on the long-term investments. 

 Mr. Adams stated that they added the ticker EEIIX, Eaton Vance Emerging 

Markets Local Income Fund.  Director Monin asked why they added this particular fund.  

Mr. Adams replied that their investment team felt this fund has a good chance to 

increase. 

 Mr. Stribling stated that all International investments are weak and affected by 

the interest rate changes.  Director Monin asked what is the yield and duration on the 

fund.  Mr. Adams replied that they will get this information and reply back to staff. 

 Director Monin asked about the 2-star funds and if the Nationwide Bailard is new 

to the portfolio.  Mr. Stribling stated no, that Nationwide Bailard and Dodge & Cox are 

on the watch list.  Mr. Adams added that the Artisan Mid Cap is not on the watch list. 

 Mr. Stribling explained the investment process and how their group reviews the 

value funds and how they are performing.  Director Monin asked how much time a fund 

is given when they are continuously underperforming.  Mr. Stribling replied that their 

investment team reviews the underperforming funds and replaces them as needed. 

 Director Monin asked if they could see if their process includes a timeframe for 

underperforming funds and when to make changes, and get back to the Board. 

 Director Freshley stated that emerging market funds could change how secure 

these funds are. 

 Mr. Adams stated that small cap funds are also reviewed each quarter. 
 
 At approximately 7:51 o’clock a.m. Mr. Adams and Mr. Stribling left the meeting. 
 



August 21, 2018 

Engineering Committee Minutes 4 

Engineering Action Items 
 
Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Feasibility Study & Alternatives Analysis 
 
 Mr. Cafferty stated that AMI systems consist of small, low-power radio 

transmitters connected to water meters that send readings to a network of receivers 

throughout the system several times a day.  He further stated that the District sent an 

RFP for the Feasibility Study & Alternatives Analysis to 7 firms and received 3 

proposals.    

 Mr. Cafferty stated that staff reviewed the proposals and project costs and came 

to the conclusion that MC Engineering was the best choice.  He further stated that MC 

Engineering is prepared to begin work upon the award of a contract and estimates a 6-

month timeline to complete the project. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that speed to implement the project is an option, which could 

drive costs.   He further stated that funding options will also be reviewed. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that total project costs for implementation of an AMI Project 

will be reviewed with the Board following completion of the Feasibility Study 

He further stated that the District’s current SCADA system based on old phone system 

that will not be sustainable for the long-term. 

 Director Adjarian asked if customers will be informed of this project and the 

added information would it be in real time.   Mr. Cafferty replied that this would be a 

benefit to customers, and the scope of work in the RFP didn’t discuss customer 

outreach, but staff could work with Communications Lab on customer outreach.  Mr. 

Cafferty further noted that the meter reads will not be real time but will provide 



August 21, 2018 

Engineering Committee Minutes 5 

consumption data several times a day as opposed to the current practice of manual 

monthly reads. 

 Director Freshley asked if we could consider a portal on the website for 

customers to check their water usage.   Mr. Cafferty replied that the scope of work 

includes evaluation of customer portals that would provide customers access to their 

daily consumption data. 

 Vice President Vergara stated that he attended a meeting where IRWD gave a 

presentation on their new system where they hired two people to check for leaks, and 

they found approximately $1 million in water that was used illegally. 

 Vice President Vergara asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  Director Adjarian made a Motion, seconded by Director Monin, and 

unanimously carried across the Board to authorize the General Manager to enter into a 

Consultant Contract with MC Engineering, Inc. in the amount of $64,550 to prepare a 

AMI Feasibility Study and Alternatives Analysis. 

 
 Roll Call Vote 
 
 Director Adjarian  aye 
 Director Monin  aye 
 President Goldman  aye 
 Vice President Vergara aye 
 Director Freshley  aye 
 
 At approximately 8:10 o’clock a.m. Mr. Miazga left the meeting. 
 
Engineering General Information Items 
 
Capital Project Status Report 

Oso Lift Station Improvement Project 



August 21, 2018 

Engineering Committee Minutes 6 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that we are currently close to the completion of design and 

staff is working on the documents to facilitate a property transfer for a 10-foot strip on 

the east side of the site. 

 President Goldman asked if this is a permanent transfer.   Mr. Cafferty replied 

yes. 

Recycled Water 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that construction on the East Side System Distribution System 

is complete, and construction is in progress on the West Side System. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that staff is preparing to bid a retrofit project on the East Side 

System and certain sites in the West Side System.   He further stated that he 

anticipates bringing a contract recommendation to the Board in September. 

State Revolving Fund Agreement/Project Funding 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that the District received confirmation from the State of the 

approval of the first disbursement request in an amount of nearly $5 million. He further 

stated that the disbursement request has been forwarded to the State Controllers office 

for payment. 

Los Alisos Bridge Repair Project 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that staff is working with CalTrans on determining if we will be 

able to install a pipeline over the I-5 freeway at the Los Alisos bridge. 

Engineering Items Discussed at Various Conferences and Meetings 

There were no comments. 

Comments Regarding Non-Agenda Engineering Committee Items 

 Mr. Hill stated that SMWD is trying to develop a South Orange County Water 



August 21, 2018 

Engineering Committee Minutes 7 

Storage Coalition to look at options for improving storage reliability in South Orange 

County.  He further stated that they are asking for a non-binding letter of interest by 

September 30th with the amount of storage each agency may be interested in. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that Irvine Lake is also being considered for emergency 

storage for supply to the Baker Water Treatment Plant. 

 Director Freshley asked how many days capacity does ETWD have.  Mr. Cafferty 

replied that it depends on several variables including demand conditions.  Mr. Cafferty 

stated that in some conditions including the Baker supply, ETWD has well over 30 days 

and may get close to 60 days. 

Adjournment 

 There being no further business to come before the Board, the following motion 

was duly made and passed. 

 Motion:  Director Monin made a Motion, seconded by Director Adjarian and 

unanimously carried that today’s meeting be adjourned at 8:33 o’clock a.m. to Tuesday, 

September 25, 2018 at 7:30 o’clock a.m. at the District’s Administrative Offices at 24251 

Los Alisos Blvd, Lake Forest, CA.  92630. 

 Roll Call: 

Director Monin  aye 
 Director Adjarian  aye 
 President Goldman  aye 
 Vice President Vergara aye 
 Director Freshley  aye 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
  
POLLY WELSCH 
Recording Secretary 



August 21, 2018 

Engineering Committee Minutes 8 

 
APPROVED:  
 
 
____________________________ 
M. SCOTT GOLDMAN, President 
of the El Toro Water District and the 
Board of Directors thereof 
 
 
  
ROBERT R. HILL, Secretary  
of the El Toro Water District and the 
Board of Directors thereof 

 



1 
August 21, 2018 
FIC Minutes 

  MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

FINANCE/INSURANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

August 21, 2018 
 
 
 Director Monin called the Meeting of the Finance/Insurance Committee to order 

at 8:36 a.m. on August 21, 2018. 

Present at today’s meeting were Committee Members M. SCOTT GOLDMAN, 

JOSE F. VERGARA, MARK MONIN, and KATHRYN FRESHLEY. 

Committee Member FRED ADJARIAN was absent. 

Also present were ROBERT R. HILL, General Manager/Secretary, DENNIS P. 

CAFFERTY, Assistant General Manager/District Engineer, JUDY CIMORELL, Human 

Resources Manager, RICK OLSON, Operations Superintendent, NEELY 

SHAHBAKHTI, Finance Manager/Controller, RICK OLSON, Operations Superintendent, 

MIKE MIAZGA, IT Manager, GILBERT J. GRANITO, General Counsel, BOB ADAMS, 

HighMark Representative, KEITH STRIBLING, HighMark Representative, POLLY 

WELSCH, Recording Secretary, and CAROL MOORE, Laguna Woods Mayor. 

Consent Calendar 

1. Approval of Minutes 

2. Finance Report 

Director Freshley asked for the Finance report to be pulled from the Consent 

Calendar for further discussion.    

Vice President Vergara suggested some amendments to the minutes.  The 

Recording Secretary will make the changes. 

Director Monin asked for a Motion to approve the Consent Calendar with the 



2 
August 21, 2018 
FIC Minutes 

Finance report pulled. 

Motion:  President Goldman made a Motion, seconded by Director Vergara, and 

unanimously carried across the Board to approve the Consent Calendar with the 

Finance report pulled for further discussion. 

Roll Call Vote: 

Vice President Vergara  aye 
President Goldman   aye 
Director Monin   aye 
Director Freshley   aye 
 

Approval of Items Removed from Today’s FIC Consent Calendar 

Finance Report 

 Mr. Hill stated that the Cash Investment Schedule shall be reviewed. 

 Ms. Shahbakhti stated that in LAIF there is $3.5 million, and the US Treasury 

investments are in CAMP.   Mr. Hill stated that the $5 million from the State 

reimbursement will go into LAIF. 

 Ms. Shahbakhti stated that the Income Statement, account 4985 reflects the 

Market Value change against the original costs. 

 Director Monin asked for a Motion to approve the Finance report of the Consent 

Calendar. 

 Motion:   President Goldman made a Motion, seconded by Vice President 

Vergara, and unanimously approved across the Board to approve the Finance report of 

the Consent Calendar. 

Roll Call Vote: 

Vice President Vergara  aye 
President Goldman   aye 



3 
August 21, 2018 
FIC Minutes 

Director Monin   aye 
Director Freshley   aye 

 

Finance Action Items 

Director Compensation Policy and Travel Expense Reimbursement Policy Review 

 President Goldman asked to review these policies with the Board and 

management staff.   

 Mr. Hill stated that staff reviewed the Travel and Expense Policy and had no 

recommended changes to the Employee section of this policy.   

 President Goldman stated that on the Directors Compensation policy it defines 

what qualifies as an event, and the amount of compensation the Directors receive. 

 President Goldman stated that the meetings coordinate with the Standing 

Committee meeting schedule which is adopted by Resolution, and show the Primary 

and Alternates.  He further stated that there is no need to amend this policy at this time. 

 Mr. Hill stated that there is also an estimated 2018-2019 conference cost 

schedule. 

 Mr. Hill stated that these policies are being reviewed today and if changes are 

needed, they will be brought back next month and adopted by Resolutions. 

 Mr. Hill stated that the Board needs to determine whether the current Director 

budget is enough to accommodate the cost of the conferences. 

 President Goldman stated that the cost of the conferences average $1,000 per 

conference, and suggests that we increase the Directors budget to $7,000 per fiscal 

year. 

 Director Monin asked for a Motion. 



4 
August 21, 2018 
FIC Minutes 

 Motion:   Director Monin made a Motion, seconded by Vice President Vergara, to 

authorize staff to make the amendment to the Travel & Expense Reimbursement Policy 

which increases the Directors budget for the fiscal year, and to prepare the necessary 

Resolution to be considered at a subsequent Board meeting. 

 Roll Call Vote 

 Vice President Vergara aye 
 Director Monin  aye 
 Director Freshley  aye 
 President Goldman  aye 
 
Resolution No. 18-8-1 Modifying Appointment of ETWD Standing Committee Members 

for the Calendar Year 2018 

 President Goldman stated that he made some changes to include Director 

Freshley on some of the meetings as Primary and Alternate. 

 Director Monin asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  President Goldman made a Motion, seconded by Vice President 

Vergara, and carried unanimously across the Board to adopt Resolution No. 18-8-1 

Modifying Appointment of ETWD Standing Committee Members for the Calendar Year 

2018. 

 Roll Call Vote 

 Director Freshley  aye 
 Vice President Vergara aye 
 President Goldman  aye 
 Director Monin  aye 
 

Resolution No. 18-8-5 Endorsing the Water Supply and Water Quality Act of 2018 

 Mr. Hill stated that included in the package is a summary of Proposition 3 and list 

of endorsing entities which is being evolved.   He further stated that he has been 



5 
August 21, 2018 
FIC Minutes 

communicating with the State on this Water Tax Bond. 

 Mr. Hill stated that he asked if these funds will be distributed or allocated similar 

to Prop 50, Prop 84, and Prop 1.   The response he received was that they will go 

straight to the State agencies for grant funding. 

 Mr. Hill stated that he asked Matteo Crew, Campaign Coordinator of Water 

Supply and Water Quality Act of 2018 if the State Water Resources Control Board will 

be the agency that develops project eligibility and approval of same.   The response 

was that each funding category is appropriated to an agency with the State Water 

Resources Control Board and DWR being the two biggest recipients. 

 Mr. Hill stated that in terms of water quality supply grant programs, the State 

Water Resources Control Board grant provides for safe drinking water, wastewater 

recycling, and groundwater desalination while DWR manages grants for storm water, 

state flood control water conservation, IRWM administration, and infrastructure repairs. 

 Mr. Hill asked Mr. Crew who will provide oversight and accountability to ensure 

that the funds are used consistent with the intent of the legislation.  The funding is 

directly appropriated to the agencies, but the legislature still has oversight of the grant 

programs. 

 Mr. Hill asked Mr. Crew that assuming that the grant passes, is there a timeline 

of funding and disbursement of funds.  The timeline will be decided by the State 

agencies, the State Water Resources Control Board, and DWR, however this funding 

may be made available relatively soon as Prop 1 funding is estimated to be fully 

allocated by mid 2019. 

 Mr. Hill asked Mr.Crew is there any organized opposition to the bill.  The 



6 
August 21, 2018 
FIC Minutes 

response was that Sierra Club California and Food and Water Watch are against the 

bill. 

 Mr. Hill asked Mr. Crew has there been analysis comparing tax payer benefit to 

their tax obligations.   The response was increased state costs to repay bonds 

averaging about $430 million per year over the next 40 years.  Savings to local 

governments averaging a couple hundred million dollars annually over the next few 

decades. 

 Mr. Hill stated that since 2000, voters have approved about $31 billion in GO 

bonds in statewide elections to pay for different types of water and environmental 

projects.  Of this amount, roughly one-third was still available to pay for new projects as 

of June 2018.  This includes $4 billion that was approved by voters through Prop 68 in 

June 2018. 

 Mr. Hill stated that on page 4 is a summary of where the nearly $9 million would 

be allocated to.   He further stated that page 5 states: 

 Watershed Lands $2.5 billion 

 Water Supply $2.1 billion 

 Fish & Wildlife Habitat $1.4 billion 

 Water Facility Upgrades $1.2 billion 

 Groundwater $1.1 billion 

 Flood Protection $500 million 

Mr. Hill stated that they also mention disadvantaged communities.  He further 

stated that the proposition continuously appropriates the bond funds to these 

departments. 



7 
August 21, 2018 
FIC Minutes 

Mr. Hill stated that for some funding subcategories, particularly those related to 

increasing or protecting water supply, grant recipients would have to provide at least $1 

in local funds for each $1 of grant funding they receive. 

Mr. Hill stated that they estimate the cost to state taxpayers to repay this bond 

would total $17.3 billion to pay off both principal ($8.9 billion) and interest ($8.4 billion), 

which would result in average costs of about $430 million annually over the next 40 

years. 

Director Monin asked for a Motion. 

Motion:  President Goldman made a Motion, seconded by Vice President 

Vergara and unanimously carried across the Board to adopt Resolution No. 18-8-5 

endorsing Prop 3 the Water Supply and Water Quality Act of 2018. 

Roll Call Vote 

Director Monin   aye 
President Goldman  aye 
Vice President Vergara  aye 
Director Freshley  aye 
 

Finance Information Items 

Tiered Water Usage and Revenue Tracking 

 Ms. Shahbakhti stated that included in the package is the July water usage by 

class and by tiers. 

Comments Regarding Non-Agenda FIC Items 

Close Finance and Insurance Committee Meeting 

 At approximately 9:22 o’clock a.m. the Finance and Insurance Committee 

meeting was closed. 



8 
August 21, 2018 
FIC Minutes 

Attorney Report 

 Mr. Granito reported that there is a need for a Closed Session at today’s 

meeting. 

Closed Session 

 At approximately 9:23 o’clock a.m. the Board went into Closed Session to 

discuss item #2 of today’s Closed Session agenda.  Also at this time, Ms. Moore, Ms. 

Shahbakhti, and Ms. Welsch left the meeting. 

Open/Regular Session 

 At approximately 9:29 o’clock a.m. the Board returned to Regular Session.  Also 

at this time, Ms. Welsch returned to the meeting. 

Report on Closed Session 

 Mr. Granito reported that the Board did go into Closed Session to discuss item #2 

of today’s Closed Session agenda.   During this phase of the Closed Session, the 

Assistant General Manager and General Counsel reviewed the Claim submitted by 

Southern California Edison on June 20, 2018, after which the Board rejected the Claim. 

Adjournment 

 There being no further business to come before the Board, the following motion 

was duly made and passed. 

 Motion:  Director Adjarian made a Motion, seconded by Vice President Vergara 

and unanimously carried that today’s meeting be adjourned at 9:30 o’clock a.m. to 

Tuesday, September 25, 2018 at 7:30 o’clock a.m. at the District’s Administrative 

Offices at 24251 Los Alisos Blvd, Lake Forest, CA.  92630. 

 Roll Call: 



9 
August 21, 2018 
FIC Minutes 

Director Freshley  aye 
 President Goldman  aye 
 Vice President Vergara aye 
 Director Monin  aye 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
  
POLLY WELSCH 
Recording Secretary 

 
APPROVED:  
 
____________________________ 
M. SCOTT GOLDMAN, President 
of the El Toro Water District and the 
Board of Directors thereof 
 
 
  
ROBERT R. HILL, Secretary  
of the El Toro Water District and the 
Board of Directors thereof 



August 23, 2018 

Board Mtg 1 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE 

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

August 23, 2018 

 

Vice President Vergara called the meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

ELTORO WATER DISTRICT to order at 7:30 o'clock a.m. on August 23, 2018 at 

the El Toro Water District Administrative Offices, 24251 Los Alisos Boulevard, 

Lake Forest, California. 

 Director Adjarian led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 

Present at today’s meeting were Committee Members JOSE F. 

VERGARA, MARK MONIN, FRED ADJARIAN and KATHRYN FRESHLEY. 

Committee Member M. SCOTT GOLDMAN was absent. 

Also present were ROBERT R. HILL, General Manager/Secretary, 

DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Assistant General Manager/District Engineer, JUDY 

CIMORELL, Human Resources Manager, NEELY SHAHBAKHTI, Finance 

Manager/Controller, GILBERT J. GRANITO, General Counsel, SHERRI SEITZ, 

Public Relations/Emergency Preparedness Administrator, CHRIS GOODCHILD, 

employee, MIKE GASKINS, customer, and POLLY WELSCH, Recording 

Secretary. 

Oral Communications - Public Comments 
 



August 23, 2018 

Board Mtg 2 

Vice President Vergara stated that at this time members of the public may 

address the Board or they may reserve this opportunity with regards to an item 

on the agenda, until the Board discusses said item later in today’s meeting. 

There were no comments.  

Items Received Too Late To Be Agendized 

 Vice President Vergara asked if there are any items received too late to be 

agendized.  Mr. Hill replied no. 

Presentation of Awards, Recognitions and Introductions 

 Mr. Hill recognized and congratulated on behalf of the Board, Chris 

Goodchild, Collections Maintenance Worker III for 20 years of service with the 

District. 

 At approximately 7:37 o’clock a.m. Mr. Goodchild left the meeting. 

Special District/Employee Association/Community Award Acknowledgement and 

Employee Special Recognition 

 There were no acknowledgements. 

Consent Calendar  

 All matters under the Consent Calendar will be approved by one motion 

unless a Board member or a member of the public requests separate action or 

discussion on a specific item. 

1. Approval of July 17, 2018 Special Board meeting minutes, and 

approval of the July 26, 2018 Board meeting minutes. 

2. Approval of the Attendances and Conferences 

a. ACWA Fall conference November 27-30, 2018 in San Diego, CA 



August 23, 2018 

Board Mtg 3 

 Motion:  Director Adjarian made a Motion, seconded by Director Monin, 

and unanimously carried across the Board to approve the Consent Calendar. 

 Roll Call Vote: 

 Director Adjarian  aye 
 Director Monin  aye 
 Vice President Vergara aye 
 Director Freshley  aye 
 

Approval of Items Removed from the Consent Calendar 

 There were no items removed from today’s Consent Calendar. 

Director/Committee Reporting 

 Director Adjarian stated that he attended the MWDOC/MET Directors 

workshop, the WACO meeting, the Laguna Hills Night Out event, the LAFCO 

meeting, the CAG meeting, the SOCWA Finance meeting, the OCWA 

luncheon, and an upcoming SOCWA Finance meeting. 

 Director Monin stated that he attended the Laguna Hills Night Out 

event, the Mission Viejo Night Out event, the WACO meeting, ISDOC 

Executive Committee meeting, the CASA conference, the Laguna Woods City 

Council meeting, the Mimi Walters Elected Officials breakfast, the South 

Orange County Watershed meeting, and the OCWA luncheon. 

 Director Freshley stated that she attended WACO, the Mission Viejo 

Night Out event, CAG luncheon, LAFCO, and the Laguna Woods City Council 

meeting. 

 Vice President Vergara stated that he attended the CAG meeting, 

OCWA luncheon, and the WateReuse meeting. 



August 23, 2018 

Board Mtg 4 

General Manager Action Items 

Resolution No. 18-8-2  Nominating Director Monin on the ISDOC Executive 
Committee 
 
 Mr. Hill stated that Director Monin is currently the Second Vice President 

on the ISDOC Executive Committee, and would like to be the First Vice President 

which is in charge of setting up the programs.  He further stated that the 

nominations are due September 18, 2018. 

 Vice President Vergara asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  Director Adjarian made a Motion, seconded by Director Freshley 

and unanimously carried across the Board that the Board approve Resolution 

No. 18-8-2 which nominates Director Monin to hold the following position:  First 

Vice-President on the ISDOC Executive Committee. 

 Roll Call Vote: 

 Director Adjarian  aye 
 Director Monin  abstain 
 Director Freshley  aye 
 Vice President Vergara aye 
 
Resolution No. 18-8-3 Adopting the 2018 South Orange County Integrated 

Regional Water Management Plan 

 Mr. Hill stated that this intent is to discuss and adopt the 2018 South 

Orange County Integrated Regional Water Management Plan.   He further stated 

that the members are listed at the bottom of his cover memo. 

 Mr. Hill stated that each time that DWR has revisions related to the new 

Grant proposal, the Plan needs to be updated and approved by the County and 

each of the 21 member agencies. 



August 23, 2018 

Board Mtg 5 

 Vice President Vergara asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  Director Monin made a Motion, seconded by Director Adjarian 

and unanimously carried across the Board to approve Resolution No. 18-8-3 

which adopts the 2018 South Orange County Integrated Regional Water 

Management Plan. 

 Roll Call Vote: 

 Director Adjarian  aye 
 Director Monin  aye 
 Director Freshley  aye 
 Vice President Vergara aye 
 

Resolution No. 18-8-4 Adopting the Update to the District’s Local CEQA 

Guidelines 

 Mr. Hill stated that this is an annual update which BB&K provides to us.   

He further stated that these guidelines reflect recent changes in the Public 

Resources Code, the State CEQA Guidelines and relevant court opinions. 

 Mr. Hill stated that these Guidelines provide instructions and forms for 

preparing all environmental documents required under CEQA. 

 Mr. Hill stated that there is no environmental impact anticipated from 

amending the Local CEQA Guidelines.   He further stated that these documents 

are on the District’s website. 

 Vice President Vergara asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  Director Adjarian made a Motion, seconded by Director Monin 

and unanimously carried across the Board to adopt Resolution No. 18-8-4 which 



August 23, 2018 

Board Mtg 6 

approves the 2018 update to the District’s Local California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 

 Roll Call Vote: 

 Director Adjarian  aye 
 Director Monin  aye 
 Director Freshley  aye 
 Vice President Vergara aye 
 

General Manager Information Items 

General Manager’s Monthly Report 

 Ms. Shahbakhti stated that the Customer Service report is looking good. 

 There were no other comments. 

State Drought Regulations – Monthly Report 

 Mr. Hill stated that we continue to file the monthly water usage reports to 

the State compared to our 2013 usage.   He further stated that we are currently 

at 24%. 

Legislative Reports 

 Mr. Hill stated that we have been discussing SB 998, regarding a proposal 

to change requirements for disconnecting customers for non-payment.   He 

further stated that we are part of a group opposing unless amended. 

 Director Adjarian asked if SB 844 is passed by the legislature, would there 

be additional cost for modifying our billing system.  Mr. Hill replied yes, he sent a 

staff estimate to MWDOC.  Mr. Cafferty stated that the cost to replace the billing 

system is estimated to be slightly over $470,000. 

Public Education and Outreach/Water Conservation Reports 



August 23, 2018 

Board Mtg 7 

 Ms. Seitz stated that there were four water waste complaints for July for 

excessive water use and two customers received educational door hangers. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that the September bill message offers a variety of ways 

to pay your water bill and view the bill history online. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that she is working with staff on Prop 3 and a Resolution. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that ETWD hosted booths at the National Night Out 

events in Mission Viejo and Laguna Hills. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that upcoming events include: 

 UC ANR Urban Landscape and Garden Expo in Irvine, September 

29th  

 Girl Scout Water Resources and Conservation Patch, November 3rd 

at the WRP 

 Scouts Tour of the WRP, January/February 2019 

 At approximately 8:10 o’clock a.m. Ms. Seitz left the meeting. 

SOCWA Reports 

 Director Adjarian stated that at the SOCWA Finance meeting they 

discussed the unfunded pension liability, where they hired two firms to analyze 

the scope and provide options for how to address this issue.  He further stated 

that they reviewed labor cost data from past use audits and budget information. 

 Director Adjarian stated that part of the discussion was going back to the 

formation of SOCWA.   He further stated that MNWD felt that there were 

additional costs going back prior to the formation of SOCWA that should be 

included as part of the actuarial costs. 



August 23, 2018 

Board Mtg 8 

 Ms. Shahbakhti stated that they invited the Finance managers from all 

agencies, but only 4 showed up, and they decided to move forward as it is 

impossible to acquire the data prior to 2001.  She further stated that MNWD is 

asking for which individuals were tied to each of their projects since the 

beginning of SOCWA. 

MWDOC 

 Vice President Vergara stated that at the MWDOC Planning/Operations 

meeting they discussed a proposal by IRWD to market some amount of stored 

water at Strand Ranch through MWDOC. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that he attended the MWDOC Managers meeting 

where Rob Hunter had a presentation on cost sharing for the Strand Ranch 

project.   

LAFCO 

 Director Adjarian stated that the two key topics was a recommendation for 

25 years of service for John Withers.  He further stated that they discussed the 

LAFCO Work Plan and Policies and Procedures.   

 Director Adjarian stated that the Policies and Procedures and the Strategic 

Plan were pushed to October to allow more time to discuss specific areas. 

SOCWMA  

 Director Monin stated that Laguna Beach County Water District did a 

presentation on the Pacific Marine Mammal Center where they are looking for 

$500,000 donations to help orphaned and sick seals.  



August 23, 2018 

Board Mtg 9 

Director Monin stated that they also discussed San Juan Basin Authority’s 

request to join the South Orange County Watershed as a voting member. 

Mr. Hill stated that Jenna Voss could obtain a list of projects that were 

involved with Prop 50 and Prop 84. 

ISDOC Meetings 

 Director Monin stated that they discussed 3 alternatives for LAFCO dues, 

the way it has been done, a way that Yorba Linda recommended as a 

percentage, or a way that both Mesa and SMWD recommended. 

 Director Monin stated that the Yorba Linda recommendation would benefit 

ETWD.   However, it was determined to consider the Mesa alternative and the 

existing method. 

 Director Monin stated that the proposed revisions to the LAFCO Workplan 

Policy & Procedures were discussed and deferred to October. 

WACO Meetings 

 Vice President Vergara stated that they had an almond farmer speak 

about working with agriculture. 

 At approximately 8:49 o’clock a.m. Director Adjarian left the meeting. 

City Coordination Efforts 

 There were no comments. 
 
Committee and General Information 
 
 There were no comments. 

Dates to Remember 

 There were no comments. 



August 23, 2018 

Board Mtg 10 

Carry-Over Pending Matters 

 There were no comments. 

Director Comments/Non-Agenda Items 

 There were no comments. 

Attorney Report 

 Mr. Granito reported that there is no need for a Closed Session today. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the following 

motion was duly made and passed.   

Motion:  Director Monin moved, seconded by Director Freshley and 

unanimously carried that today’s meeting be hereby adjourned at 8:53 o’clock 

a.m. to Thursday, September 27, 2018 at 7:30 o’clock a.m. at the District’s 

Administrative Offices, 24251 Los Alisos Blvd., Lake Forest, California. 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Adjarian   aye 
Director Monin   aye 
Director Freshley   aye 
Vice President Vergara  aye 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
   

POLLY WELSCH 
 Recording Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 

 

 ______ 
M. SCOTT GOLDMAN, President of  
the El Toro Water District and the 
Board of Directors thereof 



August 23, 2018 

Board Mtg 11 

 
 
 ____ 
ROBERT R. HILL, Secretary  
of the El Toro Water District and 
the Board of Directors thereof  



R-6 RESERVOIR SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE TANK 
 REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
 

 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The existing Sodium Hypochlorite Storage Tanks at the R-6 Reservoir Chloramination Facility are 
nearly 20 years old and are beginning to exhibit signs of fatigue. Due to an existing flange leak, 
the manufacturer’s representative performed an internal inspection and evaluation.  Since that time 
a flange on the second tank has begun to leak as well.  The existing flange leaks are unrepairable 
and the recommendation from the manufacturer was to replace the tanks due to the leaks and signs 
of internal wear.   
 
The proposed project replaces the two existing 5,000 gallon Sodium Hypochlorite Storage Tanks 
at the R-6 Reservoir Chloramination Facility.  
 

 
MATERIAL EVALUATION 
 
Staff performed an extensive review of material options.   The existing tank material is Fiberglass 
Reinforced Plastic (FRP).  The original material selection was based on the evaluation conducted 
during the facility design in the late nineties. Based on staff’s research the proposed tanks are 
specified with a similar material. Ashland Performance Materials, an independent testing and 
research organization, has conducted extensive research over the past several decades to determine 
the best tank material solutions for Sodium Hypochlorite service.  This research included 
laboratory corrosion testing, FRP coupon testing in the field and a portfolio of case histories.  The 
Ashland research concluded that the FRP material has an expected useful life of 20 to 30 years as 
opposed to the alternative polymer material that has an expected life of only 7 to 11 years.  Given 
the challenges associated with installation of the tanks as well as the overall cost Staff determined 
the FRP option to be the most appropriate for the replaced of the R-6 Reservoir tanks. 
 
 
 
 



R-6 Reservoir Sodium Hypochlorite Tank Replacement Project 
Page 2 
 
 
PROJECT BIDS 
 
Staff solicited bids for the replacement of the tanks from five contractors.  Staff provided a 
description of the installation requirements and conducted a pre-bid proposal meeting.  Bids were 
received from the following five contractors: 
 
 

Contractor Cost 
 

S.S. Mechanical Construction Corp. $ 213,224 

Don Peterson Contracting Inc. $ 227,716 

J.R. Filanc Construction $ 261,588 

Schuler Constructors, Inc. $ 267,471 

Pascal & Ludwig Construction Company $ 286,000 

 
S.S. Mechanical is well known to staff and has successfully completed several projects for the 
District. 
 
 
BUDGET EVALUATION 
 
The total project cost is summarized as follows: 
  

Construction Cost $ 213,224 

Contingency $20,000 

Total Project Cost $ 233,224 

 
The project was carried over from the 2017/18 Capital Budget. The original budget for the R-6 
Sodium Hypochlorite Tank Replacement Project was $210,000.  The project funding is broken 
down as follows: 
 

El Toro Water District $ 163,257 

Santa Margarita Water District $ 58,306 

Moulton Niguel Water District $ 11,661 

Total Project Cost $ 233,224 

 
 
The District’s share of the total project cost is within the allocated budget.   
 
 
 



R-6 Reservoir Sodium Hypochlorite Tank Replacement Project 
Page 3 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommended Action:    

 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the District’s General Manager to enter 
into a construction contract with S.S. Mechanical Construction Corp. in the amount of $213,224.00 
for construction of the R-6 Reservoir Sodium Hypochlorite Tank Replacement Project.  Staff 
further recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to fund the project costs from 
the District’s Capital Reserves in accordance with the District’s adopted Capital Reserve Policy. 
 
 
By: Dennis P. Cafferty 
Date: September 21, 2018 















SAFETY BOOT ALLOWANCE 

 

 

The District is committed to the safety and welfare of our employees and provides safety 

equipment to ensure personal safety in the performance of their jobs.  An important component 

of the District’s Safety Program is the requirement that all field employees wear steel toed boots.  

The District’s current policy provides employees with a $200 allowance to purchase the required 

steel toed boots.   

 

It was brought to Staff’s attention at a Safety Committee Meeting that field operations employees 

are incurring costs in excess of the existing $200 allowance to purchase better quality steel toed 

boots that provide greater support, are more durable, and more comfortable to work in.  The 

benefits of purchasing a safety boot with better ankle and foot support helps to reduce the chance 

of a workers compensation injury saving the District money.  In addition, the better quality boots 

last longer thus negating the need to purchase a second pair of boots at an additional $200 cost.   

 

It was recommended that Human Resources conduct a survey to see what neighboring agencies 

were allowing for the purchase of Safety Boots.    

 

Staff performed a survey of Safety Boot Allowance benefits provided by six similar agencies in 

South Orange County.  The Safety Boot Allowance of the surveyed agencies ranged from $200 

to $500 per year as shown in the following table, with an average of $328 per year.   

 

 

DISTRICT BOOT ALLOWANCE 

IRWD $200 per year 

MESA $200 per year 

MNWD $466 per year 

OCWD 
$200 per year; $150 one time for interns 

required to have safety boots 

SCWD $400 per year 

SMWD $500 per year 

AVERAGE $328 per year (does not include ETWD) 

 

 

Based on the cost being experienced by District Staff as well as the survey staff proposed to 

increase the allowance to $300 per year.  The estimated impact to the budget, based on the 

current employee eligibility for FY 2018/2019, is approximately $4,800 if every eligible 

employee spent the entire amount of the allowance.     

 

The update to the Safety Boot Allowance was inadvertently left out of the Employee Handbook 

updates that went before the Board for approval effective March 2018.  Staff believed at the time 

that the specific dollar amount of the allowance was not identified in the Employee Handbook 

and that the existing allowance could be periodically evaluated and increased under the authority 

of the General Manager.  Staff subsequently realized that the boot allowance amount is identified 

in the Employee Handbook and that the modification therefore requires Board approval.  Under 



the presumed authority of the General Manager the boot allowance increase from $200 to $300 

was put into effect July 1, 2018.   

 

Conclusion 

 

The increase to the Safety Boot Allowance will allow the District to remain competitive with 

similar agencies with whom the District competes for talented labor.  The District will support 

the Safety Committees recommendation to more adequately equip our employees with safety 

equipment that will better protect them from injury. The proposed ratification of a revision to the 

Employee Handbook will bring us into compliance with the Right to Revise policy stating that 

any changes to the Employee Handbook must be approved by the District’s Board of Directors.      

 

Proposed Ratification of a Revision to the Employee Handbook  
 

Section VI – Management/Employee Relations – Expenses & Expense Accounts - Safety Shoes 

of the Employee Handbook increasing the Safety Boot Allowance from $200 to $300. 

 

Safety Shoes 

 

A. The District requires all of its field employees to wear steel-toed safety shoes.  A 

new employee is required to have at least one serviceable pair of such shoes on 

the first day of work.  The District will either pay the shoe store directly or 

reimburse an employee for the actual cost of such safety shoes, not to exceed 

$200.00300.00.  Proof of Purchase will be required before reimbursement can be 

made.   

 

B. Each twelve-month period thereafter, the District will either pay the shoe store 

directly or reimburse an employee for the actual cost of purchasing or maintaining 

said steel-toed safety shoes, not to exceed $200.00300.00. These allowances are 

not cumulative. 

 

C. At the discretion of the employee's Department Head, repairs to an existing pair 

of boots or purchase of a second pair of boots may be authorized during the fiscal 

year at a cost not to exceed $200.00300.00.  Proof of repair or purchase is 

required before reimbursement can be made. 

 

Recommended Action:   

 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors consider ratifying a revision to Section VI – 

Management/Employee Relations – Expenses & Expense Accounts – Safety Shoes of the 

Employee Handbook increasing the Safety Boot Allowance from $200 to $300 retroactively to 

July 1, 2018. 

 

 

By: Judy Cimorell, Human Resources Manager 

Date: September 17, 2018 





































 

 
 

October 6 – 14, 2018 
 

 

Summary 

As part of Water Professionals Appreciation Week, local urban and agricultural water agencies 

across the state will host events and programs focused on staff appreciation, educating key 

audiences on the value of water and wastewater services, showcasing the important role that 

water professionals play in delivering water to California’s homes, businesses and farms, and 

promoting careers in the water industry. 

“Water Professionals Appreciation Week is a proactive and exciting opportunity to showcase the 

‘people behind the pipes and plants’ who work hard every day to ensure safe, reliable water for 

communities throughout California,” said ACWA Deputy Executive Director for External 

Affairs Jennifer Persike. “It also gives water agencies a chance to cultivate the next generation of 

water leaders by highlighting the rewarding careers in the water industry to young professionals 

and students.” 

Background 

 

Water Professionals Appreciation Week was established in 2017 by Senate Concurrent 

Resolution 80, by Sen. Bill Dodd (D-Napa). Recent labor studies estimate that 60,000 people 

work in California’s water industry and it needs roughly 6,000 new employees each year due to 

turnover. The water industry offers a wide variety of rewarding career opportunities in 

engineering, biology, finance, business administration, law, communications and many more 

types of positions in high-demand occupations.  

 

The measure was sponsored by a coalition of water associations led by the Association of 

California Water Agencies (ACWA) and including WateReuse California, California Municipal 

Utilities Association, California Association of Sanitation Agencies, and the California Water 

Association. Under SCR 80, the annually designated week begins on the first Saturday of 

October and ends on the Sunday of the following weekend. 

  



CA Water Professionals Week 

Page 2 

 

ETWD Participation 

 

ETWD along with water agencies throughout California will celebrate California’s second annual 

Water Professionals Appreciation Week from Oct. 6 to 14, 2018 that will showcase the workers 

who help deliver clean water to customer’s day in and day out, 24/7. 

 

ETWD will participate in the CA Water Professionals Appreciation Week by educating ETWD 

customers on the value of water and wastewater services, showcasing the important role that water 

professionals play in delivering water to California’s homes, businesses and farms, and promoting 

careers in the water industry through the following: 

 Adopting a Resolution of Support 

 Expand ETWD’s water professionals webpage to include additional educational 

information, resources and videos on jobs in the water and sewer field industry 

 Highlight two positions at the water district.  Continue each by highlighting additional 

positions 

 Utilize social media with campaign posts provided by ACWA and ETWD 

 Presentation on Laguna Woods Television TV6 

 Presentation at ETWD Community Advisory Group meeting in November 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff will review and comment on Resolution No. 18-9-3 which supports CA Water 

Professionals Appreciation Week. 

 

Recommended Action at the September 27, 2018 Board Meeting:  Staff recommends that the 

Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 18-9-3 Supporting Water Professionals Appreciation 

Week. 

 

 

By: Bob Hill 

 Sherri Seitz 

 

Date: September 12, 2018 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-9-3 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 
IN SUPPORT OF 

WATER PROFESSIONALS APPRECIATION WEEK 

WHEREAS, water is the lifeblood of California and without safe and reliable water, no community and no sector of 

the economy – from high tech to manufacturing to agriculture – can thrive or expand; and 

WHEREAS, thanks to technological advances by highly skilled and trained water professionals and the dedication 

of thousands of industry professionals in the state, California drinking water and treated wastewater meets some of the 

most stringent water quality standards in the nation; and 

WHEREAS, depending on where you live in California, your water may come from a nearby well or river, or it may 

travel hundreds of miles through canals or pipelines to reach your tap. Regardless of where it originates, your drinking 

water is filtered, cleaned, tested and distributed in a process carefully managed by trained water professionals; and  

WHEREAS, California is steadily expanding the reuse of treated wastewater and pioneering the use of advanced 

purified recycled water to replenish aquifers, prevent seawater intrusion and improve local water supply reliability; and  

WHEREAS, water professionals at local public water and wastewater agencies work 24/7 to plan for the future, 

maintain and upgrade their systems and improve the safety and resiliency of local water supplies for their communities; 

and 

WHEREAS, according to the Public Policy Institute of California, local public water and wastewater agencies 

invest more than $25 billion a year on local water-related programs and projects that protect public health and the 

environment, improve local water supply reliability, replenish and clean up groundwater basins, provide water for fire 

protection and protect against floods; and 

WHEREAS, thousands of water, wastewater and recycled water industry professionals in the state dedicate their 

careers to keeping drinking water, recycled water and treated wastewater safe and reliable for use by Californians; now, 

therefore, be it 

RESOLVED that the El Toro Water District hereby declares Oct. 6-14, 2018 Water Professionals Appreciation 

Week and extends its sincere gratitude and appreciation to the water and wastewater professionals who work 24/7 to 

provide excellent service to our community every day. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this 27th day of September 2018. 

 

         __________________________ 
         M. SCOTT GOLDMAN, President 
         Of the Board of Directors of 
ATTEST:        El Toro Water District 
 
 
_______________________ 
ROBERT R. HILL, Secretary 
Of the Board of Directors of 
El Toro Water District 



 
 

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

September 2018 
 
 

 
 I. OFFICE OF THE GENERAL MANAGER 

 

 Attended Chair/GM Meetings 

 Attended Agenda Review 

 Attended MWDOC Managers Meeting 

 Attended Engineering & Finance Committee Meetings 

 Attended Regular Board Meeting 

 Attended South County Agencies Meeting 

 

II. DOMESTIC AND RECLAIMED WATER SALES  

 
Actual domestic sales for the year-to-date as of August 31, 2018 are 760.10 acre-feet. This compares to year-to-date 
budgeted domestic sales of 757.54 acre-feet.   The year-to-date variation in actual to budgeted sales reflects an 
increase of 2.56 acre-feet.  Actual sales are 29.79 acre-feet lower than last year-to-date actual sales for the same 
period.   
 
Recycled water sales for the year-to-date are 183.32 acre-feet, compared to 122.05 acre-feet budgeted for the same 
period.  
 



1,544.81

5,655.19

1,160.00

392.58

767.42

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

A
c
re

 F
e
e
t

F.Y. 2018-2019

DOMESTIC WATER SALES

Budget Actual

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

A
c

re
 F

e
e

t

F.Y. 2018-2019

RECLAIMED WATER SALES

Budget Actual

Year to Date:
Budget  7,200.00 AF
Actual      1,544.81     
AF      (5,655.19) under

Year to Date:
Budget    1,160 A.F.
Actual          392.58  
A.F.  (767.42) over
.



Customer Service Activity Report AUG 2018

Regular Service Calls AUG 2018 AUG 2017 Telephone Calls AUG 2018 AUG 2017

Serviceman Dispatched to Read, 

Connect/Disconnect Service
86 89

Change of Service:                               

(CR / DR within and/or outside of 

ETWD service area)
82 150

Field Investigations: Billing / Payment & Graph Inquires 304 661

Check for leaks-calls to CS

Office:(irrigation,meter,street leaks)

Assistance with online payments 

and ETWD's portal (cc, echecks)
78 247

  Customer Responsible 15 32

  District Responsible 11 12 Variance / Waiver Inquiries 46 160

  None found/other
14 11

Variance / Waiver Requests 

Processed
18 40

High Reads Checked - High Consumption 

(Billing Dept.)

Ordinance Infraction / Water 

Waste Complaints
0 2

   Cust Leaks: _5_   No Leaks: _23_ 28 6

Check Stopped Slowed Meters-Low 

Consumption (Billing)
9 7

Other Districts
77 155

Re-Check Read 8 0

Phone Transfers to other 

Departments within ETWD
130 217

Ordinance Infraction 2 1 Calls for the Board of Directors 3 8

Recycled Water 0 0 Recycled Water 0 0

Water Quality:  Taste / Odor / Color  2 3 Water Quality Taste - Odor - Color 1 4

Phone response: _2_  Field response: _0__ Leaks / Breaks 13 56

Flooding (Hydrant) Meters issued 2 2 Flooding (Hydrant) Meter calls 1 5

Sewer - Odor/Stoppage/ Manhole Covers 8 2 Sewer Problems (odor / spill) 6 2

Meter Box:  Lids / Covers  Replaced 58 30

Meter Box Clean, Digout
10 5

Backflow / Cross Connection 

(questions or yearly testing forms)
8 14

Raised Meter Box
6 0

ETWD facilities inquiries: 

Boxes/Covers/Lids/Hydrants/Pump 

Stations/Graffiti/ "Gen. Maint"
11 5

Trim Bushes / Meter Obstruction 13 30

General Maintenance Response
9 3

Tyco (ADT) Calls                            

(Alarms to ETWD facilities)
0 1

Fire Hydrants:  Hit / Leaks / Caps 0 2 ATT Calls (access to tower sites) 0 1

Pressure(psi) Checks / Reads 6 5 SCE Calls (access to tower sites) 0 1

CSSOV (Angle Meter/Ball Valve/Gate 

Valve/Globe Valve) chk,repair,replaced
15 3

Pager Calls specifically for Pump 

Stations - SCADA
0 0

Bees Removed 3 1

Backflow / Cross Connection 1 5 Payment Extensions 67 169

Fogged Registers
24 0

Delinquent Payment Calls to 

Customer 's (automatic dialer)
23 0

OMCOP: Old Meter Change - Out Program 
4 9

Return Calls from customers left 

on our voice mail system. 
41 92

Other: (uncommon non-maintenance calls) 0 9 Email Correspondence 82 289

On-Call After Hrs. CS  Response
22 31

Maintenance Service Order 

Requests (bees, psi, fogged-dirty 

registers)
2 0

# 48/24 Hr. Door Hangers Hung
150 124

**Misc.. (other: employment, 

deliveries, sales calls)
62 0

# Locked Off For Non-Pay (Disconnect) 5 12

Removed Meter 0 23

New Meter 5 1

Unread Meters 10 17

Total Field Investigations 526 475 Total Telephone Calls 1055 2279

 

Uncollectible Accounts: Credit Card Payments AUG 2018 AUG 2017

Budget YTD 3,333.00$   $3,333 REGULAR 693 $81,315.81 552 $61,064.79

Actual YTD (114.00)$     $4,078 DISCONNECTS

* = New Code



EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

COLLECTION SYSTEM ACTIVITY REPORT
MONTH ENDING: 2018

NUMBER

0

FOOTAGE

CHEMICAL

USED

CHEMICAL

COST COMMENTS:

0

FOOTAGE

0

FOOTAGE

16,244

19,537

35,781

35,781

FOOTAGE

7,185

1,576

8,761

Number 4 Mathis-Lapaz-Delta-Northline

Number

WATER TANK FILLS  40 40,000

Flow Meter/Sampling

Laguna Woods Village

New World

Private System

Other

Wet Wells

TOTAL

TV INSPECTIONS   COMMENTS:

Outside Laguna Woods Village

COMBINED TOTALS:

ETWD TOTALS:

SANTA MARGARITA TOTALS:

Hot Spots

Private System

  COMMENTS:

Outside Laguna Woods Village

Laguna Woods Village

TOTAL

HYDRO-CLEANING

New World

  COMMENTS:

Outside Laguna Woods Village

Laguna Woods Village

New World

Laguna Woods Village

New World

Other

TOTAL

ROOT CUTTING

ROOT FOAMING

Outside Laguna Woods Village

Laguna Woods Village

New World

Private System

Other:  WRP

TOTAL

Outside Laguna Woods Village

August

ODOR COMPLAINTS LOCATION, ORIGIN, ACTION: 

Outside Laguna Woods Village



The quality and safety of drinking water in the U.S. is regulated by the federal government through the U.S.

Environmental Protection agency (USEPA).  In California, those standards are enforced by the California

Department of Public Health (CDPH).  Water Quality parameters must meet both primary and secondary

water quality standards as established by the CDPH.

PRIMARY STANDARDS -  are intended to protect public health against substances in the

water that may be harmful to humans if consumed for long periods of time.

SECONDARY STANDARDS -  are to ensure esthetic qualities of water such as taste, odor

or clarity.  Rather than its healthfulness, these standards govern substances that may

influence consumer acceptance of water.

Given that 100% of ETWD's potable water resource is fully treated and delivered by Metropolitan Water 

District of southern California (MWDSC) through an enclosed and protected conveyance system, the majority

of the State and federal primary and secondary source water quality monitoring requirements are performed

by MWDSC.  The District's physical responsibility for water quality monitoring is associated with the distribution

system.  To monitor the distribution system water quality the District utilizes both in house and outside lab

services.  Routine distribution analysis conforming to CDPH requirements is conducted for the following

constituents:

1)  Microbiological - The number of microbiological samples and the frequency of analysis during the month

is based on the population and/or service connections served.  Utilizing a population of

50,000, the CDPH requires that 20 "representative" samples be collected and analyzed

for coliform bacteria.  The objective is to maintain water quality that is absent of coliform

bacteria which is a general indicator for the existence of fecal coliform.

2)  Chlorine  - The chlorine residual monitoring is performed in conjunction with the microbiological 

     Residual monitoring.  The CDPH requirement for treated surface water mandates that the distri-

bution system maintain a "detectable" residual.  The number of and frequency of sampling

is determined utilizing the same formula applied to microbiological requirements.  At a 

minimum, we are obligated to collect and analyze for chlorine residual each time we collect

the representative microbiological samples.  Per EPA Disinfectants & Disinfection Byproduct 

Rule (D/DBP), which was effective January 2002, requires quarterly reporting for all sampling.

3) TTHM & HAA5 The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) published the Stage 2 Disinfectants and

Stage 2 DBPR Disinfection Byproducts Rule (Stage 2 DBPR) on January 4, 2006. The Stage 2 DBPR builds

Compliance on existing regulations by requiring water systems to meet disinfection byproduct (DBP)*

maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) at each monitoring site in the distribution system to

better protect public health.  The Stage 2 DBP rule is intended to reduce potential cancer and

reproductive and developmental health risks from disinfection byproducts (DBPs) in drinking

water, which form when disinfectants are used to control microbial pathogens.

This final rule strengthens public health protection for customers of systems that deliver

disinfected water by requiring such systems to meet maximum contaminant levels as an  

average at each compliance monitoring location (instead of as a system-wide average as in

previous rules) for two groups of DBPs, trihalomethanes (TTHM) and five haloacetic acids (HAA5).

The rule targets systems with the greatest risk and builds incrementally on existing rules.

This regulation will reduce DBP exposure and related potential health risks and provide more

equitable public health protection.  The Stage 2 DBPR is being released simultaneously with the 

Long Term 2 Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule to address concerns about risk tradeoffs 

between pathogens and DBPs. 

         EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

          MONTHLY POTABLE WATER QUALITY REPORT



The mandatory requirement under the Stage 2 DBP rule, known as an Initial Distribution System 

Evaluation (IDSE) was completed by ETWD in 2008 and a Stage 2 monitoring plan has been 

approved by CDPH.  Full Stage 2 compliance begins in 2012.  The IDSE identified the locations

with high disinfection byproduct concentrations.  These locations will then be used by the  

District as the 8 sampling sites for Stage 2 DBP rule compliance monitoring.  Compliance with 

the maximum contaminant levels for two groups of disinfection byproducts (TTHM and HAA5) 

will be calculated for each monitoring location in the distribution system.  This approach, 

referred to as the locational running annual average (LRAA), differs from current requirements,  

which determine compliance by calculating the running annual average of samples from all   

monitoring locations across the system.  The Stage 2 DBP rule also requires each system to 

determine if they have exceeded an operational evaluation level, which is identified using their 

compliance monitoring results. The operational evaluation level provides an early warning of  

possible future MCL violations, which allows the system to take proactive steps to remain in  

compliance.  A system that exceeds an operational evaluation level is required to review their 

operational practices and submit a report to the state that identifies actions that may be taken  

to mitigate future high DBP levels, particularly those that may jeopardize their compliance with 

the DBP MCLs.

4)  Physical  - Physical Quality analysis is associated with the esthetic qualities of the finished water.

     Quality Primarily, we are performing analysis for taste, odor and Turbidity (Clarity).  In accordance

with CDPH requirements, the District collects a minimum of 15 samples per month.

5)  Nitrites  - Although the chloramine disinfection process has been effective in controlling TTHM levels,

it requires increased monitoring and adjustment as a result of its susceptibility to the 

Nitrification process.  Nitrification is a biological process caused by naturally occurring

ammonia oxidizing bacteria.  Nitrification in chloraminated drinking water can have various

adverse impacts on water quality, the most serious of which is the loss of total chlorine

residual which is required by the CDPH and the subsequent potential to increase bacteria-

iological activity within the finished or treated water system.  MWD has developed an 

effective nitrification monitoring and prevention program which ETWD staff have adopted

and incorporated into the District's daily water quality monitoring and action plan.  The

number and frequency of this type of monitoring is not currently regulated by CDPH.  

Staff monitor the level of nitrites in source water, reservoirs and the distribution system

daily and weekly in conjunction with the microbiological and chlorine sampling program.

A nitrite level of between 0.015 and 0.030 would signal an alert.  > 0.030 would require 

action such as the addition of chlorine to produce a chloramine residual.

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

MONTHLY POTABLE WATER QUALITY ANALYSIS

MONTH: August  YEAR :  2018

CONSTITUENT                INSIDE LAB            OUTSIDE LAB

ANALYSIS MCL NO.    RESULTS NO.   RESULTS

1  Microbiological    Pres/Absence 147(A) Pres/Absence 0 Average

2  Chlorine (ppm)  Detectable Resid 214 Average = 1.24 ppm 0

3  TTHM (ppb)       (Stage 2)   0.080 ppb  N/A 0

3  HAA5   (ppb)       (Stage 2)   0.060 ppb  N/A 0

4  Physical Quality: RANGE

Turbidity (ppm) 5 NTU 20  0.03 to 0.09 0

Odor 3 Units 20 ND<1 0

Color 15 Units 20 ND<5 0

Temperature No standard 20 69°F To 79°F 0

5 Nitrite (Alert/Action level)ppm  0.015 to 0.030 ppm 104 0.001 to 0.246 Res. 0

To ensure water quality compliance, the District annually performs approximately 8,750 water quality 

analytical evaluations of the samples collected from the distribution system.



Abbreviations:

RES Indicates that the nitrification was isolated to a reservoir and treated

ND None detected

Pres/Absence Presence (P) or Absence (A) related to a positive or negative bacteriological result

MCL Maximum Contaminant Level

NTU Nephelometric Turbidity Units, a measure of the suspended material in the water

ppm Parts per million

ppb Parts per billion

Total Coliform No more than 5% of the monthly samples may be total coliform-positive

N/A Not available



LIVE OAK
RESERVOIR

WEYMOUTH

PLANT

MILLS

PLANT

LAKE

MATHEWS

DIEMER

PLANT

LAKE

PERRIS

CASTAIC

LAKE

ORANGE CO.
RESERVOIR

JENSEN

PLANT

SILVER-

WOOD

LAKE

GARVEY

RESERVOIR

ETIWANDA

RESERVOIR

OPERATIONS

CENTER

IRVINE
LAKE

PALOS
VERDES

RESERVOIR

CONTROL

TIER 4

LAKE

SKINNER

DIAMOND

VALLEY LAKE

MILLS
AREA

POS. COLIFORMS

TOTAL R.Cl < 1.8

COMPLAINTS

TURBIDITY (NTU)

DEVIL CANYON POWER PLANT

SILVER-
WOOD LAKE

TDS (mg/L)

GEOSMIN (ng/L)

2-MIB (ng/L)

DIAMOND
VALLEY LAKE

2-MIB(ng/L)

GEOSMIN (ng/L)

TDS (mg/L)

SKINNER

AREA

POS. COLIFORMS

TOTAL R.Cl < 1.8
COMPLAINTS

LAKE
MATHEWS

2-MIB (ng/L)

GEOSMIN (ng/L)

TDS (mg/L)

TURBIDITY (NTU)

% SPW BLEND

TDS (mg/L)

TTHMs (µg/L)

MILLS PLANT
EFFLUENT

DIEMER PLANT
EFFLUENT

TURBIDITY (NTU)

% SPW BLEND

TDS (mg/L)

TTHMs (µg/L)

% SPW BLEND

WEYMOUTH PLANT
EFFLUENT

TTHMs (µg/L)

TDS (mg/L)

TURBIDITY (NTU)

CENTRAL

POOL

POS. COLIFORMS

TOTAL R. Cl < 1.8

COMPLAINTS

FINISHED-WATER RESERVOIRS

PALOS VERDES

ORANGE COUNTY

GARVEY

DETENTION

TIME

(DAYS)

NITRITE

(mg/L) (mg/L)

EFFLUENT
RESIDUAL
CHLORINE

CASTAIC
LAKE

GEOSMIN(ng/L)

2-MIB (ng/L)

TDS (mg/L)

TURBIDITY (NTU)

% SPW BLEND

TDS (mg/L)

TTHMs (µg/L)

JENSEN PLANT
EFFLUENT

MWD WATER QUALITY GOALS

PLANT EFFLUENT TURBIDITY

TOTAL DISSOLVED SOLIDS

TTHMs Service Connection Max

< 0.10 NTU

< 500 mg/L

< 80 µg/L

NITRITE - N

2-METHYLISOBORNEOL

GEOSMIN

NUMBER OF COMPLAINTS

NUMBER POS. COLIFORMS

NUMBER OF CHLORINE RES <1.8

< 5 ng/L

< 5 ng/L

0

0

0

< 0.005 mg/L

TTHMs Service Connection RAA < 64 µg/L

MILLIGRAMS/LITER

NTU

TDS
TTHMs

EXPLANATION

NEPHELOMETRIC TURBIDITY UNITS

TOTALDISSOLVED SOLIDS
TOTAL TRIHALOMETHANES

mg/L
µg/L

ng/L

2-MIB

2-MIB & GEOSMIN ARE ODOR PRODUCERS

MICROGRAMS/LITER

NANOGRAMS/LITER
2-METHYLISOBORNEOL

RAA RUNNING ANNUAL AVERAGE

LAKE
PERRIS

2-MIB (ng/L)

GEOSMIN (ng/L)

TDS (mg/L)

PLANT

SKINNER

BROMATE (µg/L)

BROMATE (µg/L)

BROMATE RAA 8

BROMATE RAA (µg/L)

BROMATE RAA (µg/L)OOS OUT OF SERVICE

TURBIDITY (NTU)

% SPW BLEND

TDS (mg/L)

TTHMs (µg/L)

SKINNER PLANT
EFFLUENT

BROMATE (µg/L)

BROMATE RAA (µg/L)

LAKE 

SKINNER

TDS (mg/L)

GEOSMIN (ng/L)

2-MIB (ng/L)

BROMATE RAA(µg/L)

BROMATE (µg/L)

BROMATE RAA(µg/L)

BROMATE (µg/L)

Weekly Water Quality System Status

THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA

Wednesday, September 12, 2018

WATER QUALITY INFORMATION LINE: (800) 354-4420

VISIT MWD ON THE WEB AT http://www.mwdh2o.com

ND
ND

222

Lwr. Twr.

0.04

100

238

11

OOS

OOS

2.3 0.009 2.38

2

5

205

Tier 4

2.32
0.06
31

502

20

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.05

100

219

17

6

5

211

Tier 3

4

2

586

Twr. 2 Tier 5&6

ND

2

269

Tier 7

38

482

2

Tiers 3 & 4

0.08

33

493

21

0

0

0

0.05

37

484

18

NOTES AND COMMENTS

~ THM and bromate values are for samples collected on 9/3/18.

Bromate maximum contaminant level is an RAA of 10 µg/L.

MWD water quality goals meet or exceed all State and Federal regulations.

~ Weymouth bromate RAA is not applicable (NA), it will be calculated in October 2018, once 4 
quarters of data are available.

3.3

ND

μg/L

No violations of State or Federal regulations were recorded during the current period.

4.5

2.3

^

^

^

5.9

2.3

DEVIL CANYON NORTH PARK

^

Printed On: 9/12/2018 1:23:59 PM

ND

1.6^

5.0

NA



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

5 / A

RES-3

5 / A

RES-4

5 / A

RES-1

5 / A

RES-2

5 / A

5 / A

5 / A

5 / A
5 / A

5 / A

5 / A

5 / A5 / A

5 / A

5 / A

5 / A5 / A

5 / A

R-15

5 / A

R-14

5 / A

5 / A

R-13

5 / A

OC-77

5 / A

5 / A

R-11

5 / A

R-10

R-16R-3
R-17

R-2

R-18

R-19

R-4 R-5

R-6 R-7 R-8
R-9

R-12

MPR

1 / A

ALISO CREEK RD

EL TORO RD

MICROBIOLOGICAL MONITORING

A = ABSENCE
P = PRESENCE (POSITIVE)

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND
DATA LEGEND

AUGUST 2018



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
D

S

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY
I-5  FR

EEW
A

Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

mg/L

RES-3

mg/L

RES-4

mg/L

RES-1

mg/L

RES-2

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L
mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/Lmg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/Lmg/L

mg/L

R-15

mg/L

R-14

mg/L

mg/L

R-13

mg/L

OC-77

mg/L

mg/L

R-11

mg/L

R-10

R-16R-3
R-17

R-2

R-18

R-19

R-4 R-5

R-6 R-7 R-8
R-9

R-12

MPR

mg/L

RES-5

mg/L2.16 2.24 2.32

2.22

1.90 2.00 2.18

2.02 2.22 2.49
1.80 1.97 2.07

0.18 1.04 1.66

0.50 1.25 1.65

1.77 1.94 2.25

0.53 0.93 1.31

0.69 0.89 1.19

0.36 0.79 1.11

0.47 1.36 1.76
0.83 1.32 1.85

1.02 1.32 1.61 0.78 1.05 1.33 1.19 1.46 1.59
1.34 1.57 1.78

1.20 1.43 1.60

0.53 1.44 1.90

1.05 1.37 1.56

1.85 1.98 2.10
1.72 1.99 2.28

1.90 2.06 2.25

0.82 1.22 1.53
0.30 0.40 0.49

0.30 0.47 0.59

0.30 0.59 0.98

CHLORINE RESIDUAL MONITORING

DATA LEGEND

mg/L

MCL 4.0 mg/L
MIN 0.2 mg/L

AUGUST 2018

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
D

S

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

mg/L

RES-3

mg/L

RES-4

mg/L

RES-1

mg/L

RES-2

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

R-15

mg/L

mg/L

R-13

mg/L

R-11

mg/L

R-16

R-2

R-5

OC-77

mg/L

MPR

mg/L

mg/L

R-17

RES-5

mg/L0.0030.002 0.005 0.006

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         //         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /
/         /

0.005 0.008 0.010

0.004 0.005 0.007

0.002 0.005 0.006

0.001 0.063 0.246

0.004 0.026 0.074

0.004 0.005 0.007

0.046 0.065 0.095

0.014 0.025 0.048

0.006 0.021 0.037

0.005 0.007 0.008

0.002 0.005 0.007

0.003 0.004 0.005

0.004 0.005 0.005
0.003 0.042 0.090

NITRITE  MONITORING

DATA LEGEND

mg/L

0.03
mg/L

MCL
1.0

mg/L

AUGUST 2018

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
D

S

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L
mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/Lmg/L

mg/L

R-15

mg/L

R-14

mg/L

R-13

mg/L

MPR

mg/L

mg/L

R-11

mg/L

R-10

R-16R-3
R-17

R-2

R-18

R-19

R-4

R-5

R-6 R-7 R-8
R-9

R-12

0.75

0.76

0.73

0.78

0.76

0.82

0.79
0.79

0.80

0.79

0.81

0.82

0.82

0.80

0.77

0.79

0.81

0.83

0.73

0.76

FLUORIDE  MONITORING

TOTAL
mg/L

DATA LEGEND

0.7 - 1.3
mg/L

AUGUST 2018

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND



WY 

CO 

UT 

AZ 
NM 

This report is produced by the Water Resource Management and contains information from various federal, state, and local agencies.  

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California  cannot guarantee the accuracy or completeness of this information.  

Readers should refer to the relevant state, federal, and local agencies for additional or for the most up to date water supply information.  
 

Reservoirs, lakes, aqueducts, maps, watersheds, and all other visual representations on this report are not drawn to scale. 
 

http://www.mwdh2o.com/WSCR 
 

This report is best printed double sided on legal size paper (8.5" x 14") and folded in quarters 

1.8 

1.1 1.0 

1.7 

2.4 
2.7 

2.3 

1.2 0.9 
1.3 

2.5 

0

1

2

3

4

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 

Calendar Year 

MWD Storage Reserve Levels 

Storage Balance

Emergency Storage

250

350

450

550

650

750

850

 T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
 A

c
re

-F
e

e
t 

Diamond Valley Lake Storage 

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 

Lake Shasta Reservoir Storage 

2016-2017 2017-2018

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

W
a

te
r 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

(i
n

) 

Southern Sierra Snowpack 

2016-2017 2017-2018 Normal

87% 

49% 

2018 SWP Allocation 

669,025 AF 

35% of Table A 

   Flip Over for CRA Data          Turn page for more SWP Data 

1.55 MAF 
OROVILLE 

284 TAF 
CASTAIC 

708 TAF 

DVL 

TOT:  1.01 MAF 
SAN LUIS 

SWP:  666 TAF 

44% 

88% 

Average EOM 

% 

Capacity 

Current Storage  

(% Capacity) 

% 

As of: 09/05/2018 

   Turn page for more CRA Data                         Flip Over for SWP 

11.43 MAF 
POWELL 

9.93 MAF 

MEAD 

1079.07 FT 

38% 

47% 

2018 Colorado River 

836,221 AF 

67% of full CRA 

0

10

20

30

69% 

20.3" 

957 TAF less in storage 

than this time last 

year 

Peak: 14.6 in.     

56% of normal 

April 1 

0

6

12

18

32% 

WY Avg  

LA: 4.7" 

0

6

12

18

36% 

 WY Avg 

SD: 3.8" 

Record Low: 587 TAF (08/01/1977)  

810 TAF 

325 TAF 

2.04 MAF 

3.5 MAF 

24.3 MAF 

26.1 MAF 

% Normal  

WY to Date 

 WY Avg 

% 

Rainfall to Date (in) 

Capacity: 4.55 MAF 

Capacity: 810 TAF 

Does not include storage 

withdrawals  

Water Supply Conditions 

Report 

Water Supply Conditions 

Report 

As of: 09/05/2018 

8 TAF more in 

storage than this 

time last year 
72% 

Runoff Forecast 
(WY) 

73% 
Runoff Forecast 

(Apr-Sep) 

Peak Snowpack 
% of Normal  

April 1  

Northern Sierra 

50% 

Peak Snowpack 
% of Normal  

April 1  

Southern Sierra 
56% 

Runoff 

Forecast WY 

Peak Snowpack % of 

Normal April 1 

 
% 

% 

Peak Snowpack 
% of Normal  

April 1  

44% 
Runoff Forecast 

(WY) 

74% 

Upper Colorado 

River Basin 

 

0
15
30
45
60
75
90

80% 

 WY Avg 

8 STA: 40.9" 

0

15

30

45

60

75

74% 

 WY Avg 

5 STA: 29.7" 

Highlights 

  Statewide snowpack peaked at 58% of April 1 normal 

 

 Sacramento River Runoff forecast is 72% of normal 

 

 Snowpack in the Upper Colorado River Basin peaked at 

74% of April 1 normal 

 

  Lake Powell inflow forecast is at 44% of normal 

Record Low 



Colorado River Resources As of: 09/05/2018 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

W
a

te
r 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

(i
n

) 

Northern Sierra Snowpack 

2016-2017 2017-2018 Normal

28% 

168% 

8% 

79% 

21% 

166% 

126% 

82% 

30% 50% 
0% 0% 

0

4

8

12

16

 P
re

c
ip

it
a

ti
o

n
 (

in
) 

8 Station Index Precip 

Average Monthly Precip Actual Precip to Date

0

5

10

15

20

25

W
a

te
r 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

(i
n

) 

Upper Colorado Basin Snowpack 

2016-2017 2017-2018 Normal

0.0

0.3

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.5

1.8

2.1

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 

San Luis Reservoir Storage 

Total Current SWP Current

Total Last Year 

SWP Last Year 

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 

Lake Powell Storage 

8

10

12

14

16

18

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 

Lake Mead Storage 

Surplus 

Shortage Trigger 

18% 

96% 

3% 

58% 

18% 

251% 

106% 

12% 0% 33% 0% 0% 
0

4

8

12

16

 P
re

c
ip

it
a

ti
o

n
 (

in
) 

5 Station Index Precip 

Average Monthly Precip Actual Precip to Date

47% 

70% 

49% 

76% 

93% 

78% 81% 

68% 

44% 

64% 
67% 

5% 
0

2

4

6

 P
re

c
ip

it
a

ti
o

n
 (

in
) 

Average Monthly Precip Actual Precip to Date

Upper Colorado Basin Precip 

 

Lake Mead Shortage/Surplus Outlook 

Likelihood based on results from the August 2018 CRSS model run.  

40.9 in.  

Water Year 

to Date 

3.47 MAF less in 

storage than this 

time last year 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 

Water Year 

Sacramento River Runoff 

0

3

5

8

10

13

15

18

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 

Water Year 

Powell Unregulated Inflow 

Long Term 

Average 

Long Term 

Average 

Colorado River Resources As of: 09/05/2018 

29.7 in.   

Water Year 

to Date 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Shortage 0% 57% 68% 70% 65%

Surplus 0% 0% 3% 5% 7%438 TAF less in SWP 

storage than this 

time last year 

Other SWP Contract Supplies for 2018 (AF) 

Transfer/Exchanges 16,500

Article 14b 27,500

Pool A/B (Purchased) TBD

Carryover Supplies 297,000

20.3 in.   

Water Year 

to Date 

207 TAF less in 

storage than this 

time last year 

Peak: 11.6 in     

74% of normal 

April 1 

Peak: 13.8 in.     

50% of normal 

April 1 

2017 Colorado River Ag Use  

WY 2018 

       of normal  
(Aug  2018 Forecast) 

Capacity: 3.5 MAF Capacity: 24.3 MAF 

Capacity: 26.1 MAF 
Capacity: 2.04 MAF 

44% 

State Water Project Resources 
As of: 09/05/2018 

WY 2018              

        of normal  
(May 2018 Forecast) 

72% 

SWP Capacity 1.06 MAF 

Total Capacity 2.04 MAF 

2.75

2.85

2.95

3.05

3.15

J F M A M J J A S O N D

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 

Date of Forecast 

IID/CVWD (QSA Priority 3a) 

0.8

1.3

1.8

2.3

2.8

3.3

3.8

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 

Oroville Reservoir Storage 

2016-2017 2017-2018

Enhanced Flood Pool Original Flood Boundaries

88 TAF less in 

storage than this 

time last year 

Record Low 

380

400

420

440

460

480

500

J F M A M J J A S O N D

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

  
A

c
re

-F
e

e
t 

Date of Forecast 

PVID/Yuma (QSA Priority 1 & 2) 

+20 

0 

-20 

-40 

R
e

la
tiv

e
 to

  Q
S
A

 Th
re

sh
o

ld
 

+40 

+60 



 
 
 
 

 

DATE: September 14, 2018 

TO: Member Agencies – MWDOC Division Five 

FROM:  Sat Tamaribuchi, Director – Division Five 

SUBJECT: Monthly Water Usage Data, Tier 2 Projection & Water Supply Information 

 
 
The attached figures show the recent trend of water consumption in Orange County (OC), 
an estimate of Imported Water Sales for MWDOC, and selected water supply information.   
 

 OC Water Usage, Monthly by Supply   OCWD Groundwater was the main supply in 
July.   

 OC Water Usage, Monthly, Comparison to Previous Years    Water usage in July 
2018 was above average compared to the last 5 years.  We are continuing to see 
slight increases in overall water usage compared to the previous two Fiscal Years.  
In June 2016, all water conservation became voluntary for MWDOC agencies and 
the Great California Drought was declared over by the Governor in April 2017.  

 Historical OC Water Consumption Orange County M & I water consumption is 
estimated to be 540,000 AF in FY 2018-19 (this includes ~15 TAF of agricultural 
usage and non-retail water agency usage). This is about 15,000 AF more than FY 
2017-18 and is about 36,000 AF more than FY 2016-17. Water usage per person is 
projected to be slightly higher in FY 2018-19 for Orange County at 155 gallons per 
day (This includes recycled water).  Although OC population has increased 20% over 
the past two decades, water usage has not increased, on average.   A long-term 
decrease in per-capita water usage is attributed mostly to Water Use Efficiency 
(water conservation) efforts.  O.C. Water Usage for the last three Fiscal Years is the 
lowest since the 1982-83 Fiscal Year (FY1982-83 was the third wettest year on 
record).   

 
Water Supply Information Includes data on Rainfall in OC; the OCWD Basin overdraft; 
Northern California and Colorado River Basin hydrologic data; the State Water Project 
(SWP) Allocation, and regional storage volumes.  The data have implications for the 
magnitude of supplies from the three watersheds that are the principal sources of water for 
OC.  Note that a hydrologic year is Oct. 1st through Sept. 30th. 
 

 Memorandum 



 Orange County’s accumulated rainfall through August was well below average for 
this period.  Water year to date rainfall in Orange County is 3.66 inches which is 29% 
of normal.   

  

 Northern California accumulated precipitation through August was around 84% of 
normal for this period. Water Year 2017 was the wettest water year on record. The 
Northern California snowpack was 43% of normal as of April 1st.  The State of 
California was in a declared Drought Emergency that started January 2014 and 
ended in April of 2017.  As of late August, 47.58% of California is experiencing 
moderate to extreme drought conditions while 86.22% of the state is experiencing 
abnormally dry conditions. The State Water Project Contractors Table A Allocation 
has increased to 35% as of late May.   
 

 Colorado River Basin accumulated precipitation through late August was 69% 
average for this period.  The Upper Colorado Basin snowpack was 71% of normal as 
of April 3.  Lake Mead and Lake Powell combined have about 58% of their average 
storage volume for this time of year and are at 42.6% of their total capacity. If Lake 
Mead’s level falls below a “trigger” limit 1,075 ft. at the end of a calendar year, then a 
shortage will be declared by the US Bureau of Reclamation (USBR), impacting 
Colorado River water deliveries to the Lower Basin states. As of late August, Lake 
Mead levels were 3.5’ above the “trigger” limit.  The USBR predicts that the start of 
2019 will not hit the “trigger” level but there is a 52% chance that the trigger level will 
be hit in 2020 and a 64% chance in 2021.   

 
 
 

 
 
 

 



6,000        IRWD&Serrano for IL 

6,000       

[1]  

[2]  GW for consumptive use only.  Excludes In-Lieu water deliveries and  CUP water extraction that are counted with Import.  BPP in FY '17-18 is 75%.
[3]  
[4]  Total water usage includes IRWD groundwater agricultural use and usage by non-retail water agencies.

Imported water for consumptive use.  Includes "In-Lieu" deliveries and CUP water extraction.  Excludes "Direct Replenishment" deliveries of spreading water, "Barrier 
Replenishment" deliveries, and deliveries into Irvine Lake.

MWDOC's estimate of monthly demand is based on the projected FY 15-16"Retail" water demand and historical monthly demand patterns.

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

Ju
l-1

8

A
ug

-1
8

S
ep

-1
8

O
ct

-1
8

N
o

v-
18

D
e

c-
18

Ja
n-

19

F
eb

-1
9

M
ar

-1
9

A
p

r-
1

9

M
a

y-
1

9

Ju
n-

19

R
a

in
fa

ll 
(I

n
ch

e
s)

A
C

R
E

-F
E

E
T

Fig. 1  OC Water Usage, Monthly by Supply
with projection to end of fiscal year

Surface Water Non-OCWD Groundwater
Recycled (Non Potable) Import [1]
projected [3] OCWD Basin [2]
Rainfall



6,000        IRWD&Serrano for IL 

6,000       

[1]  Sum of Imported water for consumptive use (includes "In-Lieu" deliveries;  excludes "Direct Replenishment "and "Barrier Replenishment") and Local water for consumptive use 
(includes recycled and non-potable water and excludes GWRS production)  Recent months numbers include some estimation.

0
5
10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50
55
60
65
70
75
80
85
90
95
100

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000
Ju

l-1
8

A
ug

-1
8

S
ep

-1
8

O
ct

-1
8

N
o

v-
18

D
e

c-
18

Ja
n-

19

F
eb

-1
9

M
ar

-1
9

A
p

r-
1

9

M
a

y-
1

9

Ju
n-

19

A
ve

ra
g

e
 H

ig
h

 T
e

m
p

e
ra

tu
re

 (
F

)

A
C

R
E

-F
E

E
T

Fig. 1B  OC Water Usage, Monthly by Supply
with projection to end of fiscal year

Surface Water Non-OCWD Groundwater
Recycled (Non Potable) Import [1]
OCWD Basin [2] projected [3]Projected FY 17‐18

 ‐

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

 700,000

'69
‐70

'71
‐72

'73
‐74

'75
‐76

'77
‐78

'79
‐80

'81
‐82

'83
‐84

'85
‐86

'87
‐88

'89
‐90

'91
‐92

'93
‐94

'95
‐96

'97
‐98

'99
‐00

'01
‐02

'03
‐04

'05
‐06

'07
‐08

'09
‐10

 11
‐12

 13
‐14

 15
‐16

 17
‐18

 19
‐20

 21
‐22

 23
‐24

 25
‐26

 27
‐28

 29
‐30

 31
‐32

 33
‐34

 35
‐36

 37
‐38

 39
‐40

O
.C
. A

nn
ua

l W
at
er
 U
sa
ge
 (A

F)

Fiscal Year

Fig. 1B O.C. Historical Water Usage

Hi, Avg and Low 
from O.C. Water 
Reliability Study

 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

 70,000

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep O
ct

N
o

v

D
e

c

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
pr

M
ay Ju
n

A
C

R
E

-F
E

E
T

Fig. 2  OC Monthly Water Usage [1]:  Comparison to Last 4 Fiscal
Years

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19

July 2018

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

A
C

R
E

-F
E

E
T

YTD Totals

Partial Year 
Subtotals



Accumulated Precipitation
for the Oct.‐Sep.  water year, through August 2018

* The date of maximum snowpack accumulation (April 1st in Northern Calif. ,  April 15th in the 
Upper Colorado Basin) is used for year to year comparison.  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

ORANGE 
COUNTY 

(SANTA ANA)

RIVERSIDE 
(AIRPORT)

N. SIERRAS 8‐
STATION 
INDEX

NORTHERN 
CALIF. 

SNOWPACK

UPPER BASIN 
COLORADO 
PRECIP.

UPPER BASIN 
COLORADO 
SNOWPACK

29% 35%

83%

43%
69%

71%

In
ch
es

This Year to date Average to date Average End of Year

CA Snowpack 
on 4/1/2018

Colorado
Snowpack

on
4/3/2018

% = Percent of Average to Date



Jul‐17 Aug‐17 Sep‐17 Oct‐17 Nov‐17 Dec‐17 Jan‐18 Feb‐18 Mar‐18 Apr‐18 May‐18 Jun‐18
AO (AF) 308,488     321,131     306,280     290,800     277,691     278,056     261,521     272,475     268,752     269,889     280,329     286,163    

AO w/CUP removed (AF) 310,216     321,131     308,007     292,522     277,691     279,776     263,237     274,188     270,463     271,601     282,041     287,869    
Jul‐18 Aug‐18 Sep‐18 Oct‐18 Nov‐18 Dec‐18 Jan‐19 Feb‐19 Mar‐19 Apr‐19 May‐19 Jun‐19

AO (AF) 292,869    
AO w/CUP removed (AF) 294,572    

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

500,000

550,000 Jul‐13
Aug‐13
Sep‐13
O
ct‐13

N
ov‐13

Dec‐13
Jan‐14
Feb‐14
M
ar‐14

Apr‐14
M
ay‐14

Jun‐14
Jul‐14
Aug‐14
Sep‐14
O
ct‐14

N
ov‐14

Dec‐14
Jan‐15
Feb‐15
M
ar‐15

Apr‐15
M
ay‐15

Jun‐15
Jul‐15
Aug‐15
Sep‐15
O
ct‐15

N
ov‐15

Dec‐15
Jan‐16
Feb‐16
M
ar‐16

Apr‐16
M
ay‐16

Jun‐16
Jul‐16
Aug‐16
Sep‐16
O
ct‐16

N
ov‐16

Dec‐16
Jan‐17
Feb‐17
M
ar‐17

Apr‐17
M
ay‐17

Jun‐17
Jul‐17
Aug‐17
Sep‐17
O
ct‐17

N
ov‐17

Dec‐17
Jan‐18
Feb‐18
M
ar‐18

Apr‐18
M
ay‐18

Jun‐18
Jul‐18

Ac
re
 F
ee

t
Accumulated Overdraft of the OCWD Groundwater Basin as of July 2018

Accumulated Overdraft (AO) AO with CUP Removed
Threshold for Mitigation Against Increasing AO Bottom of Basin Operating Range

Full

Source of data = OCWD monthly Water Resources Report in Board meeting packet



prepared by the Municipal Water District of Orange County
*Number are Subuject to Change

0

5

10

15

20

25

47% 64%M
ill
io
n 
 A
cr
e‐
Fe
et

Lake Powell

0.0
0.5
1.0
1.5
2.0
2.5

49% 114%

M
ill
io
n 
 A
cr
e‐
Fe
et

San Luis Resv.

0.0
0.5
1.0 87%

Diamond Valley

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

58% 93%

M
ill
io
n 
 A
cr
e‐
Fe
et

Lake Shasta

0.0
1.0
2.0
3.0
4.0

44% 68%

M
ill
io
n 
 A
cr
e‐
Fe
et

Lake Oroville

State Water Project, Colorado River, and MWD Reservoir Storage  
as of September 4, 2018

0

5

10

15

20

25

38% 52%M
ill
io
n 
 A
cr
e‐
Fe
et

Lake Mead

% of Capacity 
% of Historical Avg. 

0.0
0.5
1.0 52%
Lake Mathews



Final 2017:  ???

10% 10%

15% 15%
20% 20% 20% 20%

10% 10%

15%

30%

45%

60% 60% 60%

20% 20%

45%

60% 60%

85% 85% 85%

15% 15%
15% 20% 20%

30%
35% 35%

Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun.

SWP TABLE A ALLOCATION
FOR STATE WATER PROJECT CONTRACTORS

Water Year 2015 Water Year 2016 Water Year 2017 Water Year 2018 Water Year 2019

Final  2016:   60%
1.15 MAF to MWD

Final  2017:   85%
1.62 MAF to MWD

Final 2018:  35%
0.67 MAF to MWD

Final 2015:  20%
0.38 MAF to MWD

Final 2019:  ???



43%

147%

98%

5%24%

48%

76%

173%

127%

88%

107%

48%

144%

119%
103%

84%
98%

Average = 28 Inches

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

20182017201620152014201320122011201020092008200720062005200420032002

Sn
ow

 W
at
er
 E
qu

iv
al
en

t (
In
ch
es
)

Historical Northern California April 1st Peak Snow Water Equivalent



74%

108%

79%

54%

105%

78%

53%

132%

90%

112%

126%

78%

112%
120%

84%85%

51%

Average = 20 Inches

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

20182017201620152014201320122011201020092008200720062005200420032002

Sn
ow

 W
at
er
 E
qu

iv
al
en

t (
In
ch
es
)

Historical Colorado Basin April 15th Peak Snow Water Equivalent



Shortage Trigger = 1,075 ft

Spillway Elevation = 1,221 ft

Surplus Trigger = 1,145 ft

1,030

1,055

1,080

1,105

1,130

1,155

1,180

1,205

1,230

Jan 02 Jan 03 Jan 04 Jan 05 Jan 06 Jan 07 Jan 08 Jan 09 Jan 10 Jan 11 Jan 12 Jan 13 Jan 14 Jan 15 Jan 16 Jan 17 Jan 18 Jan 19 Jan 20

El
ev
at
io
n 
(F
t)

Lake Mead Levels:  Historical and Projected
projection per USBR 24‐Month Study

Historical Projected



Spillway Elevation = 3,715 ft

3,530

3,555

3,580

3,605

3,630

3,655

3,680

3,705

Jan 02 Jan 03 Jan 04 Jan 05 Jan 06 Jan 07 Jan 08 Jan 09 Jan 10 Jan 11 Jan 12 Jan 13 Jan 14 Jan 15 Jan 16 Jan 17 Jan 18 Jan 19 Jan 20

El
ev
at
io
n 
(F
t)

Lake Powell Levels:  Historical and Projected
projection per USBR 24‐Month Study

Historical Projected



Historic Peak July 1983 @ 1,225 Feet

Historical Low (Since Filled) June 2016 
@ 1,071 Feet

Shortage Trigger 1,075 Feet

Dead Pool 895 Feet

675

725

775

825

875

925

975

1,025

1,075

1,125

1,175

1,225

El
ev
at
io
n 
Ab

ov
e 
Se
a 
Le
ve
l (
Fe
et
)

Lake Mead Historical Water Elevation Level

Hoover Dam

Intake Tower



ND = New Development TI = Tenant Improvement  

WILL SERVE REQUEST STATUS REPORT 
(August 2018) 

All projects subject to previously issued Will Serve Letters are either Complete or the Will Serve Letter has Expired 
 (Will Serve Letters Expire One Year from Date of Issuance) 

 

 
Date 

Requested 

 
Applicant Project Description Type Location Status Date 

Issued 

9/14/17 Elite Hospitality, Inc. Home 2 Suites ND 23061 Ave. de la Carlota Issued 9/14/17 

11/14/17 Laguna Hills Investment Company Oakbrook Village Bldg. D ND 24231 Ave. de la Carlota Issued 12/19/17 

1/3/18 PS Business Parks, L.P. GameCraft Brewing TI 23301 Ave. de la Carlota Issued 3/6/18 

7/17/18 City of Laguna Woods A Place for Paws Dog Park ND 23301 Ridge Route Dr. Issued 7/25/18 

7/17/18 MPVCA Laguna LLC 24022 Calle de la Plata Fire Service  ND 24022 Calle de la Plata Dr. Issued 8/1/18 

       

       

       

       

       

       



EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

UNAUTHORIZED DISCHARGE SUMMARY

 YEAR OF 2018

DATE PUBLIC / SPILL LOCATION  REASON IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE

PREVIOUS 

MAINTENANCE POST-INCIDENT PREVENTIVE RWQCB DISCHARGED

SPILL VOLUME (PUBLIC)                

Gallons

SPILL VOLUME (PRIVATE)                        

Gallons REGULATORY NOTIFICATION

PRIVATE TYPE MEASURES CLEANING TV MEASURES TO CONTAINED SPILLED CONTAINED SPILLED AND RESPONSE

January 29, 2018 Private Sewer
23875 Syacmore 

Mission Viejo
Lateral Blockage

Ran Clean out in front yard, 

broke stoppage
N/A N/A

Collections returned 1/30/18 to TV 

line
9 Yard 18 

Notified OCEH, RWQCB-9, 

City of Mission Viejo

February No Spill to Report

March 24, 2018 Private Sewer
23632 El Toro Rd

Lake Forest
Lateral Blockage

Vactored spill, cleaned up 

parking lot, turned AMS off to 

two restaurants to help stop 

spill.

N/A N/A

Plumbers broke stoppage the next 

morning. Turned water on to two  

business's

9
Parking lot 

Storm Drain
15 55

Notified OCEH, RWQCB-9, 

City of Lake Forest

April 5, 2018 Private Sewer
24400 Muirlands 

Blvd. Lake Forest

Grease 

Blockage

Vactored spill, ran the line and 

broke up stoppage Notified 

Agencies

N/A N/A
Crew used 100 gallons of potable 

water to clean up area
8

Private Parking 

lot, storm drain
20 80

Notified OCEH, RWQCB-8, 

City of Lake Forest

April 28, 2018 Private Sewer
84 Calle Argon 

Laguna Woods

Lateral Blockage 

/ Roots

Put out sand bags to contain 

spilll. Vactor was brought in to 

jet the line and break up 

blockage

N/A N/A

Used about 200 gallons of potable 

water to wash down spill and  

vactored it up Informed cust. to TV 

the line

9
Private Parking 

lot
60 60

Notified OCEH, RWQCB-9, 

City of Laguna Woods

May No Spill to Report

June 28, 2018 Private Sewer
23645 El Toro Rd. 

Lake Forest
Clean out broken

Collections Crew Vacummed up 

standing water
N/A NA

Collections Crew Vacummed up 

standing water
9

Private Parking 

Lot
2 2 None

July No Spill to Report

August No Spill to Report

LEGEND 0 0 115 197

S.DC  = San Diego Creek RES. =  Residential                               

C.      =  Commercial     

A.C.   =  Aliso Creek        S.B.   =  Siphon

G.B.   =  Grease Blockage P.F.   =  Power Failure

S.D.    =  Storm Drain

R.S.  =  Rocks

C.W.D. = Calcium Water Deposits

B.P,  =  Broken Pipe

U.W.  =  Untreated  Water











































































































ETWD Public Education and Outreach Report 
September 27, 2018 
 

The following provides an update on the education and outreach ETWD is developing or 

has completed. 
 

Drought Log  

Customer Service continues to update the drought response log.  This includes phone 

calls, walk-ins and emails regarding water waste complaints and ETWD’s permanent 

mandatory conservation measure inquiries.  There were two water waste complaints for 

the month of August for excessive water use.  The report is being revised in the new 

Geoviewer program and should be available next month. 

Messaging/Materials 

The September bill message:  Fall has arrived.  Less water is required for your lawn and 

plants during the cooler months.  Please adjust your sprinkler timers for the cooler 

evening weather.  Sign-up for free periodic sprinkler adjustment reminder emails to 

homeowners and businesses at www.csans.net. 

OC Regional Water & Wastewater Mulit-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Draft Plan 

ETWD is soliciting public feedback on the OC Regional Water & Wastewater Multi-

Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan through the ETWD website and through social 

media.  ETWD staff has reviewed and is submitting comments on the draft plan.  

https://etwd.com/doing-business/hazard-mitigation-plan/. 

California Water Professional Appreciation Week 

Reference staff paper and resolution in Item 8 of the board package. 

Community Advisory Group 

The next Community Advisory Group meeting is November 8, 2018. 

Laguna Woods Village Television Channel 6 

Director Fred Adjarian is scheduled for LWV TV 6 on Friday, September 28, 2018.  His 

topics include the CA Water Fix and CA Water Professionals Week. 

ETWD Community Outreach Schedule 

September 29, 2018 

UC ANR Urban Landscape and Garden Expo – 7601 Irvine Blvd., Irvine, CA from 9 
a.m. to 2 p.m.  ETWD staff will host a booth and distribute drinking water with ETWD’s 
emergency water trailer.  See attached flyer. 

http://www.csans.net/
https://etwd.com/doing-business/hazard-mitigation-plan/


October 20, 2018 

South County Disaster Preparedness Expo – City of Mission Viejo Norman P. Murry 
Center.  ETWD staff will host a booth and distribute drinking water with ETWD’s 
emergency water trailer. 

October 25, 2018 

H20 for HOA’s – Laguna Hills Community Center.  ETWD along with MNWD, SMWD, 
SCWD, City of Laguna Hills, City of Laguna Niguel, City of Aliso Viejo, City of Mission 
Viejo and possibly a few others are hosting an H20 for HOA’s on October 25, 2018 from 
8:00 am. – 12:00 p.m. 

November 3, 2018 

Girl Scout Water Tour - ETWD will host the first Girl Scout Water Resources and 
Conservation Patch at the WRP on Saturday, November 3, 2018.  This event will be two 
hours and will include a very brief welcome/introduction, plant tour for 1 hour and 15 
minutes and 45 minute activity.  The Girl Scouts are very specific on the time frame of 2 
hours to complete the tour and patch. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by: Sherri Seitz  9/20/18 



Join Us at the 10th Annual Urban Landscape and Garden 
Education Expo 
Activities for the Whole Family! 
 
Explore the sustainable gardening practices at work in 
the University of California Cooperative Extension 
(UCCE) Demonstration Landscapes - including 
rainwater harvesting, low-water plantings, more 
efficient irrigation, composting, mulching and 
environmentally friendly pest control 
alternatives.  Docent-led tours will be offered 
throughout this event.  
 
Taste fresh, seasonal fruit grown at the UC ANR South 
Coast Research & Extension Center. Learn food 
preservation methods from UCCE Master Food 
Preservers.  
 
Kids – check out the youth garden for games and 
activities.   
 

View a demonstration on garden tool care, self-watering containers, or food preservation.  
 
Get answers to your landscape questions from UC experts, UCCE Master Gardeners, various industry 
exhibitors and local water agencies.  The ever popular “Doctors Are In” will be available throughout this 
event to answer any of your landscape, irrigation, and pest management questions.   
 
Grab a burger or hot dog, maybe a fresh-made donut hole, or two, in support of the 4-H Teen Council. 
 
Succulents and other plants available for sale – cash or checks only. 
 
This is a FREE event hosted by University of California ANR South Coast Research & Extension Center, 
Cooperative Extension – Orange County, with support from Irvine Ranch Water District, Mountain States 
Wholesale Nursery, and County of Orange Public Education Stormwater Program.  
  
Saturday, September 29, 2018 
9 am to 2 pm 
7601 Irvine Blvd., Irvine, CA 
Directions, updates and additional details at:  www.ucanr.org/sites/urbanwatermgmt 
 
It is the policy of the University of California (UC) and the UC Division of Agriculture & Natural Resources not to engage in discrimination against or harassment of any person in 
any of its programs or activities (Complete nondiscrimination policy statement can be found at  http://ucanr.edu/sites/anrstaff/files/215244.pdf) 
 
Inquiries regarding ANR’s nondiscrimination policies may be directed to UCANR, Affirmative Action Compliance & Title IX Officer, University of California, Agriculture and 
Natural Resources, 2801 Second Street, Davis, CA 95618, (530) 750-1397. 

http://www.ucanr.org/sites/urbanwatermgmt


  

  
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT  
CONSERVATION PROGRAM  

Monthly 
Status Report 

September 27, 2018 
 
 

REBATE PROGRAMS 
 
The following tables are the current device rebate amounts for MET, MWDOC and 
ETWD for the fiscal year 2018/19 from July 1st through June 30th. 
 

Select device purchases are eligible for rebates while devices meet eligibility 
requirements and while funding lasts.  The rebate process is completed online through 
www.ocwatersmart.com.  Customers without computer access can call 888-376-3314 to 
apply. 
 

1) Residential Rebate Program: 
 

Device MET 

Rebate 

MWDOC 

Grant 

ETWD 

Rebate 

Total Rebate 

(up to) 

High Efficiency Clothes 
Washer 
(CEE tier one or better) 

$85  $115 $200 

Premium High Efficiency 
Toilet (4 liter) 

$40  $60 $100 

Rotating Sprinkler 
Nozzles (min 30 per home) 

$2 ea  $1 $3 

Smart Irrigation Timer $80  $75 $155 
 

Turf Removal/Landscape 
Transformation (up to 

1,500 sq ft)* 

$1 sq. ft $0 - .50 
sq. ft. 

$.50 – 
1.00 sq. 

ft. 

$2 sq. ft. 

Soil Moisture Sensor 
System 
<1 Acre 
>1 Acre 

 
 

$80 
$35/station 

 
 
 

 
 

$75 

 
 

$155 
$35/station 

Rain Barrels – 1/1 – 6/30/17 

Cisterns 
(200 -500 gallon) 
(501-999 gallon) 
(1,000 gallon or more) 

$35 
 

$250 
$300 
$350 

 $15 $50 
 

$250 
$300 
$350 

Drip Irrigation (per kit and 

up to 5 kits) 
 $90 base 

plus $85 
 $175 per kit 

*Designated recycled water sites are not eligible for turf removal rebates.  MWDOC Grant funding 

based on availability. 

 
 
 

http://www.ocwatersmart.com/


  

2) Commercial Plumbing/Irrigation Devices Rebate Program: 
 

Device MET 

Rebate 

MWDOC 

Grant 

ETWD 

Rebate 

Total Rebate 

(up to) 

Premium High 
Efficiency Toilet  
(4 liter) 

$40   $40 

Multi-family 
Premium High 
Efficiency Toilet  
(4 liter) 

$40   $40 

Zero Water/Ultra 
Low Water Urinal 

$200   $200 

Plumbing Flow 
Control Valve 
(min. 10) 

$5   $5 

Smart Irrigation 
Timer (weather based 

or central computer) 

$35/station   $35/station 

Rotating Sprinkler 
Nozzles (minimum 

quantity of 15) 

$2  $1 $3 

Rotating Nozzles – 
Large Rotary 

$13   $13 

Turf 
Removal/Landscape 
Transformation (up to 

10,000 sq ft)* 
 

$1 sq. ft.   $1 sq. ft. 

Drip Irrigation (sq. 

ft.)(maximum 45,000 sq. 
ft) 

 $0.20 sq. 
ft. 

 $0.20 sq. ft. 

Soil Moisture Sensor 
System 

 
$35/station 

   
$35/station 

*Designated recycled water sites are not eligible for turf removal rebates. 
Additional commercial rebates available online at ocwatersmart.com.  MWDOC Grant funding 
based on availability. 

 
WATER USE EFFICIENCY PLAN UPDATE (WATER CONSERVATION PLAN) 
 
The District Water Budget-Based Tiered Conservation Rate Structure (WBBTCRS) 
pricing structure is the primary plan that gives customers the incentive needed to be 
efficient. The Plan efforts initially will concentrate on those customers continually in the 
Inefficient and Excessive Tiers (Tiers 3 and 4).  As of August 2018 year-to-date sales, 
residential accounted for 61% of the overall Tier 3 usage and dedicated irrigation 
accounted for 54% of Tier 4 usage. 
 
TOTAL CONSUMPTION COMPARISON TO EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (ET) FACTOR 
 
Included in this month’s Conservation Report is a chart comparing the current fiscal year 
2018/19 consumption and ET factor to the fiscal 2017/18 consumption and ET factor. 



  

The ET factor increased 11% from August 2017 when compared to August 2018.  There 
was a 10% increase in consumption reflected in August 2018. 
 
 
MWDOC’s—WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS SAVINGS AND 
IMPLEMENTATION REPORT / ETWD’s—WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAM 
SAVINGS REPORT 
 
The current MWDOC and ETWD’s Program Savings Reports follow this report. 
MWDOC’s report show all their client agencies current participation levels in water use 
efficiency programs and savings calculations. ETWD’s report show current District 
customer participation in water use efficiency programs along with savings provided in 
acre/feet per year, million gallons per year and avoided water costs based on those 
calculations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By: Sherri Seitz 
Date: September 18, 2018 



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2017-2018 344,078 310,451 369,472 251,478 278,939 243,123 235,364 218,623 186,920 201,067 264,239 295,506

2018-2019 331,098 341,819

17/18 ET 6.34 6.13 4.80 3.57 2.36 3.26 2.38 3.12 3.72 4.82 3.80 6.29

18/19 ET 7.42 6.85

% 96% 110% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

-1.00

1.00

3.00

5.00

7.00

9.00

11.00

13.00

15.00

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

ET
 F

ac
to

r

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F

Total Consumption Comparison



El Toro Water District
Water Use Efficiency Program Savings

Program

Program 

Start Year

Program/Total 

Years

Avoided Water Use 

Acre Feet/Annual

Avoided Water Use Million 

Gallons/Annual

Avoided Water Costs 

Based on MWDOC  Rate 

($2.16 CCF) Annual

High Efficiency Toilet (HET) 2005 13 47.0 15.3 $44,269

High Efficiency Clothes Washers--Residential 2001 17 23.4 7.6 $22,059

*SoCal Water Smart Commercial Plumbing Fixtures Rebate Program 

(ULFT's, HET's, Urinals, HECW, Cooling Tower Conductivity 

Controllers) 2002 16 46.9 15.3 $44,119

SmarTimer Program--Irrigation Timers 2004 14 194.9 63.5 $183,421

Rotating Nozzles Rebate Program 2007 11 124.9 40.7 $117,562

Turf Removal Program 2010 8 53.2 17.3 $50,038

**Water Smart Landscape Program - Ended 2016 1997 20 242.9 79.2 $228,594

Synthetic Turf Rebate Program-Ended 2011 2007 8 0.9 0.3 $847

***Ultra Low Flush Toilets (ULFT)--Ended 2009 1992 16 193.2 58.0 $167,487

Computer Controlled Irrigation System--Gate 11--Ended 2006 2001 6 8.9 2.9 $8,357

Totals 936.2 305.1 $881,088

* Formerly the Save Water Save a Buck - Commercial Rebate Program

** Formerly the Landscape Performance Certification Program

*** Correction on date and total

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

rev/ss 9/18/2018



Retrofits and Acre-Feet Water Savings for Program Activity

Interventions
Water 

Savings Interventions
Water 

Savings Interventions
Annual Water 

Savings[4]

 Cumulative 
Water 

Savings[4] 

High Efficiency Clothes Washer Program 2001 July-18 107 0.31 107 0.31 116,652 4,024                  30,371

Smart Timer Program - Irrigation Timers 2004 July-18 198 4.34 198 4.42 22,911 8,101                  54,890

Rotating Nozzles Rebate Program 2007 July-18 0 0.00 0 0.00 564,307 2,749                  19,631

Commercial Plumbing Fixture Rebate 
Program 2002 July-18 1,223 1.58 1,223 1.58 94,996 4,939                  49,305

Industrial Process/Water Savings Incentive 
Program (WSIP) 2006 July-18 0 0.00 0 0.00 30 640 3,082

Turf Removal Program[3] 2010 July-18 23,571 0.27 23,571 0.27 21,618,649 3,027                  13,308

High Efficiency Toilet (HET) Program 2005 July-18 12 0.04 12 0.51 60,115 2,222                  19,273

Water Smart Landscape Program [1] 1997 12,677 10,621                72,668

Home Water Certification Program 2013 312 7.339 15.266

Synthetic Turf Rebate Program 2007 685,438 96                       469

Ultra-Low-Flush-Toilet Programs  [2] 1992 363,926 13,452                162,561

Home Water Surveys [2] 1995 11,867 160                     1,708

Showerhead Replacements [2] 1991 270,604 1,667                  19,083

Total Water Savings All Programs 7               25,111                7                 23,822,484         51,705                446,364

(1)  Water Smart Landscape Program participation is based on the number of water meters receiving monthly Irrigation Performance Reports.
(2) Cumulative Water Savings Program To Date totals are from a previous Water Use Efficiency Program Effort.
(3) Turf Removal Interventions are listed as square feet.
[4] Cumulative & annual water savings represents both active program savings and passive savings that continues to be realized due to plumbing code changes over time.

 Overall Program 

Program 
Start Date

Retrofits 
Installed in

Orange County
Water Use Efficiency Programs Savings  

and

Implementation Report

Month Indicated
Program

Current Fiscal Year

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by Municipal Water District of Orange County 8/28/2018



Agency FY 12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY15/16 FY16/17 FY17/18 FY18/19  Total 

 Current FY Water 
Savings Ac/Ft 
(Cumulative) 

 Cumulative Water 
Savings across all 

Fiscal Years 

 15 yr. 
Lifecycle 
Savings 

Ac/Ft 

Brea 93            115          114          76            57          56          -        1,923             0.00 502.63 995             
Buena Park 105          106          91            76            54          50          -        1,568             0.00 396.78 811             
East Orange CWD RZ 10            8              8              8              3            1            -        193                0.00 53.71 100             
El Toro WD 134          121          111          65            47          50          1            1,572             0.00 398.49 813             
Fountain Valley 115          102          110          76            65          49          1            2,450             0.00 664.37 1,268          
Garden Grove 190          162          165          251          127        87          1            3,651             0.00 947.18 1,889          
Golden State WC 265          283          359          260          138        156        6            5,177             0.02 1,342.81 2,679          
Huntington Beach 334          295          319          225          180        141        4            8,391             0.01 2,310.57 4,342          
Irvine Ranch WD 1,763       1,664       1,882       1,521       1,373     1,203     38          25,907           0.11 6,404.71 13,405        
La Habra 82            114          87            66            53          48          1            1,376             0.00 347.36 712             
La Palma 34            25            34            29            10          14          1            473                0.00 120.32 245             
Laguna Beach CWD 38            37            39            32            19          20          -        952                0.00 253.44 493             
Mesa Water 114          86            89            113          80          54          3            2,575             0.01 707.73 1,332          
Moulton Niguel WD 442          421          790          688          575        527        23          10,471           0.07 2,551.15 5,418          
Newport Beach 116          92            95            66            61          51          -        2,675             0.00 749.46 1,384          
Orange 218          163          160          124          80          74          1            3,973             0.00 1,100.69 2,056          
Orange Park Acres -        -        -        12                  0.00 4.09 6                 

 San Juan Capistrano 76            73            92            63            33          33          1            1,493             0.00 392.02 773             
San Clemente 140          94            141          75            70          85          -        2,705             0.00 709.64 1,400          
Santa Margarita WD 553          662          792          466          367        274        21          9,811             0.06 2,474.24 5,076          
Seal Beach 31            29            38            23            9            17          -        619                0.00 162.93 320             
Serrano WD 13            10            26            8              11          8            -        365                0.00 100.05 189             
South Coast WD 89            79            68            43            44          36          -        1,620             0.00 423.46 838             
Trabuco Canyon WD 30            45            47            34            28          22          -        820                0.00 211.90 424             
Tustin 78            59            80            66            44          49          1            1,662             0.00 447.70 860             
Westminster 121          82            109          149          84          65          -        2,651             0.00 695.77 1,372          
Yorba Linda 181          167          156          123          56          67          4            3,823             0.01 1,055.68 1,978          

MWDOC Totals 5,365       5,094       6,002       4,726       3,668     3,237     107        98,908           0.31 25,528.86 19,109        

Anaheim 331          285          295          266          213        173        -        10,855           0.00 3,037.43 5,617          
Fullerton 200          186          211          165          107        99          -        3,794             0.00 998.43 1,963          
Santa Ana 163          131          132          259          141        124        -        3,095             0.00 806.18 1,601          

Non-MWDOC Totals 694          602          638          690          461        396        -        17,744           0.00 4,842.04 3,428          

Orange County Totals 6,059       5,696       6,640       5,416       4,129     3,633     107        116,652         0.31 30,370.91 22,537        

HIGH EFFICIENCY CLOTHES WASHERS INSTALLED BY AGENCY
through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by the Municipal Water District of Orange County 8/28/2018



Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm.
Brea 9 8 4 0 43 6 20 4 31 4 32 0 2 0 165 80 584.33
Buena Park 3 0 0 0 4 10 7 4 10 7 15 3 2 4 48 48 184.05
East Orange CWD RZ 2 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 11 1 6 0 0 0 31 1 26.81
El Toro WD 7 2 11 0 8 9 9 17 33 8 29 4 2 0 146 359 2,728.64
Fountain Valley 3 2 4 0 7 10 13 1 33 12 28 12 2 0 121 52 228.37
Garden Grove 5 2 9 0 10 14 13 11 28 0 27 2 5 0 133 40 208.43
Golden State WC 9 49 9 25 39 12 35 16 56 37 88 6 6 13 319 211 976.48
Huntington Beach 18 33 20 35 19 2 42 12 88 94 70 30 6 0 348 298 1,300.84
Irvine Ranch WD 414 135 71 59 67 310 239 207 344 420 416 78 34 0 2,219 2,364 13,079.68
La Habra 4 7 2 0 4 7 3 1 12 7 8 0 3 0 47 44 235.19
La Palma 1 0 2 0 2 0 3 2 1 0 5 0 1 0 16 2 8.29
Laguna Beach CWD 76 2 71 0 86 0 86 1 27 0 11 0 0 0 508 20 272.36
Mesa Water 10 2 15 2 17 28 36 12 149 41 49 0 5 0 372 154 855.93
Moulton Niguel WD 51 74 40 45 46 95 163 100 236 129 284 33 20 51 1,218 885 4,261.73
Newport Beach 242 26 168 75 11 9 28 43 30 12 24 0 0 0 1,062 409 2,940.58
Orange 20 24 13 9 18 31 51 13 69 10 61 13 8 0 354 178 1,075.03

 San Juan Capistrano 14 18 6 11 6 19 20 8 22 8 23 5 1 0 246 130 745.55
San Clemente 26 7 28 2 28 24 26 3 37 13 38 41 1 0 1,090 415 3,014.29
Santa Margarita WD 53 171 64 93 53 321 189 136 326 221 273 220 11 2 1,438 1,594 6,917.32
Santiago CWD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Seal Beach 1 0 1 36 1 12 2 2,446 2 4 5 0 0 0 12 2,502 6,804.34
Serrano WD 1 0 0 0 4 0 11 2 4 0 8 0 0 0 46 2 17.80
South Coast WD 13 16 8 4 104 73 9 11 7 0 15 2 0 0 293 214 1,307.18
Trabuco Canyon WD 6 0 2 0 6 1 16 50 13 3 20 0 2 0 125 157 1,062.61
Tustin 8 4 9 1 18 14 33 8 33 23 27 1 4 0 174 81 403.52
Westminster 1 1 2 0 13 17 7 1 17 12 22 0 2 0 89 44 231.71
Yorba Linda 20 0 12 5 32 2 61 27 72 71 68 10 6 0 412 193 985.15

MWDOC Totals 1,017 583 571 402 648 1,026 1,123 3,136 1,691 1,137 1,652 460 123 70 11,032 10,477 50,456.22

Anaheim 19 10 9 26 7 52 30 34 87 10 62 0 5 0 311 457 2,930.89
Fullerton 9 29 8 0 40 26 32 12 53 7 43 0 0 0 242 199 1,080.63
Santa Ana 8 19 7 8 9 27 22 26 15 3 11 0 0 0 93 100 422.18

Non-MWDOC Totals 36 58 24 34 56 105 84 72 155 20 116 0 5 0 646 756 4,433.70

Orange County Totals 1,053   641      595      436      704      1,131      1,207    3,208    1,846  1,157    1,768 460    128    70      11,678  11,233  54,890            

SMART TIMERS INSTALLED BY AGENCY
 through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

 Cumulative 
Water Savings 

across all Fiscal 
Years 

Total ProgramFY 13/14 FY16/17FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY18/19FY 12/13 FY17/18

Agency

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by the Municipal Water District of Orange County 8/28/2018



Large Large Large Large Large Large Large

Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm.Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm.

Brea 84 0 0 157 45 0 74 2,484 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 572 2,749 0                 61.57 
Buena Park 53 0 0 248 0 0 45 98 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 509 173 2,535               815.14 
East Orange 30 0 0 221 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 0 781 0 0                 20.63 
El Toro 56 3,288 0 1,741 28,714 0 730 4,457 0 55 242 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 3,260 43,348 890            1,374.09 
Fountain Valley 0 0 0 107 0 0 222 0 0 0 0 0 85 0 0 0 0 0 919 2,874 0                 19.34 
Garden Grove 80 0 0 88 50 0 110 0 0 55 98 0 52 0 0 0 0 0 855 254 0                 35.24 
Golden State 192 0 0 583 1,741 0 1,088 0 0 207 6,008 0 161 -495 0 0 0 0 3,480 10,837 0               289.77 
Huntington Beach 120 0 0 798 1,419 0 1,345 2,836 0 149 3,362 0 -37 0 0 0 0 0 4,001 9,135 2,681            1,351.83 
Irvine Ranch 11,010 4,257 0 1,421 632 0 1,989 5,047 0 335 9,511 0 356 -215 0 0 0 0 46,498 43,325 2,004            4,986.44 
La Habra 15 0 0 109 338 0 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,515 55,404 900               369.02 
La Palma 0 0 0 0 0 0 46 505 0 0 2,385 0 33 0 0 0 0 0 89 3,163 0                 38.08 
Laguna Beach 2,948 878 0 2,879 1,971 0 1,390 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,948 2,896 0               355.81 
Mesa Water 361 0 0 229 0 0 166 0 0 113 0 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 2,062 302 343               199.99 
Moulton Niguel 361 227 0 1,596 4,587 0 5,492 1,441 0 153 5,872 0 893 0 0 0 0 0 12,728 20,598 2,945            1,782.02 
Newport Beach 19,349 6,835 0 460 3,857 0 348 670 0 0 0 0 45 0 0 0 0 0 46,865 16,632 0            1,812.10 
Orange 245 120 0 304 668 0 631 91 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,133 5,853 0               118.53 
San Juan Capistrano 370 0 0 495 737 0 310 593 0 75 123 0 59 0 0 0 0 0 5,027 3,143 0               459.63 
San Clemente 415 5,074 0 326 0 0 426 0 0 0 0 0 146 0 0 0 0 0 10,062 11,948 1,343               828.92 
Santa Margarita 389 0 0 1,207 1,513 0 1,820 837 0 15 0 0 224 0 0 0 0 0 15,387 7,283 611               852.79 
Seal Beach 0 0 0 40 5,261 0 0 2,300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 155 7,561 0               157.83 
Serrano 105 0 0 377 0 0 695 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,907 291 0                 98.75 
South Coast 70 0 0 4,993 13,717 0 1,421 2,889 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,628 18,870 0               566.88 
Trabuco Canyon 0 0 0 56 0 0 130 0 0 0 4,339 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 729 4,339 0               149.82 
Tustin 329 0 0 408 0 0 317 386 0 65 -341 0 30 0 0 0 0 0 4,444 1,849 0               127.11 
Westminster 0 0 0 54 0 0 73 0 0 105 0 0 50 0 0 0 0 0 748 0 0                 12.37 
Yorba Linda 40 990 0 921 0 0 1,715 0 0 213 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,790 1,103 500               478.49 

MWDOC Totals 36,622 21,669 0 19,818 65,250 0 20,883 24,634 0 1,556 31,599 0 2,199 -710 0 0 0 0 194,823 274,867 14,752 17,362.20         

Anaheim 338 0 0 498 712 0 794 5,221 0 147 3,953 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,020 49,799 105            1,402.16 
Fullerton 107 0 0 684 1,196 0 521 7,015 0 65 3,034 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,910 11,309 1,484               719.68 
Santa Ana 86 2,533 0 310 0 0 0 1,420 0 0 1,106 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 859 5,752 0               146.67 

Non-MWDOC Totals 531 2,533 0 1,492 1,908 0 1,315 13,656 0 212 8,093 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,789 66,860 1,589 2,268.51           

Orange County Totals 37,153 24,202 0 21,310 67,158 0 22,198 38,290 0 1,768 39,692 0 2,199 -710 0 0 0 0 202,612 341,727 16,341 19,630.71         

ROTATING NOZZLES INSTALLED BY AGENCY
 through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

Agency

Total Program  Cumulative Water 
Savings

across all Fiscal 
Years 

Small

FY 18/19

Small

FY 13/14

SmallSmall

FY 15/16

Small

FY 16/17

Small

FY 14/15 FY 17/18

Small

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by Municipal Water District of Orange County 8/28/2018



Brea 234 0 10 91 734 242 0 1,607 586
Buena Park 5 23 56 591 133 49 0 2,538 1,363
East Orange CWD RZ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
El Toro WD 0 212 6 268 35 737 717 2,516 750
Fountain Valley 0 0 1 249 0 895 0 1,767 755
Garden Grove 4 1 167 676 410 0 0 2,451 1,805
Golden State WC 0 1 0 1,008 53 93 0 2,958 2,278
Huntington Beach 104 144 7 783 641 10 0 2,964 1,942
Irvine Ranch WD 1,090 451 725 11,100 5,958 1,599 0 29,465 9,779
La Habra 0 0 0 340 42 0 0 925 664
La Palma 0 0 0 0 509 0 0 675 159
Laguna Beach CWD 0 27 0 0 0 0 0 446 373
Mesa Water 6 0 79 661 782 0 0 4,254 2,545
Moulton Niguel WD 0 0 3 413 281 506 0 1,783 1,032
Newport Beach 0 0 566 0 0 0 0 1,834 1,550
Orange 1 271 81 275 2,851 458 0 5,488 2,277
San Juan Capistrano 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 260 457
San Clemente 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 432 444
Santa Margarita WD 0 0 2 90 743 598 506 2,054 368
Santiago CWD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Seal Beach 0 0 0 0 184 278 0 816 519
Serrano WD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
South Coast WD 148 0 382 0 0 0 0 1,320 646
Trabuco Canyon WD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 18
Tustin 0 0 75 358 212 2 0 1,404 1,005
Westminster 1 28 0 146 177 25 0 1,163 1,191
Yorba Linda 1 0 0 226 84 338 0 933 684

MWDOC Totals 1,594 1,172 2,161 17,275 13,829 5,830 1,223 70,064 33,187

Anaheim 165 342 463 3,072 309 1,808 0 15,561 8,466
Fullerton 94 0 178 476 621 274 0 3,052 2,015
Santa Ana 16 17 5 1,293 238 582 0 6,319 5,637

Non-MWDOC Totals 275 359 646 4,841 1,168 2,664 0 24,932 16,119

Orange County Totals 1,869 1,531 2,807 22,116 14,997 8,494 1,223 94,996 49,305

INSTALLED BY AGENCY
through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

COMMERCIAL PLUMBING FIXTURES REBATE PROGRAM[1]

[ ] g y y
Family 4-Liter HETs, Zero Water Urinals, High Efficiency Clothes Washers, Cooling Tower Conductivity 
Controllers, Ph Cooling Tower Conductivity Controllers, Flush Valve Retrofit Kits, Pre-rinse Spray heads, 
Hospital X-Ray Processor Recirculating Systems, Steam Sterilizers, Food Steamers, Water Pressurized Brooms, 
Laminar Flow Restrictors, and Ice Making Machines. 

Agency

Cumulative Water 
Savings across all 

Fiscal Years

FY
13/14

FY
12/13 Totals

FY
14/15

FY
17/18

FY
15/16

FY
16/17

FY
18/19

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by the Municipal Water District of Orange County 8/28/2018



Agency FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19
Overall Program 

Interventions
Annual Water 

Savings[1]

Cumulative 
Water Savings 

across all Fiscal 
Years[1]

Brea 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Buena Park 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 54 519
East Orange 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
El Toro 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fountain Valley 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 23 33
Garden Grove 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 1
Golden State 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 31
Huntington Beach 0 2 0 1 2 0 1 0 6 180 626
Irvine Ranch 1 1 1 0 2 1 0 0 9 115 670
La Habra 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 1
La Palma 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Laguna Beach 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mesa Water 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Moulton Niguel 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Newport Beach 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 21 78
Orange 0 0 0 0 1 2 1 0 5 97 530
San Juan Capistrano 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
San Clemente 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Santa Margarita 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Seal Beach 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Serrano 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
South Coast 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 134 191
Trabuco Canyon 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tustin 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Westminster 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Yorba Linda 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MWDOC Totals 1 3 1 2 9 5 2 0 29 628 2677

Anaheim 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fullerton 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Santa Ana 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 11 405

OC Totals 1 3 1 2 10 5 2 0 30 640 3082

[1] Acre feet of savings determined during a one year monitoring period.

If monitoring data is not available, the savings estimated in agreement is used.

INDUSTRIAL PROCESS/WATER SAVINGS INCENTIVE PROGRAM
Number of Projects by Agency



Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm.

Brea 7,605 0 5,697 0 71,981 30,617 118,930 404,411 8,354 479 9,853 27,234 0 0 225,817 472,207                    405.62 
Buena Park 0 0 0 0 11,670 1,626 77,127 16,490 3,741 0 4,586 0 1,230 0 98,354 18,116                      64.76 
East Orange 0 0 1,964 0 18,312 0 27,844 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48,120 0                      30.06 
El Toro 4,680 72,718 4,582 0 27,046 221,612 63,546 162,548 13,139 48,019 7,273 42,510 561 0 125,550 547,407                    425.36 
Fountain Valley 682 7,524 4,252 0 45,583 5,279 65,232 0 3,679 0 8,631 0 699 0 130,058 12,803                      89.26 
Garden Grove 4,534 0 8,274 0 67,701 22,000 177,408 49,226 11,504 0 4,487 0 0 0 287,921 117,403                    281.06 
Golden State 31,813 3,200 32,725 8,424 164,507 190,738 310,264 112,937 0 0 0 0 0 0 581,902 346,272                    636.92 
Huntington Beach 9,219 12,437 20,642 0 165,600 58,942 305,420 270,303 9,560 21,534 14,236 6,032 528 0 553,636 421,737                    628.19 
Irvine Ranch 32,884 32,384 36,584 76,400 234,905 317,999 782,844 2,675,629 231,483 46,725 86,893 61,037 3,786 0 1,421,252 3,224,634                 2,673.43 
La Habra 0 0 0 0 14,014 1,818 49,691 72,164 0 0 3,003 0 0 0 66,708 90,019                      99.21 
La Palma 0 0 0 0 4,884 0 10,257 59,760 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,141 59,760                      42.63 
Laguna Beach 2,664 1,712 4,586 226 13,647 46,850 47,614 0 3,059 0 589 0 0 0 75,670 48,788                      82.86 
Mesa Water 10,667 0 22,246 0 131,675 33,620 220,815 106,896 4,173 77,033 17,373 77,785 1,360 0 415,086 295,334                    396.89 
Moulton Niguel 11,538 84,123 14,739 40,741 314,250 1,612,845 889,748 1,059,279 220,749 0 98,271 0 4,221 0 1,558,955 2,840,054                 2,758.25 
Newport Beach 3,548 2,346 894 0 33,995 65,277 76,675 375,404 2,924 0 5,938 6,499 0 0 127,428 449,526                    337.75 
Orange 15,951 8,723 11,244 0 120,093 281,402 289,990 106,487 12,847 2,366 11,956 0 1,315 0 476,367 398,978                    561.14 
San Clemente 16,062 13,165 18,471 13,908 90,349 1,137 215,249 438,963 4,267 0 33,083 7,098 0 0 398,983 474,271                    523.35 
San Juan Capistrano 29,544 27,156 12,106 0 101,195 32,366 197,290 143,315 2,624 40,748 0 0 0 0 365,415 347,277                    509.68 
Santa Margarita 10,151 11,600 17,778 48,180 211,198 514,198 534,048 550,420 17,010 28,094 62,706 25,000 2,421 0 861,759 1,194,453                 1,263.24 
Santiago 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0                           -   
Seal Beach 3,611 0 0 0 15,178 504 17,349 15,911 1,234 0 752 0 0 0 38,124 16,415                      33.87 
Serrano 0 0 2,971 0 41,247 0 127,877 4,403 5,450 0 555 0 2,000 0 180,100 4,403                    108.17 
South Coast 9,429 4,395 15,162 116,719 84,282 191,853 181,102 128,290 14,967 0 13,319 7,806 0 0 325,067 465,387                    531.26 
Trabuco Canyon 1,542 22,440 2,651 0 14,771 0 42,510 88,272 1,465 0 4,788 0 0 0 67,999 110,712                    111.56 
Tustin 9,980 0 1,410 0 71,285 14,137 232,697 33,362 11,173 0 16,926 0 0 0 343,471 47,499                    229.18 
Westminster 0 0 0 0 14,040 34,631 71,833 23,902 11,112 0 10,033 0 0 0 107,018 58,533                      95.16 
Yorba Linda 0 0 0 0 112,136 12,702 360,279 116,985 19,420 0 9,529 3,696 5,450 0 518,163 133,383                    381.57 

MWDOC Totals 216,104 303,923 238,978 304,598 2,195,544 3,692,153 5,493,639 7,015,357 613,934 264,998 424,780 264,697 23,571 0 9,414,064 12,195,371               13,300.42 

Anaheim 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0                           -   
Fullerton 0 0 0 9,214 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,214                        6.45 
Santa Ana 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0                           -   

Non-MWDOC Totals 0 0 0 9,214 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,214 6.45

Orange County Totals 216,104 303,923 238,978 313,812 2,195,544 3,692,153 5,493,639 7,015,357 613,934 264,998 424,780 264,697 23,571 0 9,414,064 12,204,585 13,307

TURF REMOVAL BY AGENCY[1]

[1]Installed device numbers are listed as square feet

through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

 Cumulative Water 
Savings across all 

Fiscal Years 
Agency

FY 15/16 Total ProgramFY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19



Agency

FY 12-13 FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 Total
 Cumulative Water 
Savings across all 

Fiscal Years 

Brea 0 38 146 154 4 6 0 456 116.31
Buena Park 0 96 153 112 13 3 0 687 215.26
East Orange CWD RZ 0 13 26 24 0 0 0 86 24.09
El Toro WD 133 218 869 264 12 6 2 2,045 611.53
Fountain Valley 0 41 132 220 7 9 0 832 278.72
Garden Grove 0 63 350 363 7 4 0 1,488 474.87
Golden State WC 2 142 794 512 9 11 0 2,801 877.48
Huntington Beach 0 163 1,190 628 4 3 0 2,904 821.99
Irvine Ranch WD 1,449 810 1,777 2,798 638 239 9 17,157 6,024.11
Laguna Beach CWD 0 45 112 81 1 4 0 392 118.10
La Habra 0 37 94 83 5 1 0 591 215.86
La Palma 0 21 59 52 4 2 0 224 66.01
Mesa Water 0 147 162 162 7 3 0 1,621 650.09
Moulton Niguel WD 0 400 2,497 1,939 49 40 1 5,731 1,344.36
Newport Beach 0 49 168 243 11 6 0 731 208.28
Orange 1 142 978 416 17 10 0 2,189 608.81
San Juan Capistrano 0 35 140 202 3 9 0 532 139.76
San Clemente 0 72 225 246 11 6 0 878 255.87

Santa Margarita WD 0 528 997 1,152 114 34 0 3,343 793.90

Seal Beach 2 17 50 69 -1 0 0 857 421.72
Serrano WD 0 2 40 55 3 0 0 121 28.68
South Coast WD 64 102 398 235 11 7 0 1,028 266.55
Trabuco Canyon WD 0 10 108 169 2 3 0 342 77.41
Tustin 0 64 132 201 12 10 0 1,516 589.78
Westminster 0 35 161 359 3 4 0 1,335 460.36
Yorba Linda WD 0 40 280 379 12 8 0 1,259 388.69

MWDOC Totals 1,651 3,330 12,038 11,118 958 428 12 51,146 16,078.60

Anaheim 0 156 1,188 614 70 19 0 5,884 2,192.98
Fullerton 0 61 293 286 14 9 0 1,064 313.92
Santa Ana 0 33 602 293 20 0 0 2,021 687.54

Non-MWDOC Totals 0 250 2,083 1,193 104 28 0 8,969 3,194.44

Orange County Totals 1,651 3,580 14,121 12,311 1,062 456 12 60,115 19,273.04

HIGH EFFICIENCY TOILETS (HETs) INSTALLED BY AGENCY

through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by Municipal Water District of Orange County 8/28/2018



I hereby certify that the following Agenda was posted at least 72 
hours prior to the time of the Board Meeting so noticed below, at 
the usual agenda posting location of the South Orange County  
Wastewater Authority [SOCWA] and at www.socwa.com. 
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting of The  
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors 
 

Thursday, September 6, 2018 
8:30 a.m. 

 
 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING ROOM IS LOCATED AT 34156 DEL OBISPO STREET, DANA POINT, CA. THE ROOM 

IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE.  IF YOU REQUIRE ANY SPECIAL DISABILITY RELATED ACCOMMODATIONS (I.E. ACCESS TO AN 

AMPLIFIED SOUND SYSTEM, ETC.), PLEASE CONTACT THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY’S 

SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT 949-234-5421 AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING.  
THIS AGENDA CAN BE OBTAINED IN ALTERNATE FORMAT UPON WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY 

WASTEWATER AUTHORITY SECRETARY AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING. 
 

AGENDA ATTACHMENTS AND OTHER WRITINGS THAT ARE DISCLOSABLE PUBLIC RECORDS DISTRIBUTED TO ALL, OR A 

MAJORITY OF, THE MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 

CONNECTION WITH A MATTER SUBJECT TO DISCUSSION OR CONSIDERATION AT AN OPEN MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS ARE AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION IN THE AUTHORITY OFFICE, 34156 DEL OBISPO STREET, DANA 

POINT, CA (“AUTHORITY OFFICE”).  IF SUCH WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED TO MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

LESS THAN SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE RECEPTION AREA OF 

THE AUTHORITY OFFICE AT THE SAME TIME AS THEY ARE DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, EXCEPT THAT, IF 

SUCH WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO, OR DURING, THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING ROOM. 
 

1.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

2.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Members of the public may address the board regarding an item on the agenda or may 

reserve this opportunity during the meeting at the time item is discussed by the board.  There 

will be a three-minute limit for public comments. 
 

4.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A.  Minutes of Board of Directors Meeting(s) 
 

Board of Directors Meeting July 12, 2018 .......................................................................... 1 

Board of Directors Meeting June 15, 2018 ......................................................................... 8 

Board of Directors Meeting April 26, 2018 ......................................................................... 34 

 

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve subject Minutes. 

 

http://www.socwa.com/


Agenda 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting  
September 6, 2018 

   

 

 

SOCWA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
34156 Del Obispo Street ▪ Dana Point, CA 92629 ▪ 949-234-5400 

 

B.  Minutes of Finance Committee Meeting(s) 
 

     Finance Committee Meeting May 24, 2018 ........................................................................ 48 

     Finance Committee Meeting May 16, 2018 ........................................................................ 51 

     Finance Committee Meeting March 30, 2018 ..................................................................... 55 
 

 ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file subject Minutes. 
 

C.  Financial Matters 
 

      1)  Monthly Financials Report for May 2018 ...................................................................... 58 
 

 a)  Summary of Disbursements for May 2018 – Exhibit A ............................................ 60 

 b)  Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment – Exhibit B ..................................... 61 

 c)  Schedule of Cash and Investments – Exhibit C ....................................................... 62 

 d)  Capital Schedule – Exhibit D .................................................................................. 63 

                       Capital Projects - Graph – Exhibit D1 ..................................................................... 64 

 e)  Budget vs. Actual Expenses  

      Operations and Environmental Summary – Exhibit E1 ............................................ 65  

      Residual Engineering, after transfer to Capital – Exhibit E2 .................................... 71 

      Administration – Exhibit E3 ..................................................................................... 72 

      Information Technology (IT) – Exhibit E4 ................................................................ 73 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to ratify the summary of 

Disbursements for the period from May 1, 2018 through May 

31, 2018, totaling $1,728,250, and to receive and file the May 

2018 Financial Reports as submitted.   
 

2)  Monthly Financials Report for June 2018 (Preliminary Budget vs. Actual 

Expenses and Capital Expenditures) ....................................................................... 74 
 

a)  Summary of Disbursements for June 2018 – Exhibit A ........................................... 76 

 b)  Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment – Exhibit B ..................................... 77 

 c)  Schedule of Cash and Investments – Exhibit C ....................................................... 78 

 d)  Capital Schedule – Exhibit D .................................................................................. 79 

                       Capital Projects - Graph – Exhibit D1 ..................................................................... 80 

 e)  Budget vs. Actual Expenses  

      Operations and Environmental Summary – Exhibit E1 ............................................ 81  

      Residual Engineering, after transfer to Capital – Exhibit E2 .................................... 87 

      Administration – Exhibit E3 ..................................................................................... 88 

      Information Technology (IT) – Exhibit E4 ................................................................ 89 

 f)  Preliminary FY 2018-19 Actual Fringe Pool and Fringe Rate – Exhibit F ................. 90 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to ratify the summary of 

Disbursements for the period from June 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2018, totaling $2,432,134, and to receive and file the June 

2018 Financial Reports as submitted. 



Agenda 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting  
September 6, 2018 

   

 

 

SOCWA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
34156 Del Obispo Street ▪ Dana Point, CA 92629 ▪ 949-234-5400 

 

D.  Operational Reports 
 

 1)  Monthly Operations Report – June 2018................................................................. 91 

 2)  Ocean Outfall Discharges ....................................................................................... 103 

 3)  Beach/Ocean Monitoring Report ............................................................................. 133 

 4)  Recycled Water Report ........................................................................................... 134 

 5)  Pretreatment Report (June, July & August 2018) .................................................... 138 

 

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file the June 2018 Operations 
Report.    

 

 1)  Monthly Operations Report – July 2018 (distributed at the meeting) 

 2)  Ocean Outfall Discharges (distributed at the meeting) 

 3)  Beach/Ocean Monitoring Report ............................................................................. 143 

 4)  Recycled Water Report ........................................................................................... 164 

 

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file the July 2018 
Operations Report. 

  

E.  Capital Improvement Program 
  

Status Report(s) ................................................................................................................ 167 

 

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file subject reports. 
  

      F.  Project Committee No. 15 
 

          1) Approval of Minutes 
  

            Project Committee No. 15 Meeting June 14, 2018 ............................................................ 180 

Project Committee No. 15 Meeting May 18, 2018 .............................................................. 182 

Project Committee No. 15 Meeting May 14, 2018 .............................................................. 184 

Project Committee No. 15 Meeting May 11, 2018 .............................................................. 186 

Project Committee No. 15 Meeting April 19, 2018 ............................................................. 188 

Project Committee No. 15 Meeting April 10, 2018 ............................................................. 190 

Project Committee No. 15 Meeting April 9, 2018 ............................................................... 192 

 

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file subject Minutes. 
 

G.  Project Committee No. 17 
 

Change Order – Pacific Hydrotech Construction Contract ................................................. 194 

 

ACTION   The PC17 Board will be requested to approve Change Orders 

35  through 37 to the construction contract with Pacific 

Hydrotech for the Regional Treatment Plant Cogeneration and 

Switchgear Upgrade Project. 



Agenda 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting  
September 6, 2018 

   

 

 

SOCWA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
34156 Del Obispo Street ▪ Dana Point, CA 92629 ▪ 949-234-5400 

 

5.  ENGINEERING MATTERS 
 

A. Award of Engineering Services – Innovative Biosolids Technologies Engineering 

Support [PC 2 & 17] ..................................................................................................... … 197 
   

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve the award of the 

engineering support services contract to Carollo Engineers at 

a fee of $99,948. 
 

B. Award of Contract – Asset Register Pilot Project [PC 2 & 17] ............................................ 204 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve the award of 

engineering services contract to Hazen & Sawyer at a fee of 

$89,728. 
 

C.  Award of Construction Contract - Aliso AWMA Road Embankment and Roadway 

Storm Repairs Project ................................................................................................. …..209 
 

ACTION The board will be requested to approve the award of 

construction services contract to Pascal & Ludwig at a fee of 

$92,363. 
   

6.  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORTS 
 

A.  Resolution No. 2018-10 – Integrated Regional Watershed Management Plan (IRWM) ...... 212 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve Resolution No. 2018-

10 adopting the 2018 South Orange County Integrated 
Regional Watershed Management Plan (IRWM) in continued 

coordination with the SOCWMA IRWM Group as a Member 

Agency and to qualify SOCWA for Proposition 1 IRWM Grant 

funds, should project developed and submitted by SOCWA 

meet IRWM project criteria. 
 

B.  Resolution No. 2018-11 – Adopting Procedures Implementing the California Environmental  

Quality ACT (CEQA) .......................................................................................................... 216  
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve Resolution No. 2018-

11 adopting the Procedures Implementing the California 
Environmental Quality Act. 

 

C.  Resolution No. 2018-12 – Adopting Government Claims Act Rules and Regulation .......... 230 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve Resolution No. 2018-

12 adopting the Government Claims Act Rules and 
Regulations. 

 

 



Agenda 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting  
September 6, 2018 

   

 

 

SOCWA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
34156 Del Obispo Street ▪ Dana Point, CA 92629 ▪ 949-234-5400 

 

D.  Unfunded Pension Liability (UAL) Distribution by Member Agencies Results and 

 Recommendation .............................................................................................................. 237 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve member agency 

Distribution Percentages, Timing and Future Application (as 

detailed in staff report). 
 

E.  Monthly Progress Report on State Audit Recommendations  ............................................. 243 
 

ACTION  The Board will be requested to receive and file the Monthly Progress Report 
on State Audit Recommendations – State Audit Response Schedule.  

 

F.  Update on Capital Project Funds on Deposit for Fiscal Year 2018-19 [PC15] 
 

 ACTION Information and discussion item. 

 

G.  General Manager’s Status Report ..................................................................................... 246 
  

 ACTION  The Board will review the General Manager’s Status Report:  
 

• Board Questions    

• Receive and file 
 

H.  CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of section 
54956: 1 potential case 

 
OTHER MATTERS 
 
     A.  Open discussion or items received too late to be agendized. 

 

Note: Determine the need to take action on the following item(s) introduced 

by the General Manager which arose subsequent to the agenda being 

posted. 

 

[Adoption of this action requires a two-thirds vote of the Board, or if 

less than two-this are present an unanimous vote.] 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
THE NEXT REGULAR SOCWA BOARD MEETING WILL HELD ON 

October 4, 2018 at 8:30 a.m. 







NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

September 19, 2018 
1:30 p.m. 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater 
Authority (SOCWA) Finance Committee was called by the Chairman to be held on September 
19, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. at the SOCWA Administrative Office located at 34156 Del Obispo Street, 
Dana Point, California.  

THE SOCWA MEETING ROOM IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE.  IF YOU REQUIRE ANY 

SPECIAL DISABILITY RELATED ACCOMMODATIONS (I.E., ACCESS TO AN AMPLIFIED 

SOUND SYSTEM, ETC.) PLEASE CONTACT THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER 

AUTHORITY SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT (949) 234-5421 AT LEAST TWENTY-FOUR (24) 
HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING.  THIS AGENDA CAN BE OBTAINED IN 

ALTERNATE FORMAT UPON WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY 

WASTEWATER AUTHORITY’S SECRETARY AT LEAST TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS PRIOR 

TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING.  

AGENDA EXHIBITS AND OTHER WRITINGS THAT ARE DISCLOSABLE PUBLIC RECORDS 

DISTRIBUTED TO ALL, OR A MAJORITY OF, THE MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH ORANGE 

COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY FINANCE COMMITTEE IN CONNECTION WITH A 

MATTER SUBJECT TO DISCUSSION OR CONSIDERATION AT AN OPEN MEETING OF THE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE ARE AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION IN THE AUTHORITY 

OFFICE, 34156 DEL OBISPO STREET, DANA POINT, CA (“AUTHORITY OFFICE”).  IF 

SUCH WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED TO MEMBERS OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE LESS 

THAN TWENTY-FOUR (24) PRIOR TO THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE 

RECEPTION AREA OF THE AUTHORITY OFFICE AT THE SAME TIME AS THEY ARE 

DISTRIBUTED TO THE FINANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS, EXCEPT THAT, IF SUCH 

WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO, OR DURING, THE MEETING, THEY 

WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING ROOM. 

AGENDA 

1. Call Meeting to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Comments

THOSE WISHING TO ADDRESS THE FINANCE COMMITTEE ON ANY ITEM LISTED ON THE

AGENDA SHOULD SUBMIT A “REQUEST TO BE HEARD” FORM TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD

BEFORE THE PRESIDING OFFICER ANNOUNCES THAT AGENDA ITEM.  YOUR NAME WILL BE

CALLED TO SPEAK AT THAT TIME.



NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING – FINANCE COMMITTEE 
September 19, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

4. Approval of Minutes

a) Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of December 6, 2017

Recommendation:   Finance Committee approval of minutes as submitted 

5. Unfunded Pension Liability (UAL) Update from Moulton Niguel Water District

Recommendation:   Information Item

6. FY 2016-17 Use Audit (Final)

Recommendation:

The Finance Committee to recommend to the Board of Directors approval of the Use Audit
and collection from and payments to SOCWA member agencies consistent with the results of
the FY 2016-17 Use Audit as presented.

7. FY 2017-18 Use Audit (Preliminary)

Recommendation:  Information Item

8. FY 2017-18 Cash Roll Forward (Preliminary)

Recommendation:  Finance Committee discussion and staff direction

9. Distribution of FY2017-18 Legal Expenditures

Recommendation:

The Finance Committee to recommend to the Board of Directors to Receive and File.

10. Adjournment

I hereby certify that the foregoing Notice was personally emailed or mailed to each member
of the SOCWA Finance Committee at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled time of the Special
Meeting referred to above.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Notice was posted at least 24 hours prior to the time of the
above-referenced Finance Committee at the usual agenda posting location of the South
Orange County Wastewater Authority and at www.socwa.com.

Dated this 14th day of September 2018. 

________________________________________________________________ 
     Betty C. Burnett, General Manager/Secretary 

 SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 



1 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

Jointly with the 
PLANNING & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 

September 4, 2018, 8:30 a.m. 
MWDOC Conference Room 101 

 
P&O Committee:     Staff:  R. Hunter, K. Seckel, J. Berg, 
Director Osborne, Chair     H. De La Torre, K. Davanaugh 
Director Tamaribuchi 
Director Yoo Schneider 
 
Ex Officio Member:  Director Barbre 
 

 
MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board 
of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion.  Each 
Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate 
committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be 
adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those 
Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the 
Committee should be made at this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate action 
on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- Pursuant to 
Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session agenda items 
and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be 
available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 Ward Street, 
Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these public records 
will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEM 
 
1. STATUS OF THE ORANGE COUNTY WATER RELIABILITY STUDY 2018 

UPDATE 
 
2. STATUS UPDATE ON MWDOC’S PROPOSED WATER RELIABILITY PILOT 

PROGRAM – IRWD’S STRAND RANCH WATER BANK 
 
3. UPDATE RE WATER LOSS CONTROL SHARED SERVICES BUSINESS PLAN 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS (The following items are for informational purposes only – 
background information is included in the packet.  Discussion is not necessary unless a 
Director requests.) 
 
4. METROPOLITAN’S ASSESSED VALUATION FOR MWDOC AND ORANGE 



P&O Committee Meeting  September 4, 2018 
 

2 

COUNTY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 
5. STATUS REPORTS 
 

a. Ongoing MWDOC Reliability and Engineering/Planning Projects 
b. WEROC 
c. Water Use Efficiency Projects 
d. Water Use Efficiency Programs Savings and Implementation Report 

 
6. REVIEW OF ISSUES RELATED TO CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS, WATER USE 

EFFICIENCY, FACILITY AND EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE, WATER STORAGE, 
WATER QUALITY, CONJUNCTIVE USE PROGRAMS, EDUCATION, DISTRICT 
FACILITIES, and MEMBER-AGENCY RELATIONS 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly 

listed for action, may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those 
items designated for Board action, the Committee reviews the items and makes a 
recommendation for final action to the full Board of Directors; final action will be taken by the 
Board of Directors.  Agendas for Committee and Board meetings may be obtained from the 
District Secretary.  Members of the public are advised that the Board consideration process 
includes consideration of each agenda item by one or more Committees indicated on the Board 
Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the Board meeting considering an item 
consequently is advised. 

 
 Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 

modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public 
meeting by telephoning Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to 
Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A 
telephone number or other contact information should be included so that District staff may 
discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation 
should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide the 
requested accommodation. 



1 

WORKSHOP MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITH MET DIRECTORS 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
18700 Ward Street, Board Room, Fountain Valley, California 

September 5, 2018, 8:30 a.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ROLL CALL 
  

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION/COMMENTS 
At this time members of the public will be given an opportunity to address the Board concerning items 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Members of the public may also address the Board 
about a particular Agenda item at the time it is considered by the Board and before action is taken. 
 
The Board requests, but does not require, that members of the public who want to address the Board 
complete a voluntary “Request to be Heard” form available from the Board Secretary prior to the meeting. 
 

ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
Determine need and take action to agendize item(s), which arose subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda.  (ROLL CALL VOTE: Adoption of this recommendation requires a two-thirds vote of the Board 
members present or, if less than two-thirds of the Board members are present, a unanimous vote.) 

 

ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 
Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these 
public records will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at 
http://www.mwdoc.com. 

(NEXT RESOLUTION NO. 2075) 

 

 MICHAEL CAMACHO (INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY) COMMENTS 

REGARDING METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 

CHAIRMANSHIP 

 

PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

1. INPUT OR QUESTIONS ON MET ISSUES FROM THE MEMBER AGENCIES/MET 

DIRECTOR REPORTS REGARDING MET COMMITTEE PARTICIPATION 
 

Recommendation:  Receive input and discuss the information. 
 

2. PRESENTATION BY MET RE SANTA ANA REGIONAL CONSERVATION 

CONJUNCTIVE USE PROGRAM (SARCCUP)  

 
Recommendation:  Receive input and discuss the information. 

http://www.mwdoc.com/


Workshop Board Agenda September 5, 2018 

2 

 

3. CALIFORNIA WATERFIX ACTIVITIES UPDATE  

 
Recommendation: Review and discuss the information presented. 

 

4. MET ITEMS CRITICAL TO ORANGE COUNTY (The following items are for 
informational purposes only – a write up on each item is included in the packet.  
Discussion is not necessary unless requested by a Director) 

 
a. MET’s Water Supply Conditions 
b. MET’s Finance and Rate Issues 
c. Colorado River Issues 
d. Bay Delta/State Water Project Issues 
e. MET’s Ocean Desalination Policy and Potential Participation by MET in the 

Doheny Desalination Project and in the Huntington Beach Ocean 
Desalination Project (Poseidon Desalination Project) 

f. Orange County Reliability Projects 
g. East Orange County Feeder No. 2 
h. South County Projects 

 
Recommendation: Discuss and provide input on information relative to the MET 

items of critical interest to Orange County. 
 

5. METROPOLITAN (MET) BOARD AND COMMITTEE AGENDA DISCUSSION 

ITEMS  
 

a. Summary regarding August Board Meeting 
b. Review items of significance for MET Board and Committee Agendas 

 
 Recommendation: Review and discuss the information presented. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Note: Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Maribeth 
Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 
20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728. Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of 
accommodation requested. A telephone number or other contact information should be included so that District staff 
may discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make the 
request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide the requested accommodation. 



1 

MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
Jointly with the 

ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE 
September 12, 2018, 8:30 a.m. 

MWDOC Conference Room 101 

Committee 
Director Thomas, Chair Staff: R. Hunter, K. Seckel, C. Harris, 
Director Dick K. Davanaugh, H. Chumpitazi
Director Finnegan 

Ex Officio Member:  Director Barbre 

MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board 
of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion.  Each 
Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate 
committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be 
adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those 
Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS - Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the 
Committee should be made at this time. 

ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate 
action on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of 
the Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 

ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 
18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, 
these public records will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at 
http://www.mwdoc.com. 

PROPOSED BOARD CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

1. TREASURER'S REPORT
a. Revenue/Cash Receipt Report –  August 2018
b. Disbursement Approval Report for the month of September 2018
c. Disbursement Ratification Report for the month of August 2018
d. GM Approved Disbursement Report for the month of August 2018
e. Water Use Efficiency Projects Cash Flow – August 31, 2018
f. Consolidated Summary of Cash and Investment – July 2018
g. OPEB Trust Fund monthly statement

2. FINANCIAL REPORT
a. Combined Financial Statements and Budget Comparative for the Period

ending July 31, 2018

Page 1 of 74



A&F Committee Meeting September 12, 2018 

2 

DISCUSSION ITEM 

3. MWDOC WATER FACILITIES CORPORATION ANNUAL MEETING
a. 2018 Annual Filing of Tax Compliance Reports for the MWDOC Water

Facilities Corporation
b. Annual Reorganization of Board Officers for the MWDOC Water Facilities

Corporation

4. PRESENTATION BY KEITH STRIBLING (HIGHMARK CAPITAL) REGARDING
OPEB AND PENSION TRUST ACCOUNT INVESTMENTS

ACTION ITEMS 

5. AUTHORIZE FY18-19 CHOICE PROGRAMS BUDGET REVISIONS

6. AWARD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT FOR MWDOC SEISMIC
RETROFIT PROJECT

7. PRUDENT COMPANION POLICY

8. AUTHORIZE ATTENDANCE AT THE FEMA & AWWA DISASTER RESOURCE
TYPING STANDARDS WORKSHOP, NOVEMBER 15, 2018, WASHINGTON, DC

9. AUTHORIZE ATTENDANCE AT THE ACC-OC ADVOCACY CONFERENCE,
SEPTEMBER 16-18, 2018, WASHINGTON, DC

INFORMATION ITEMS – (THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL 
PURPOSES ONLY – BACKGROUND INFORMATION IS INCLUDED IN THE PACKET.  
DISCUSSION IS NOT NECESSARY UNLESS REQUESTED BY A DIRECTOR.) 

10. AGREEMENT WITH BERGELECTRIC CORP.

11. DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES REPORTS
a. Administration
b. Finance and Information Technology

12. MONTHLY WATER USAGE DATA, TIER 2 PROJECTION, AND WATER SUPPLY
INFORMATION

OTHER ITEMS 

13. REVIEW ISSUES REGARDING DISTRICT ORGANIZATION, PERSONNEL
MATTERS, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FINANCE AND INSURANCE

ADJOURNMENT 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly listed 

for action, may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those items 
designated for Board action, the Committee reviews the items and makes a recommendation for final 
action to the full Board of Directors; final action will be taken by the Board of Directors.  Agendas for 
Committee and Board meetings may be obtained from the District Secretary.  Members of the public 
are advised that the Board consideration process includes consideration of each agenda item by one 
or more Committees indicated on the Board Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the 
Board meeting considering an item consequently is advised. 
Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 

Page 2 of 74



A&F Committee Meeting September 12, 2018 

3 

modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting 
by telephoning Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water 
District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  Requests must specify the 
nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A telephone number or other 
contact information should be included so that District staff may discuss appropriate arrangements.  
Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate time 
before the meeting for the District to provide the requested accommodation. 

Page 3 of 74



MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
Jointly with the 

PUBLIC AFFAIRS AND LEGISLATION COMMITTEE 
September 17, 2018, 8:30 a.m. 

Conference Room 101 
 

Committee: 
Director Dick, Chair    Staff: R. Hunter, K. Seckel, H. Baez, 
Director Thomas     D. Micalizzi, T. Dubuque, T. Baca 
Director Tamaribuchi 
 
Ex Officio Member:  Director Barbre 
 
MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board 
of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion. Each 
Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate 
committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be 
adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those 
Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the Committee should be made at 
this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate 
action on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of 
the Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 
18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, 
these public records will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at 
http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
1. LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES 

a. Federal Legislative Report (Barker) 
b. State Legislative Report (BBK) 
c. County Legislative Report (Lewis) 
d. Legal and Regulatory Report (Ackerman) 
e. MWDOC Legislative Matrix 
f. Metropolitan Legislative Matrix 

 
2. DISCUSSION REGARDING SPECIAL DISTRICT CANDIDATE/ELECTION/BALLOT 

REQUIREMENTS  
 
3. MWDOC LEGISLATIVE POLICY PRINCIPLES ANNUAL UPDATE  
 



PAL Committee Meeting September 17, 2018 

2 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
4. AUTHORIZATION TO CONTRACT FOR STRATEGIC DIGITAL 

COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS (THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL 
PURPOSES ONLY – BACKGROUND INFORMATION IS INCLUDED IN THE PACKET.  
DISCUSSION IS NOT NECESSARY UNLESS REQUESTED BY A DIRECTOR.) 
 
5. SCOUTS PROGRAMS UPDATE 
 
6. UPDATE ON 2019 OC WATER SUMMIT 
 
7. PUBLIC AFFAIRS ACTIVITIES REPORT 
 
OTHER ITEMS 
 
8. REVIEW ISSUES RELATED TO LEGISLATION, OUTREACH, PUBLIC 

INFORMATION ISSUES, AND MET 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly listed for 
action, may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those items designated for Board 
action, the Committee reviews the items and makes a recommendation for final action to the full Board of Directors; 
final action will be taken by the Board of Directors.  Agendas for Committee and Board meetings may be obtained 
from the District Secretary.  Members of the public are advised that the Board consideration process includes 
consideration of each agenda item by one or more Committees indicated on the Board Action Sheet.  Attendance at 
Committee meetings and the Board meeting considering an item consequently is advised. 
Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Maribeth 
Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 
20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of 
accommodation requested.  A telephone number or other contact information should be included so that District staff 
may discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make the 
request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide the requested accommodation. 



REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
AND ANNUAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

WATER FACILITIES CORPORATION 
18700 Ward Street, Board Room, Fountain Valley, California 

September 19, 2018, 8:30 a.m. 
 

 
AGENDA 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS/PARTICIPATION 
At this time, members of the public will be given an opportunity to address the Board concerning items 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Members of the public may also address the Board 
about a particular Agenda item at the time it is considered by the Board and before action is taken.  If the 
item is on the Consent Calendar, please inform the Board Secretary before action is taken on the 
Consent Calendar and the item will be removed for separate consideration. 
 
The Board requests, but does not require, that members of the public who want to address the Board 
complete a voluntary “Request to be Heard” form available from the Board Secretary prior to the meeting. 

 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
Determine need and take action to agendize items(s) which arose subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda.  (ROLL CALL VOTE: Adoption of this recommendation requires a two-thirds vote of the Board 
members present, or, if less than two-thirds of the Board members are present, a unanimous vote of 
those members present.) 
 

ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 
Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these 
public records will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at 
http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 

EMPLOYEE SERVICE AWARDS 
 
 
MWDOC WATER FACILITIES CORPORATION AGENDA ITEMS 
 
WFC-1 FINANCIAL REPORT  

a. Annual Filing of Tax Compliance Reports. 
 

Recommendation: Authorize the annual filing of the tax compliance reports 
as presented. 

 
  

http://www.mwdoc.com/


Regular Meeting Agenda September 19, 2018 

 

 
2 

WFC-2 REORGANIZATION OF MWDOC WFC BOARD OFFICERS 
 
   

Recommendation: Consider reorganizing the MWDOC WFC Board officers 
 

ADJOURNMENT -- END MWDOC WFC AGENDA 
         
 

        NEXT RESOLUTION NO. 2075 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Items 1 to 7) 
(All matters under the Consent Calendar will be approved by one motion unless a Board 
member requests separate action on a specific item) 
 
1. MINUTES 

 
a. August 1, 2018 Workshop Board Meeting 
b. August 15, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 

 
Recommendation:  Approve as presented. 
 

2. COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS 
a. Planning & Operations Committee Meeting:  August 6, 2018 
b. Administration & Finance Committee Meeting:  July 11, 2018 (revised) 
c. Administration & Finance Committee Meeting:  August 8, 2018 
d. Public Affairs & Legislation Committee Meeting:  August 13, 2018 
e. Executive Committee Meeting:  August 16, 2018 

 
Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 

 
3. TREASURER'S REPORTS 

a. MWDOC Revenue/Cash Receipt Register as of August 31, 2018 
b. MWDOC Disbursement Registers (August/September) 

 
Recommendation: Ratify and approve as presented. 

 
c. Summary of Cash and Investment and Portfolio Master Summary Report 

(Cash and Investment report) as of July 31, 2018 
d. PARS Monthly Statement (OPEB Trust) 
e. Water Use Efficiency Projects Cash Flow 

 
Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 
 

4. FINANCIAL REPORT 
a. Combined Financial Statements and Budget Comparative for the Period 

ending July 31, 2018 
 

Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 
 

5. AUTHORIZE FY 18-19 CHOICE PROGRAMS BUDGET REVISIONS 
 

Recommendation: Approve the Choice Programs budget revisions. 



Regular Meeting Agenda September 19, 2018 

 

 
3 

 
 
6. AWARD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT FOR MWDOC SEISMIC 

RETROFIT PROJECT 
 

Recommendation: Authorized the General Manager to contract with IDS Group in 
the amount of $142,600 based on the Proposed Budget 
described in their proposal and the revised cost proposal dated 
September 5, 2018 for the MWDOC Seismic Retrofit Project 
work. 

 
7. AUTHORIZE ATTENDANCE AT THE FEMA & AWWA DISASTER RESOURCE 

TYPING STANDARDS WORKSHOP, NOVEMBER 15, 2018, WASHINGTON, DC 
 

Recommendation: Authorize attendance by Kelly Hubbard at the FEMA & AWWA 

Disaster Typing Standards Workshop, November 15, 2018 in 
Washington, DC. 

 
End Consent Calendar  

 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
8-1 SCOPING STUDY TO ESTIMATE THE COST OF CORRECTING SMALL NON-

COMPLIANT WATER SYSTEMS IN CALIFORNIA TO ENGAGE IN THE 
UPCOMING STATE “WATER TAX” DISCUSSIONS 

 
Recommendation: Authorize an initial $20,000 on a sole source basis to Black & 

Veatch Engineers (B&V) to begin preparation of cost estimates 
to bring, small, non-compliant water systems, statewide, into 
compliance. The total study cost may be on the order of 
$200,000, but the initial seed funding is required to initiate the 
work. The District plans to seek support from other water 
providers to fund the overall effort. The purpose of developing 
the cost estimates is to provide updated and more accurate 
information to help engage on this issue at the State level.  

 
8-2 PRUDENT COMPANION POLICY 
 

Recommendation: Review, discuss, and consider adopting Director Barbre’s draft 
Prudent Companion Policy. 

 
8-3 AUTHORIZATION TO CONTRACT FOR STRATEGIC DIGITAL 

COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 
 

Recommendation: Authorize entering into a contract with HashtagPinpoint to 
provide Strategic Digital Communications Services for the 
Municipal Water District of Orange County’s (MWDOC) 
outreach initiatives. 

 
  
 



Regular Meeting Agenda September 19, 2018 

 

 
4 

 
 
INFORMATION CALENDAR (All matters under the Information Calendar will be 
Received/Filed as presented following any discussion that may occur) 
 
9. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT, SEPTEMBER 2018 (ORAL AND WRITTEN) 
 

Recommendation: Receive and file report(s) as presented. 
 

10. MWDOC GENERAL INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

a. Board of Directors - Reports re: Conferences and Meetings 
b. Requests for Future Agenda Topics 

 
 Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
12. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

Title: General Manager 
 Government Code Section 54957 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Note: Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by 
contacting Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water District 
of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  Requests must specify the nature of 
the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A telephone number or other contact 
information should be included so that District staff may discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons 
requesting a disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the 
meeting for the District to provide the requested accommodation.  







































LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
ORANGE COUNTY 

2677 North Main Street, Suite 1050 
Santa Ana, CA 92705 

(714) 640-5100  FAX (714) 640-5139 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Wednesday, September 12, 2018 
8:15 a.m. 

Planning Commission Hearing Room 
Hall of Administration 

333 W. Santa Ana Blvd. 
10 Civic Center Plaza, Santa Ana, CA 92701 

Any member of the public may request to speak on any agenda item at the time that item is being 
considered by the Commission. 

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – COMMISSIONER DAVERT

3. ROLL CALL

4. ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUPPLEMENTAL COMMUNICATION
(Received After Agenda Distribution)

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a.) August 8, 2018 – Regular Commission Meeting

6. PUBLIC COMMENT

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission on items not on the
agenda, provided that the subject matter is within the jurisdiction of the Commission and that no action
may be taken on an off-agenda item(s) unless authorized by law.

7. CONSENT CALENDAR

a.) Interim Legislative Report (September)
The Commission will receive an interim report on legislation of LAFCO interest for the current 
legislative session and consider adopting a position on proposed legislation. 

http://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/5a_Minutes_August_08_2018.pdf
http://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/7a_InterimLegRpt.pdf


8. PUBLIC HEARING

a.) Focused Municipal Service Review for the City of San Juan Capistrano Water and
Wastewater Utility (MSR 16-03) 
The Commission will receive the Focused Municipal Service Review for the City of San Juan 
Capistrano Water and Wastewater Utility Systems and consider adoption of the statement of 
determinations, as required by state law, for each of the agencies reviewed in the report.  Pursuant 
to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the Commission will consider the approval 
of a Notice of Exemption for this project. 

9. COMMISSION DISCUSSION AND ACTION

None

10. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

This is an opportunity for Commissioners to comment on issues not listed on the agenda, provided
that the subject matter is within the jurisdiction of the Commission.   No discussion or action may
occur or be taken, except to place the item on a future agenda if approved by Commission majority.

11. EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

Executive Officer’s report on upcoming events and activities of the Executive Officer since last
meeting.

12. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS & ANNOUNCEMENTS

None

13. CLOSED SESSION

None

14. ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING

NOTICE REGARDING ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE COMMISSION LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE 
LAFCO REGULAR MEETING: 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5 public records that relate to open session agenda items that are distributed to 
a majority of the Commission less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be available to the public at Orange 
County LAFCO offices at 2677 North Main Street, Suite 1050, Santa Ana, CA 92705 during regular business hours.  These 
records when possible will also be made available on the OC LAFCO website at http://www.oclafco.org. 

NOTICE: State law requires that a participant in a LAFCO proceeding who has a financial interest in a decision and who 
has made a campaign contribution of more than $250 to any commissioner in the past year must disclose the contribution. 
If you are affected, please notify the Commission’s staff before the hearing.  

LAFCO Agendas and supporting documentation are available on the Internet at http://oclafco.org. 

http://www.oclafco.org/
http://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/8a_FocusedMSR.pdf


SOCWMA Management Committee | September 10, 2018 

 

AGENDA  
SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WATERSHED MANAGEMENT 

AREA 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

AGENDA  
September 10, 2018 

1:30 – 3:00 p.m.  
 

City of Laguna Hills, Community Center 
25555 Alicia Parkway 

Laguna Hills, CA  92653 
Heritage Room A 

 
Shaun Pelletier 
    City of Aliso Viejo 
Lisa Zawaski 
    City of Dana Point 
Mary Vondrak 
    City of Laguna Beach 
Ken Rosenfield 
    City of Laguna Hills 
Hal Ghafari 
    City of Laguna Niguel 
Moy Yahya 
    City of Laguna Woods 
Devin Slaven 
    City of Lake Forest 
Joe Ames 
    City of Mission Viejo 
Hazel McIntosh 
    City of Rancho Santa Margarita 
David Rebensdorf 
    City of San Clemente 
 

Hossein Ajideh 
    City of San Juan Capistrano 
Grant Sharp 
    County of Orange  
Dennis Cafferty 
    El Toro Water District 
Mark Tettemer 
    Irvine Ranch Water District 
Rodney Woods 
    Moulton Niguel Water District 
Charles Busslinger 
    Municipal Water District of OC 
Dan Ferons    
    Santa Margarita Water District 
Rick Shintaku 
    South Coast Water District 
Betty Burnett 
    South OC Wastewater Authority 
Michael Perea 
    Trabuco Canyon Water District 
David Youngblood 

Laguna Beach County Water District 
 



SOCWMA Management Committee | September 10, 2018 

 

1. Welcome & Introductions 
Group 

 

2. Proposition 1 IRWM Grant Planning & Schedule 
Jenna Voss, County of Orange & Group 

a) Conceptual PSP & Application Process 

b) Grant Schedule (Conceptual) 

c) Consultant Support 

d) Ad Hoc Review Team 

e) Scoring Methodology 
 

3. Update on the IRWM Project Development Framework 
Jenna Voss, County of Orange 

 

4. Check-in: IRWM Plan Local Approval Process 

Group 

 

5. Updates on Current Activities & Projects (As Needed)  
 Group Discussion 
 

6. Next Executive Committee Meeting:  November 1, 2018 
 Next Management Committee Meeting:  October 1, 2018 

 

7. Closing and Adjourn  



SOCWMA Management Committee | September 10, 2018 

 

REGIONAL UPDATE 
SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WATERSHED MANAGEMENT AREA 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

1. Proposition 1 IRWM Grant Planning & Schedule 

County staff will provide an update at the September 10th meeting on the conceptual Proposition 1 
IRWM Grant application process proposed by DWR with an overview of the anticipated schedule for 
SOCWMA. 

a) Conceptual PSP & Application Process 

DWR has produced a conceptual Proposal Solicitation Package (PSP) for the first round of 
IRWM Implementation Grant funding for the purposes of garnering input from IRWM Regions 
throughout the State through the Roundtable of Regions.  The conceptual PSP will be more 
thoroughly discussed at the September 10th meeting; however, a flow chart of the anticipated 
grant application process from DWR is included below (and attached in larger format at the end 
of this document). The proposed process differs considerably from previous grant rounds. 

 
 

b) Grant Schedule (Conceptual) 

DWR has released with the conceptual PSP a schedule, allocating rough periods of time each of 
the application steps would take (please see flow chart above and attached); however, these 
times are interdependent with the release date of the draft PSP (expected in late September).  
If DWR is delayed, the expectation is that they will move the schedule out accordingly.  A more 
detailed summary of the schedule and an associated Gantt chart will be provided at the 
September 10th meeting for discussion.  

 



SOCWMA Management Committee | September 10, 2018 

 

Grant Process Task Start Finish 

Call for Projects October 2018 November 2018 

Project Eligibility Review (County staff) November 2018 

Convene MC Ad Hoc – Series of Meetings for Project 
Review & Project Proponent Coordination 

November 2018 December 2018 

MC Meeting: Ad Hoc Recommendation & Discussion Early January 2019 

MC Meeting: MC Recommendation (Final) Early February 2019 

Stakeholder Workshop Mid-February 2019 

EC Meeting: Review MC Ad Hoc, MC and 
Stakeholder Recommendations & Approve Slate 

Early March 2019 

Write Proposal Summary (PS) and Project 
Information Forms (PIFs) (4 weeks) 

March 2019 April 2019 

Submit PS and PIFs to DWR (2 weeks prior to 
workshop presentation of slate) 

Early April 2019 

DWR Funding Area Workshop* Late April 2019 

Receive DWR Feedback (expected: 2-4 weeks) May 2019 

EC Meeting: Final Approval of Project Slate Early June 2019 

Grant Application Submittal July 2019 

*Workshop must be coordinated with all IRWM Regions within a Funding Area – we are coordinating with 
the Tri-FACC to select a workshop date that aligns best with all three IRWM regions’ governance structures 
for approval of project slates. 

 

c) Consultant Support 

Consultant support is needed for the upcoming Proposition 1 IRWM Implementation Grant; 
there was budget carried over from FY 2017-18 available to utilize.  County staff recommend 
utilizing consultant support for Committee and Ad Hoc meetings associated with the project 
selection and grant application processes. 

In addition to grant application and project selection support, County staff recommends 
programmatic support from a consultant team to help manage IRWM Plan programs and 
project planning. More information will be provided to the committee at the September 10th 
meeting, including a scope for consultant services. 

 

d) Ad Hoc Review Team 

According to the current proposed Proposition 1 IRWM Grant schedule included above, the 
Management Committee will need to make a recommendation for formation of a Project 
Review Ad Hoc at the September 10th meeting and start convening meetings of that group in 
November.  The Ad Hoc should represent an even balance of city and water agency staff, and of 
areas of expertise (e.g. for review of Natural Resource and Flood Risk Management objectives). 

 
 



SOCWMA Management Committee | September 10, 2018 

 

e) Scoring Methodology 

 
County staff have developed a procedure for scoring and ranking projects submitted for 
Proposition 1 IRWM Grant fund consideration.  The process reflects the scoring methods 
utilized for the 2015 Proposition 84 Grant round, with modifications reflective of changes made 
to the IRWM Plan Goals and IRWM Grant guidelines, and to automate portions of the analysis 
to reduce the burden of iterative updates.  Key to the proposed process, project proponents 
will be required to answer questions about the impact of project benefits and the strategies 
used; this is reflective of the process utilized in previous grant rounds. Utilizing these metrics, 
projects would be compared against one another using relative rankings and weighted based 
upon the approved goal and objective weights in the IRWM Plan. 
 
The committee will review and approve of the scoring process at the September 10th meeting, 
in preparation for an October-November Call for Projects. 

 
2. Update on the IRWM Project Development Framework 

As was presented at the May Management Committee meeting, County staff initiated development 
of a project coordination framework to support regional project planning.  Per Executive Committee 
direction from the 2015-16 Strategic Visioning process, the framework is intended to provide high-
level guidance and outside-the-box thinking on how stakeholders in South Orange County can better 
coordinate or collaborate on projects in the region to meet water resource priorities.  As was noted 
during the visioning process, the IRWM Group has a long-standing record of coordinating on projects, 
both within the context of IRWM and as individual agencies; however, the goal is to develop a robust 
project database inclusive of projects at various levels of development to better match project 
concepts with water resource needs and to find project partners.  The ultimate goal is for the IRWM 
Group to have access to a database of projects throughout South Orange County to both meet the 
identified priorities of the IRWM Plan, and to assist long-term achievement of water supply reliability, 
water quality, natural resource and flood risk management goals on a regional scale.  

The IRWM Project Development Framework is not intended to produce projects for IRWM Grant 
funding consideration only; the resulting database of projects should build upon the IRWM Project 
List to include project concepts, identification of priority areas/issues in need of project 
ideas/locations, and for stakeholders to have a forum for coordinating on projects within the same 
geographic area.  The attached memo considers input from several stakeholders; including, 
Management Committee members, potential funders (OCTA), non-profits (Laguna Canyon 
Foundation, CalTrout), and agencies responsible for infrastructure and open space resources (OC 
Flood, OC Parks).  Additionally, the memo is intended to be a conversation-starter for the 
Management Committee to consider and advise the Executive Committee on a path forward to 
encourage formation of project-based stakeholder groups, and development of a robust project list.   

The Executive Committee has approved budget allocation for implementation of the Framework. We 
will further discuss the memo at the September Management Committee meeting.  Management 
Committee members will be asked to provide guidance to County staff on next steps for 
implementation.   
 
 
 
 



SOCWMA Management Committee | September 10, 2018 

 

3. Check-in: IRWM Plan Local Approval Process 

SOCWMA Member Agencies are in the process of taking the 2018 IRWM Plan to their respective 

governing bodies for adoption. Adoption of the IRWM Plan is a requirement for the Member 

Agencies and any other group requesting IRWM Grant funding.  As a reminder, County staff intends 

on submitting the 2018 IRWM Plan to the Department of Water Resources (DWR) for compliance 

review in October, in anticipation of Proposition 1 IRWM Grant application process starting in late 

fall, early winter 2018. Please provide Jenna Voss and Iris Corpus your agency’s adoption resolutions, 

if you have not done so already.  If you have yet to take the plan to your governing body, please also 

notify County staff of the anticipated/confirmed date the item will be heard. 

We have also received one letter of support from the Pacific Marine Mammal Center that will be 
attached to the 2018 IRWM Plan. 
 

4. Updates on Current Activities & Projects (As Needed)  

Management Committee members will be asked as part of this discussion to provide updates on 

agency projects, as applicable.  Going forward, County staff recommend that this item be utilized to 

provide updates on the IRWM Project List, Project Framework and agency updates. 

5. Next Executive Committee Meeting:  November 1, 2018 
 Next Management Committee Meeting:  October 1, 2018 

County staff propose that the Management Committee meetings be held quarterly, with the exception of 

high demand periods (i.e. IRWM Grant applications) and Ad Hocs. This change would take effect the start 

of 2019. For approval of Executive Committee meeting agendas and other items in between meetings, 

County staff recommend either online voting (e.g. Doodle Poll) or brief webinar meetings. The 

Management Committee will be asked to approve the recommended change at the September meeting. 

The November Executive Committee meeting agenda is under development; however, confirmed items 

include proposed meeting dates for 2019, consideration of the San Juan Basin Authority request to be 

added as a Member Agency, and an update on the Proposition 1 IRWM Grant process.

mailto:jenna.voss@ocpw.ocgov.com
mailto:iris.corpus@ocpw.ocgov.com


Mailing Address 

P.O. Box 20895 
Fountain Valley, CA  92728 

Meeting Location 

MWDOC/OCWD 
18700 Ward Street 
Fountain Valley, CA  92708 

(714) 963-3058 
(714) 964-5930 fax 

www.mwdoc.com/isdoc 

Executive Committee 

President  
Hon. Jim Fisler  
 Mesa Water District 

1st Vice President  
Hon. Saundra Jacobs 
Santa Margarita Water District 

2nd Vice President  
Hon. Mark Monin 
El Toro Water District  

3rd Vice President  
Hon. Mary Aileen Matheis 
Irvine Ranch Water District 

Secretary 
Hon. Doug Davert 
East Orange County Water District 

Treasurer 
Hon. Joan C. Finnegan 
Municipal Water District of  
Orange County 

Past  President 
Hon. Mike Scheafer 
Costa Mesa Sanitary District 

Staff and Administration 

Heather Baez 
Municipal Water District of Orange 
County 

Sylvia Prado 
East Orange County Water 
District 

 Executive Committee Meeting 
Tuesday, September 4, 2018 

7:30 a.m. 
Municipal Water District  of Orange County Conference C-3 

AGENDA 

I. Welcome 

II. Approval of Minutes

• Consider approval of the minutes for the August 7, 2018 meeting

III. Public Comments

IV. Old Business

V. New Business 

• ISDOC Representation on the Operating Area Executive Board

o Discussion and possible action on ISDOC representation to the OA
Executive Board (Orange County Emergency Management) (See
Attachment A)

VI. Treasurer’s Report – Joan Finnegan

• Receive, discuss and file September 4, 2018 Treasurer's Report.

VII. CSDA Report – Bill Nelson/Arlene Schafer

• Receive, discuss and file the CSDA report.

VIII. LAFCO Report – Doug Davert

• Receive, discuss and file the LAFCO report.

IX. ACWA Report – Saundra Jacobs

• Receive, discuss and file the ACWA report.

X. OCCOG Report – Mike Scheafer 

• Receive, discuss and file OCCOG report.

XI. Subcommittee Reports
• Program (Saundra Jacobs)

o Discuss programs and speakers for upcoming October 25th

quarterly membership meeting

• Membership (Mark Monin)

• Legislative (Mary Aileen Matheis)

o Discuss and consider taking action on proposed legislation of
interest to Special Districts.

XII. President and Committee Member Announcements and
Comments

XIII. Adjourn

Next Executive Committee Meeting: Tuesday, October 2, 2018 
Next ISDOC Quarterly Meeting: October 25, 2018 



Agency District Type* ISDOC LAFCO CSDA WEROC**** To OA Board  During Event
Buena Park Library District Library X X X NA
Capistrano Bay Community Services District Community X X X NA
Costa Mesa Sanitary District Water X X X X WEROC WEROC
County Service Area 13 – La Mirada** (Sewer) Countywide D X D NA County County
County Service Area 20 – La Habra** (Sewer) Countywide D X D NA County County
County Service Area 22 – East Yorba Linda** (Parks) Countywide D X D NA County County
County Service Area 26 – OC Parks** (Parks) Countywide D X D NA County County
Cypress Recreation & Park District (City of Cypress) Recreation D X D NA Cypress Cypress
East Orange County Water District Water X X X X WEROC WEROC
El Toro Water District Water X X X X WEROC WEROC
Emerald Bay Community Services District Community X X X NA
Garden Grove Sanitation District (Solid Waste‐ City Managed) Trash D X D NA Garden Grove Garden Grove
Irvine Ranch Water District Water X X X X WEROC WEROC
Laguna Beach County Water District (Shared Council w/City) Water D X D X WEROC WEROC
Mesa Water District Water X X X X WEROC WEROC
Midway City Sanitary District Water X X X X WEROC WEROC
Moulton Niguel Water District Water X X X X WEROC WEROC
Municipal Water District of Orange County Water X X X X WEROC WEROC
Orange County Cemetery District Countywide X X X NA
Orange County Mosquito and Vector Control District Countywide X X X NA
Orange County Sanitation District  Water D X D X WEROC WEROC
Orange County Water District Water X X X X WEROC WEROC
Placentia Library District Library X X X NA
Rossmoor Community Services District Community X X X NA
Rossmoor‐Los Alamitos Area Sewer District Water X X X R WEROC WEROC
Santa Margarita Water District Water X X X X WEROC WEROC
Serrano Water District Water X X X X WEROC WEROC
Silverado‐Modjeska Parks and Recreation District Recreation X X X NA
South Coast Water District Water X X X X WEROC WEROC
Sunset Beach Sanitary District Water X X X R WEROC WEROC
Surfside Colony Community Services Tax District Community X X X NA
Surfside Colony Storm Water Protection Tax District Flood X X X X
Three Arch Bay CSD*** Community ? X X NA
Trabuco Canyon Water District Water X X X X WEROC WEROC
Yorba Linda Water District Water X X X X WEROC WEROC

Represented BY

D = Dependent District
R = Agencies WEROC is outreaching with to become signatory; WEROC will support regardless

****WEROC will always rep. Water & Wastewater regardless of Signature.  Looking to reach out to those who should maybe be signatories.

*as designated on the OC LAFCO website
**Tax districts managed by county; PDF Budget Page Avail
***Couldn't find much. Basically a gated community. 



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 

ISDOC Executive Committee 

August 7, 2018 

 

Minutes 

 

I. Welcome 

President Jim Fisler called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. 

 

Committee Members Present: 

Jim Fisler, President (Mesa WD/LAFCO) 

Saundra Jacobs, 1st Vice-President (SMWD) 

Mark Monin, 2nd Vice-President (ETWD) 

Mary Aileen Matheis, 3rd Vice President (IRWD) 

Doug Davert, Secretary (EOCWD) 

Joan Finnegan, Treasurer (MWDOC) 

Mike Scheafer, Past President (CMSD) 

Committee Members Absent: None  

  

Others Present: 

 

Bill Nelson (CSDA/OCCD) 

Arlene Schafer (CSDA) 

Charley Wilson (LAFCO/SMWD) 

Cheryl Brothers (LAFCO/City of Fountain Valley) 

Larry Dick (MWDOC) 

Al Nederhood (YLWD) 

Carolyn Emery (LAFCO) 

Debra Kurita (LAFCO 

Jim Leach (SMWD) 

 Heather Baez (MWDOC) 

Stacy Taylor (Mesa Water) 

 John Lewis (Lewis Consultants) 

 Peter Whittingham (Whittingham Public Affairs Advisors 

 Lisa Ohlund (EOCWD) 

  

II. Minutes 

1. The minutes from the July 10, 2018, meeting of the Executive Committee were 

reviewed.  Upon a motion by Past President Schaefer and second by Treasurer Finnegan, 

the minutes were unanimously approved.  

 

III. Public Comments: 

 

2. None. 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 

IV. Old Business:  

 

1. LAFCO Dues – President Fisler announced that a legal opinion was being sought 

regarding the current and proposed LAFCO dues and will present more information 

at an upcoming meeting. 

 

V. New Business:  

 

1.  LAFCO – Lisa Ohlund presented information regarding a draft letter to LAFCO 

regarding proposed changes to several policies and procedures and the proposed 

LAFCO FY 18/19 Workplan. The letter has been submitted for the August 8, 2018 

Commission Meeting jointly on behalf of several Special Districts.  Discussion 

ensued regarding the request by the Special Districts to defer action on the two items 

and meet with the Special Districts to discuss our concerns. 

 

2. Recognition of Phil Anthony and Appointment to OCCOG Vacant Position – 

President Fisler relayed Mr. Anthony’s biography to the group and expressed his 

sorrow at his passing.  Past President Scheafer was appointed to fill the vacancy with 

Treasurer Finnegan as the alternate. 

 

VI. Treasurer’s Report – Joan Finnegan  

 

1. After payment of the expenses, the bank balance as of 6/1/18 is $11,267.49.   

 

VII.  California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Report – Bill Nelson & Arlene Schafer 

 

1. New Liquidity Fund Joins CalTRUST Offerings: CalTRUST, CSDA’s Endorsed 

Affiliate, is offering members a new investment fund option. As of July 2, the new 

CalTRUST Liquidity Fund officially opened, with features including: 

i. Stable net asset value (NAV) 

ii. Same day liquidity 

iii. 60-day maximum duration 

This new fund joins CalTRUST’s four existing options – short and medium-term 

funds, money market fund, and government fund. Over 135 California special 

districts and other public agencies look to CalTRUST for safety, liquidity, and 

maximized yields. 

 

2.  CSDA Conference – The conference will be held September 24-27, 2018 in Indian 

Wells; it was noted that the professional development program has programs for 

Directors. 

 

VIII. Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Report – LAFCO Commissioner Doug 

Davert 

 

LAFCO Commissioner Davert noted the following: 

 

1. The next Commission Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, August 8th at 8:15 a.m. 

in the Planning Commission Hearing Room at the County Hall of Administration 



Page 3 of 3 

 

2. The Commission will honor Commissioner Withers’ Public Service 

3. FY 18/19 Workplan - The Commission will discuss and consider approval of the 

proposed LAFCO 2018/19 Workplan.  The Orange County City Manager’s 

Association (OCCMA) has removed their previous concerns regarding the 

Workplan; the Special Districts’ group has requested an extension. 

4. Policies and Procedures Update – The Commission will discuss and consider 

approval of updates to the Policies and Procedures. Some of the changes 

recommended by the and the Special Districts’ group were incorporated into the 

proposed revisions.  The Special Districts’ group has requested an extension. 

 

IX. Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) – 1st Vice President Saundra Jacobs 

 

1. Fall Conference will be held November 27-30, 2018 in San Diego. 

2. Water Bond (Proposition 3) on the November Ballot; $8+ Billion; ACWA 

supports. 

3. ACWA Webinar: Long-Term Water Use Efficiency – ACWA held the webinar 

that detail the known requirements of the legislation; much still to be developed. 

Implementation targeted for November 2023. 

4. Region 10 Membership Meeting is being planned for October at Lake Mission 

Viejo; the subject will be innovation. 

 

X. OCCOG Report  

 

None. 

 

XI. Subcommittee Reports 

 

1. Program – 1st Vice President Saundra Jacobs  

1st Vice President Jacobs noted that she is working on a speaker for the October 

luncheon. 

 

2. Membership – Mark Monin: 

2nd Vice-President Monin reported that he has confirmed two new Associate 

Members: Redwine & Sherrill and Bootwell and Faye; the Committee expressed 

their appreciation for his diligence. 

 

3.  Legislative – No report. 

 

XII. President and Committee Member Announcements and Comments:  

 

1. Treasurer Finnegan noted that the Celebration of Life for Phil Anthony will be held 

at the Rose Center on August 19, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 

2. Larry Dick noted that the Urban Water Institute Annual Conference will be held in 

San Diego from August 22-24, 2018 and will include a session on the proposed 

water bond (Proposition 3). 

 

XIII. The meeting was adjourned in memory of Phil Anthony at 8:56 a.m.; the next Executive 

Committee Meeting will be held on Tuesday, September 4, 2018 at 7:30 a.m.   

 



 
AGENDA 

 
Friday, September 7, 2018 

7:30 a.m. - 9:00 a.m.  
Doors open at 7:00 a.m. 

 
OCWD/MWDOC JOINT BOARD ROOM 

18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley 

 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 

 
 
Announcements & Introductions 
 

• Jose Vergara, El Toro Water District 
 

 
Reports 
 

• Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) Report – Cathy 
Green, Orange County Water District 

• Metropolitan Water District of Southern California Report – Linda 
Ackerman, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

  

Program: Potential New Water Supplies – Part 1  

 

• John Kennedy, Executive Director of Engineering and Water 
Resources, Orange County Water District 

 
Adjourn 
 
 

………………………………………..………….. 
 

 

 

Next WACO Meeting 
 

Friday, October 5, 7:30 a.m. @ OCWD/MWDOC Joint Boardroom 
 
Next WACO Planning Committee Meeting 
 
Date TBD, 7:30 a.m. @ MWDOC 101 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

    

Mailing Address 
P.O. Box 8300 
Fountain Valley, CA  92708 
 
Meeting Location 
18700 Ward Street 
Fountain Valley, CA  92708 
 
(714) 378-3200 
(714) 963-0291 fax 
 
www.ocwd.com/news-events/events/waco 
www.mwdoc.com/waco 
 
 
Officers 
 
Chair 
Hon. Jose Vergara 
El Toro Water District 
 
Vice Chair 
Hon. Jim Atkinson 
Mesa Water District 
 
 
Staff Contacts 
 
Alicia Dunkin 
Orange County Water District 
 
Heather Baez 
Municipal Water District of Orange County 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stay Connected with WACO on  
Facebook, Twitter, and YouTube! 
 

      

  
 

  
 

/orangecountywater 
 
 

@waco_h2o 
 
 

/orangecountywater 

https://www.facebook.com/pages/Water-Advisory-Committee-of-Orange-County-WACO/111827158907574
http://www.twitter.com/WACO_H2O
http://www.youtube.com/user/orangecountywater


 

 
 

  

 

 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Mailing Address 
P.O. Box 20895 
Fountain Valley, CA  92728 
 
Meeting Location 
18700 Ward Street 
Fountain Valley, CA  92708 
 
(714) 378-8232 
(714) 963-0291 fax 
 
www.mwdoc.com/waco 
www.ocwd.com/news-events/events/waco   
 

 
Officers 
 
Chair 
Hon. Jose Vergara 
El Toro Water District 
 
Vice Chair 
Hon. Jim Atkinson 
Mesa Water District 
 
 
Staff Contacts: 
 
Alicia Dunkin 
Orange County Water District 
 
Heather Baez 
Municipal Water District of Orange County 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
Stay Connected with WACO  
on Facebook, Twitter and YouTube! 

 

WACO Planning Committee 
Tuesday, September 18, 2018 

7:30 A.M. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

 

Feedback of September 7 program 
 
1) New Potential Water Supplies, Part 1 

o John Kennedy, OCWD 
 
 
Items to report 
 
1) October 5: New Potential Water Supplies, Part 2 

o Speaker: Karl Seckel, MWDOC (confirmed) 
 
2) WACO committee list  
 
 
Discussion Items 
 
1) Meeting schedule 

• 2018 planning meetings 

• 2019 planning meetings and WACO meetings 
 

2) Potential future meetings 

• The Truth about Bottled Water  
o Michael Cervin, author of Our World of Water, writer on 

www.bottledwaterweb.com (invited) 
o JPL chemist 

 

• New Potential Water Supplies - Water Retailer Perspective  
o 1 speaker, 2 speakers or panel 

 

• Water Quality of Water Lost to Ocean  
 

• AWWA Standards for Non-revenue Water  
 
 
Adjourn 

https://www.facebook.com/pages/Water-Advisory-Committee-of-Orange-County-WACO/111827158907574
http://www.twitter.com/WACO_H2O
http://www.youtube.com/user/orangecountywater














Carry-Over Pending Matters 
 

 
1. Cyber Security 

 
2. System Vulnerability 

 
3. Equipment Maintenance 

 
4. Update District policies for contracting and purchasing.   The goal is to 

document defensible, transparent, justifiable contracting and purchasing 
practices that are practical to implement.  

 
5. Phase III Recycled Water Update 

 
6. Emergency 60-day Water Supply Reliability Plan 

 

 
 


























	September 27, 2018 - Board Agenda
	Item #1 - Minutes
	Item #1 - Minutes - August 16, 2018 - Special Board Minutes
	Item #1 - Minutes - part two
	Item #1 - part three
	Item #1 - part four

	Item #3 - R6 Sodium Hypochlorite Tank Replacemen
	Item #4 - ETWD-So OC Wtr Storage Coalition
	Item #5 - Safety Boot Allowance-Emp Handbk
	Item #6 - MWDOC Legislative Principles
	Item #7 - Res No 18-9-2 Conflict of Interest Code
	Item #8 - Res No 18-9-3 - Wtr Prof Apprec
	Item #8 - Res No 18-9-3 -Cover Memo-CA Water Professionals Week
	Item #8 - Res No 18-9-3 - Water Professionals Appreciation Week

	Item #9 - GM Report
	GM - page one
	GM - Domestic Water Sales
	GM - Customer Service activity report
	GM - Collection Systems Activity report
	GM - Monthly Potable Wtr Quality report
	GM - Weekly WQ System Status Map
	GM - Fluoride Charts
	ETWDSITEMAPB
	ETWDSITEMAPC
	ETWDSITEMAPN
	ETWDSITEMAPF

	GM - Water supply conditions report
	GM - Monthly Water Usage Data
	tables.pdf
	Water Data Item for Sep-2018 AF mtg
	WACO September
	Usage
	Rain
	OCWD
	Storage
	SWP
	Nor Cal
	CRA
	Mead
	Powell
	Mead II



	GM - Will Serve
	GM - Spill Summary

	Item #10 - State Wtr Reporting
	Item #11 - Legislative reports
	Item #12 - Public Outreach Wtr Conserv
	Item #12 - Public Outreach Wtr Conserv
	Item #12 - part two

	Item #13 - SOCWA
	SOCWA - September 6, 2018
	0 7-12-18 MINUTES Board of Directors Regular Meeting
	DESCRIPTION                      MOTION MADE BY                    ACTION
	Consent Calendar       Erdman                       Approved

	1 6-15-18 MINUTES Board of Directors Special Meeting
	DESCRIPTION                         MOTION MADE BY                 ACTION
	Consent Calendar         Erdman               Approved

	1a Attachments to 6-15-18 BoD Minutes
	2 4-26-18 FINAL MINUTES BoD Budget Wkshp
	2a Attachments to 4-26-18 BoD Minutes
	3 Finance Committee Minutes 5.24.18
	4 Finance Committee Minutes 5.16.18
	5 Finance Committee Minutes 3.30.18
	6 May Financials
	19 Staff Report_May 2018 Financials_9.6.18
	20 Exhibit A Board Financials May 2018 v2
	21 Exhibit B Board Financials May 2018 v2
	22 Exhibit C Board Financials May 2018 v2
	23 Exhibit D Board Financials May 2018 v2
	24 Exhibit D-1 Board Financials May 2018 v2
	25 Exhibit E-1 (Env) Board Financials May 2018 v2
	26 Exhibit E-1 (O&M) Board Financials May 2018 v2
	27 Exhibit E-2 Board Financials May 2018 v2
	28 Exhibit E-3 Board Financials May 2018 v2
	29 Exhibit E-4 Board Financials May 2018 v2

	7 June Financials
	7 Staff Report_June 2018 Preliminary Financials_9.6.18
	8 Exhibit A Preliminary Financials June 2018 v2
	9 Exhibit B Preliminary Financials June 2018 v2
	10 Exhibit C Preliminary Financials June 2018 v2
	11 Exhibit D Preliminary Financials June 2018 v2
	12 Exhibit D-1 Preliminary Financials June 2018 v2
	13 Exhibit E-1 (Env) Preliminary Financials June 2018 v2
	14 Exhibit E-1 (O&M) Preliminary Financials June 2018 v2
	15 Exhibit E-2 Preliminary Financials June 2018 v2
	16 Exhibit E-3 Preliminary Financials June 2018 v2
	17 Exhibit E-4 Preliminary Financials June 2018 v2
	18 Exhibit F - Copy of Fringe Pool & Fringe Rate FY 2017-18

	8 Agenda Item - June 2018 Operations Report
	01 Monthly Operational Report Cover Sheet
	02 June 2018 Ops Report Page 1
	03 June 2018 Ops Report Page 2
	04 June 2018 Ops Report Page 3
	05 June 2018 Ops Report Page 4
	06 June 2018 Ops Report Page 5
	07 June 2018 Ops Report Page 6
	07AJune 2018 Ops Report Page Critical Maint Work -2 pages
	07B June 2018 Fourth Quarter CM Assessment
	08 SOCWA Ocean Outfall Discharges by Agency Cover Page
	09 June 2018 Ops Report Page Tab 2
	10 SOCWA KPI Cover Page
	11 June 2018 Electricity KPI
	12 June 2018 Odor Control KPI
	13 June 2018 Polymer KPI
	14 June 2018 Biosolids KPI
	15 June 2018 Maintenace KPI
	16 June 2018 Small Capital KPI
	17 Safety Update Graphs - thru Jun 2018

	9 June Beach Ocean Monitoring Report Cover Sheet
	10 June ACOO_0013
	Effluent
	1
	2
	3
	4
	Stations
	Offshore

	11  June SJCOO_0012
	Effluent
	1
	2
	3
	4
	Stations
	Offshore

	12 Pretreatment Report Cover
	13 Pretreatment June July August Report
	Agenda Item                   

	14 Agenda Item JULY 2018 Operations Report to Sept 2018 Board
	15 July Beach Ocean Monitoring Report Cover Sheet
	16 July ACOO_0013
	Effluent
	1
	2
	3
	4
	stations
	Offshore

	17 July SJCOO_0012
	Effluent
	1
	2
	3
	4
	stations
	offshore

	40  Capital Improvement Report September 2018
	41 Capital Improvement Report September 2018 Attachment 1
	42 Capital Improvement Report September 2018 Attachment 2
	43 Capital Improvement Report September 2018 Attachment 3
	44 Capital Improvement Report September 2018 Attachment 4
	45 Capital Improvement Report September 2018 Attachment 5
	46 Capital Improvement Report September 2018 Attachment 6
	47 Capital Improvement Report September 2018 Attachment 7
	48 Capital Improvement Report September 2018 Attachment 8
	49 Approved PC-15 Minutes_6.14.18
	50 Approved P-C15 Minutes_5.18.18
	51 Approved PC-15 Minutes_5.14.18
	52 Approved PC-15 Minutes_5.11.18
	53 Approved PC-15 Minutes_4.19.18
	54 Approved PC-15 Minutes_4.10.18
	55 Approved PC-15 Minutes_4.9.18
	56 Change Order Item Change Orders to Pacific Hydrotech Construction Contract for the Regional Treatment Plant Cogen Switchgear Upgrade
	57 Change Order Item Change Orders to Pacific Hydrotech Construction Contract for RTP Attachment 1 Exhibit A Project Ledger
	58 Agenda Item - Award of Engineering Services Contract for the Innovative ...
	59 Agenda Item - Award of Engineering Services Contract for the Asset Register Pilot Project
	60 Agenda item  Award of Construction contract PC15
	61 AGENDA ITEM Reso 2018-10 IRWM 
	62 IRWM Plan Resolution 2018-10
	63 AGENDA ITEM_CEQA
	64 Resolution No. 2018-11 CEQA
	65 use this one - SOCWA CEQA Guidelines
	1. PURPOSE OF POLICY
	2. AUTHORITY
	3. EFFECTIVE DATE
	4. INCORPORATION OF CEQA GUIDELINES
	5. SUPPLEMENTARY PROCEDURES
	6. ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS
	7. APPLICABILITY
	8. DELEGATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
	8.1 Responsible Party
	8.2 Non-Delegation.  The Board shall not delegate its responsibility for:
	(a) Certifying that a final EIR has been completed in compliance with CEQA and reviewing and considering the information contained in the final EIR prior to approving the project.
	(b) Approving a negative declaration prior to approving a project.
	(c) Making of findings required by CEQA Guidelines Section 15091.
	(d) Making of the statement of overriding considerations required by CEQA Guidelines Section 15093.


	9. Lead Agency Procedures
	9.1 Duties of Lead Agency
	9.2 Preliminary Review
	9.3 Notice of Exemption
	9.4 Initial Study
	9.5 Decision to Prepare EIR
	9.6 Decision to Prepare Negative Declaration, Public Review and Hearing
	9.7 Consideration and Approval of Negative Declaration
	9.8 Notice of Determination on Negative Declaration
	9.9 Notice of Preparation of EIR
	9.10 Notice of Completion of Draft EIR
	9.11 Public Review and Hearing on Draft EIR
	9.12 Preparation of Final EIR
	9.13 Certification of Final EIR
	(a) The final EIR has been completed in compliance with CEQA;
	(b) The final EIR was presented to the Board and the Board reviewed and considered the information contained in the final EIR prior to approving the project; and
	(c) The final EIR reflects the independent judgment and analysis of SOCWA.

	9.14 Necessity for Findings
	9.15 Approval of Project and Statement of Overriding Considerations
	9.16 Notice of Determination on EIR
	9.17 Filing of EIR
	9.18 No Effect Determination Fee Exemption

	10. RESPONSIBLE AGENCY PROCEDURES
	10.1 Duties of Responsible Agency
	10.2 Consultation and Response
	10.3 Board Consideration of EIR or Negative Declaration
	10.4 Notice of Determination

	11. EXEMPT PROJECTS
	11.1 Categorical Exemptions
	(a) Class 1 (Section 15301) Existing Facilities, including but not limited to: interior and exterior alterations; restoration, repair, adjustment or rehabilitation of aged, deteriorated or damaged structures, facilities, pipes, appurtenances or mechan...
	(b) Class 2 (Section 15302) Replacement or Reconstruction, including but not limited to: reconstruction or replacement of a structure with a new structure of substantially the same size, purpose, and capacity; and replacement or reconstruction of exis...
	(c) Class 3 (Section 15303) New Construction or Conversation of Small Structures, including but not limited to: sewage, process or recycled water or other utility extensions, including street improvements, of reasonable length to serve such constructi...
	(d) Class 4 (Section 15304) Minor Alterations to Land, including but not limited to: minor trenching and backfilling where surface is restored, new landscaping, and filling of earth into previously excavated land with compatible material.
	(e) Class 5 (Section 15305) Minor Alterations in Land Use Limitations, including but not limited to: minor property boundary adjustments and variances not resulting in the creation of any new parcel, and disposal of easements.
	(f) Class 7 (Section 15307) Actions by Regulatory Agencies for Protection of Natural Resources, and Class 8 (Section 15308) Actions by Regulatory Agencies for Protection of the Environment, including but not limited to the issuance of permits, approva...
	(g) Class 9 (Section 15309) Inspections, including but not limited to inspection activities at existing and proposed facilities to check for performance of an operation, or quality, health, or safety of a project, including related activities.
	(h) Class 11 (Section 15311) Accessory Structures, including but not limited to: on-premise signs, trailers or carton containers, utility sheds and housings for mechanical, electrical or process equipment, small parking lots, on-site roads and drainag...
	(i) Class 12 (Section 15312) Surplus Government Property Sales, including but not limited to sales of surplus equipment.
	(j) Class 22 (Section 15322) Educational or Training Programs Involving No Physical Changes, including but not limited to: testing of equipment, performing training involving heavy machinery and equipment, conducting wastewater-related research, hosti...
	(k) Class 30 (Section 15330) Minor Actions to Prevent, Minimize, Stabilize, Mitigate, or Eliminate the Release or Threat of Release of Hazardous Waste or Hazardous Substances.

	11.2 Ministerial Projects
	11.3 Emergency Projects
	11.4 Statutorily Exempt Projects

	12. FORMS
	13. TIME LIMITS
	14. STATUTES OF LIMITATION
	15. HEALTH IMPACT REVIEW FOR CERTAIN PROJECTS NEAR SCHOOLS

	66 AGENDA ITEM_Claims
	Agenda Item                     

	67 RESOLUTION NO 2018-12 Claims
	68 Claims procedure draft 8 21 18
	1. PURPOSE OF POLICY
	2. SCOPE
	3. CLAIMS PROCEDURES
	3.1 Claims Presentation Requirements
	3.2 Timing
	3.3 Action on Claim

	4. CLAIM FORM
	4.1 Form and Content of Claim
	4.2 Insufficiency of Claim

	5. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY
	5.1 Authority to Act on Claims
	SOCWA’s Board of Directors delegates to the General Manager the authority to act on claims submitted under this policy to the extent permitted by law.  Accordingly, the General Manager shall examine and allow, compromise, settle, return or reject clai...
	5.2 Policy Revisions


	69 Staff Reort UAL_9.6.18
	Summary
	The Member Agencies Finance Officers Recommendation:
	The joint SOCWA and Actuaries recommended approach:
	Recommended Allocation Percentages for Net Pension and Retiree Health
	Timing
	Future Application

	70 AGENDA ITEM Monthly State Audit Updates 
	71 State Audit Response Schedule September 2018 meeting
	72 GM - Agenda Item - General Manager Report 9 6 18
	73 Reimbursemetn Log
	74 GM Report Attachment 9 6 18 meeting
	Digest Key
	Bill Text
	The people of the State of California do enact as follows:
	SECTION 1.
	SEC. 2.
	6508.1.

	SEC. 3.
	6508.2.

	SEC. 4.
	20574.1.

	SEC. 5.
	20575.

	SEC. 6.
	SEC. 7.
	20577.5.



	xxx13 Pretreatment June July August Report.pdf
	Agenda Item                   

	xxx66 AGENDA ITEM_Claims.pdf
	Agenda Item                     


	SOCWA - September 13, 2018
	SOCWA - September 19, 2018
	0 - Notice - FinCom 09.19.18
	4 - draft Finance Committee Minutes 12.06.17
	6 - Staff Report USE Audit FY2016-17_9.19.18
	6a - FY2016-17 USE Audit Book Final_09.19.18
	00 - USE AUDIT Cover4
	0 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Table of Contents_9.19.18
	1 - USE AUDIT 2016-17 Mgmt Discussion pg 1-7
	2 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 pg 8 & 8a
	Page 8
	Page 8a

	3 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Usage Admin Applied_9.19.18
	4 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 by PC&Mbr Agency_9.19.18
	5 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 O&M Expenses by PC_9.19.18
	6 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC2 WW_9.19.18
	7 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC3 WW_9.19.18
	8 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC5 WW_9.19.18
	9 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC8 WW_9.19.18
	10 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC12 WW_9.19.18
	11 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC15 WW_9.19.18
	12 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC17 WW_9.19.18
	13 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC21 WW_9.19.18
	14 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC24 WW_9.19.18
	15 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 O&M Detail_9.19.18
	16 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 O&M Summary_9.19.18
	17 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 O&M Bdgt vs Act by PC_9.19.18
	18 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Engineering_9.19.18
	19 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Admin_9.19.18
	20 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 IT_9.19.18
	21 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Direct Labor_9.19.18
	22 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Overtime_9.19.18
	23 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Fringe_9.19.18
	24 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC2_9.19.18
	25 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC5_9.19.18
	26 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC12_9.19.18
	27 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC15_9.19.18
	28 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC17_9.19.18
	29 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC24_9.19.18
	30 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Large Cap_9.19.18
	31 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 In Service Assets_9.19.18

	7 - Alternate Staff Report USE Audit FY2017-18_9.19.18
	8 - Cash Roll Fwd FY 2017-18 Presentation_9.19.18
	9 - Staff report Legal Expenditures Update_9.19.18
	9a -  Legal Expenditures Summary  - FY 17-18


	Item #14 - MWDOC
	MWDOC - Sept 4, 2018
	MWDOC - Sept 5, 2018
	MWDOC - Sept 12, 2018
	00 agenda
	01a August 2018 Cash Receipts
	01b-d disbursements
	01e CF by Vendor
	01f Cons Summary of Cash & Invest July 2018
	01g A4-PEB18A20180731
	02 MWDOC Financials
	03a WFC
	03b WFC-2 WFC Board OFficers 2018
	05 Rev Bdgt
	06  Seismic
	07 Prudent Companion Policy
	08 AWWA WITAF Project Workshop
	09 ACCOC Conference
	10 Electrical write up
	11a Admin
	11b Pending Items Finance
	12 Water Data Item for Sep-2018 AF mtg
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	MWDOC - Sept 17, 2018
	MWDOC - Sept 19, 2018
	MWDOC - Sept 19, 2018 - part two
	MWDOC - Sept 20, 2018

	Item #15 - LAFCO
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, September 12, 2018
	8:15 a.m.


	Item #16 - SOCWMA
	SOCWMA - Sept 10, 2018
	SOCWMA - part two

	Item #17 - ISDOC
	ISDOC - September 4, 2018
	ADPA472.tmp
	Sheet2


	ISDOC - part two

	Item #18 - WACO
	WACO - Sept 7, 2018
	WACO - Sept 18, 2018

	Item #19 - City Coordination Meeting
	Item #20 - Dates to remember
	Item #21 - Carry-Over Pending Matters
	ETWD Glossary of Water Terms - Acronyms



